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CORPORATE OVERVIEW £ B &)

e Information Technology (IT) services provider since 1973 o BN t=FRREHEMBHERS

e Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (SHSE Stock Code: 600410) o IREBAREERMDBERAR(LEELFR
becomes the Company’s ultimate holding company in September 2009 ST B - 600410) R NF A

PR AR A BRI A A

e Dedicated to delivering innovative, industry-specific and one-stop IT o HOARANBFPIRMHAIF  TEARE—ILT
solutions and services to customers across the region with business BHARHRRA T ENRE  EEERRES 5
operations in Hong Kong, Mainland China, United States, Europe, Bt - 2B - BUN - &7 ORI - FE - F
Taiwan, Macau, Thailand, Singapore and Malaysia, etc. D3 % FS PR e g S i

Group Performance Overview SEZEHE

4 ° Summary of Highlights E 3 #{E ° )
Asia Pacific business remains stable in face of economic shock a DREFEBEESEEHREAGFIET
Revenue from global leading customers in IT, Media and B R B RTERRHY - I REAITEEFH
Telecommunications industries of the U.S. and Europe business increases IWATFHIZIEA40.3% + B HfEEE R 2 B8

by 40.3%, vigorously speeds up its recovery after the epidemic

Group's total net profit for the year surges 753.5% to HK$856.1 million, e EERERIZ753.5% 2 856.1 B EBIT  BIFES T
achieving a record high (including the one-off gain) & (B3R —REdES)

Basic earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations ° KA EHER L MR LTS 7 BIRE AR ATHE

increases 795.0% to 103.37 HK cents 3£795.0% = 103.37 /811l
Proposed a final dividend of 3.0 HK cents per share and a special dividend ° FOIREERHARR B % 3.0/81L - WER 202045 A
of 7.3 HK cents had been paid in May 2020 due to one-off gains, B MEEIRE T RFRIARE 7.3l - 2020F E
recording a total dividend of 10.3 HK cents per share in CY2020 BERFEHIRE 1038
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Asia Pacific - Core Business Review 32 X B4/ 55 [0 5

Revenue Adjusted EBITDA""" Adjusted Net Profit "**”

%ﬁ A 1 fEFBEEBITDA" SRR BT
L .1,988.8 ( ® .95.3%. @ s 60,61
. _

\

~

U.S. and Europe - Core Business Review & 3% B4\ B EE
Associated Company — Grid Dynamics Holdings Inc. (“GDH”) H% /A & — Grid Dynamics Holdings Inc. (“GDH")

Revenue "=*%® Adjusted EBITDA" =429 Non-US GAAP PAT
ﬁ qﬁllmszz&a RT T &Réﬁ]ﬁg EBITDA "3 429 (Notes 3,4 & 6) ([i3 + 416)
Mill Mill Mill
== w862.4%- (® .97.3u s 5441
(Extracted from 2020 SEC Form 10-K) (Extracted from 2020 SEC Form 10-K) (Extracted from 2020 SEC Form 10-K)

K (FENE 2020 SEC 10-K #1%) (#ERE 2020 SEC 10-K &%) (#8ERE 2020 SEC 10-K &%)
@

Group’s Non-core Business Gain/Loss 5B 0 EH U

Successfully completed the
disposal and spin-off of Grid
Dynamics and separate listing on

Loss of the Group Related to NASDAQ as GDH’s Net Gain (ote 7)
Associate Companies note ) Government FXZh & & 5 #F Grid Dynamics
B 4\ F)AE R Grants M 1E EEARHTE R £ X % GDH
Z K BB (i:e) BB ZFUWER (1)

Q] " 9 (deducted one-off expenses related to the gain)

@ ® - @) (BB Bz AR — R B

”\ N wsO4. o == s 80,1 555 e(S) s 805.0 Hi% -
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Operational Highlights - Asia Pacific TE K EZ# =2

3 core business divisions are the main contributors, constituting to
approximately 67.0% adjusted EBITDA of the entire Asia Pacific region
SREEEBBHATABEENTEERME - A ABEKEFHREBITDAK67.0%

Win cases
I Provided rapid support for the Government's epidemic-monitoring system
B Ranked #1 - SOA-QPS 4 category market

(according to the total contract amount received from application development projects, as well as the cumulative total
contract amount of all service category contracts)

1 Provided application development and IT services to the Hong Kong Government’s mobile app “iAM
Smart”, assisting the government in building a smart city

B Developed mobile apps for various well-known private hospitals
Key projects

W Equipped with new and diversified delivery model, such as Agile and DevOps
I Expanded the talent pool of overseas technical personnel

RIESY]

EMPOWER
FREE

Innovative
Solutions Business B AEREERNARYIERFEEEE R
ﬁ&iﬁgiﬁk B MELERE— - [EEEMBEEERBEHEAN RN SEPHREER
s (REARARENERLSTE  UERMEARBERIEHRHESEANE)

B SEREEBAREBEARER [ E 5 E | RIVERME REMRERY - HEBATERE S H
B hAZEEEAVEBRARREERAREN

EXIEH
B XAHERSHE - M5 R DevOps BTAIRER
B EATENEABRATE

Win cases

B Received an order from the investment banking arm of the top 5 China-based bank to improve the
cybersecurity of its software-defined network

B Catered to the novel cybersecurity needs for remote offices under the New Normal, various complex
application scenarios and new cybersecurity threats

Key projects
B Extended SOC business to Macau, and jointly launched the Security Operation Center (SOC?)
regional services with CTM

SECURE
=2

Intelligent Cybersecurity

EszjJ ;%@J Services Business
B EFEREARERITZ R ARTRBRERI AR R BE R 20T E il

B BHCEEFHANERTORBNAR  SBERERSRIMETE  URFVERE2EE

BEEH
B 5SOCHEMKIEATHRERPT - MAPER(CTM BAKEE R ES T ENREEN L 20 EDL
(s0C?) fRi&

Win cases
B Provided IT support swiftly to the Hong Kong Government in fighting against the epidemic

B Gained the trust from numerous financial institutions, including utilised ITSM processes to provide a
local bank with IT management support services

B Provided IT operation services Hong Kong-wide to more than 2,000 users for a real estate developer

I Key projects
B Supported emerging technologies — cloud native application automation, to rapidly respond to the
MANAGE market's ardent demands for access to cloud and management of multi-cloud environment

HE

ES
Integrated Managed ﬁk ]jJ *ﬁu

Services Business B EELENEARESETFBFELE
B R B EZEESEEEEE - 2heEfBITSM AR A LB A B TRE A AR R E R I RE

EERKEY
B FEEFIEEAHMERRBE TEESBAHMAEE 2,000 RS REENRREBRS

ERIEHE

B YEFERN - EREEABEL - UREEETSYE R - ERSERRORITR
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New Business - New Market Positioning Et# %% - ZFE

-

Launch as-a-Service by adopting DevSecOps to assist client’s digital transformation

838 DevSecOps #i H as-a-Service B & F B IS E A

+ " 0
G .
N l .
|

Design, develop,

autonomous test,

Cloud Native | cicp integrations
ERE RE BB aEAHR

as-a-Service Cl/CDERK

Individual
Cloud Services
B E IR

Dev as-a-Service
Sec as-a-Service
Ops as-a-Service

Government, healthcare,

Industry
K')_OWIedge and finance, etc.

1TEHR AT - B B M0
SRITMEBE

transport, property, banking

Usage/ payment

HE/WE Multi-vendor technologies on
Techno!t?gy traditional and/or cloud environment
Capability (private, public and hybrid)
AT &R A/ R EEE (L - ARFVRA) b
82 h R R R

Agile Secure

B g
Customer Stable recurrent
Stickiness revenue }

EFRHE RENEEEWRA
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2 Major Platforms Promoting as-a-Service o

Unified Operation Center (UOC)

Located at the Group’s Hong Kong headquarters

e E R (UOCQ)
NREBTBHET

Partners with Equinix, a global
interconnection and world-class

Omni-channel, data center company
cloud-based platform BHEREE R RL

2RE  THORBEFE A LA Equinix

uoc ¢q

Combines the Group’s

Key PrO]eCtS UB”SLEYZ tgjsﬁzggs —— € extensive experience in the
_____________ industr
BERIEHE EFAEW o EmEEY
. . =k ) RAaariats
Received orders from a multi- SRR ES as-a-Service business model ITHETRKES

as-a- Service BRI

et

“IT Operation as-a-Service”

Assist customers in managing costs
and in boosting their business

YR FEERAE - BB

channel B2B trading platform
company and an international
non-profit aid agency
BE—%REBBRZFAATAR—
BIRR I S R B AR AT B

Systems Integration Business
RETENER
21.5%

ucs 428.0 5%

Innovative Solutions Business
BT TR RET
16.6%

wes 330.8 Fakx




. MK RIS T & # E as-a-Service .

Security Operation Center (SOC?)
HIREMEZZEEH D (SOCY)

T % CTM[\I mrIEH

ASL Threat Intelligence Support SIEM &

Portal (A-TIP) Situation Awareness
ASL 4948 T B fE SR AT 4L dual technology
Th AT H4E SIEM R AR AT
\ Rl
Real-time monitoring & Telco-graded

alerting service \/ CTM data center
7x24 BREER

BEEAR CTM BiEH O

BE IR v

¥

Comply with the Macau Cybersecurity Law
WERFIPEZEER

SOC
Regional
Expansion

BE{LEE sOC

from Hong Kong to Macau

A B I 2R

Revenue Distribution - Asia Pacific 38 K E U A 2 ff

Integrated Managed Services Business
AR R E IR TE FET
44.9%

wes 892.3 5k

ASL's Performance of .
Revenue in Asia Pacific

BERAGEABRARE

Intelligent Cybersecurity Services Business
BRRR R 2R %S
17.0%

ws 337.7 5%

o —



Operational Highlights - U.S. and Europe BiEEH#E =2

4 Win Cases BEHIEH )

B Apple and Google were gradually nurtured as the top five major M AppleflGoogle Z#HK KBTI AREE
customers ®F

B “New normal” has increased the market demand for cloud technology B EARESTISH E iR BHR A H oA

B GDH expanded customer base in insurance, IT, and industrial space M GDH AR - IT - A TEITENE
industries PR

B Its revenue in the fourth quarter having returned to the pre-COVID-19 B HEMNFRRADBEEZETCOVID-192
level. The revenue of GDH’s non-retail industry accounted for 69.5% of the HIHIKF - GDHRIIEZETERAGER
revenue for the year, in which the IT, media and telecommunications WAH695%  Bh R - HEME(E
industries accounted for 40.8% of GDH’s annual revenue, representing a T¥EGDHEF IR AR A40.8% » RILLIgK
year-on-year growth of 40.3% 40.3%

Key Investment Achievements

BHREMN

In Mar 2020, GDI successfully listed on NASDAQ as GDH
20204 3 A - GDIA% A GDH B A 4 HTiE R b

Ticker symbol: GDYN
BSR4 TGDYN]

In Jun 2020, GDH joined one of the 3 major stock indexes in the U.S.
20204 6 A - GDH I AER =AIEE 2 —

.. _________________________________________________________
U.S. Equity Russell 2000 Index
FEF 2000158
In Dec 2020, GDH acquired a software development and technology consulting
company in Netherlands
20204 12 7+ GDH @B Ot R R B (I BBl w5 s A B
__________________________________________________________ ..
@ Daxx Web Industries BV expanded its business coverage to Western Europe

Daxx Web Industries BV A 3 5%k B = 7o Ex




Outlooks KR EE

-

B Two-business-lines layout: Asia Pacific region as main business line, and
the U.S. and Europe business as its auxiliary business line

B Closely monitor the progress of economic recovery and the impact of
geopolitics on customers across industries in the post-epidemic era,
striving to assist companies conduct businesses as usual

B Hong Kong and the Asia Pacific region - commenced its new
development phase, and established its new market position

Major breakthrough: launched the new IT managed services
platforms which focuses on a high degree of automation, adopts
DevSecOps culture and smart services, supports cloud-based
resources and container environment, thereby laying a basic
foundation for the development of a diversified as-a-Service

Successfully set up the UOC and SOC?, intended to meet customer
demands for digital transformation of businesses in the long run

Continue to invest in UOC in terms of technology and human
resources for enhancing the Group’s DevSecOps capabilities

Set up a solution center focusing on scientific research to facilitate
and improve the provision of as-a-Service under on-premise and
multi-cloud environments to enterprises, as well as gradually
launching individual self-branded services and solutions around
Dev as-a-Service, Sec as-a-Service and Ops as-a-Service. Through
cooperation with partners to form a cloud-native service ecosystem
in the long run, driving the overall promotion of the new business
as-a-Service

Considered increasing its investment in the cybersecurity business
or expanding its services to the Greater Bay Area so as to meet the
needs of regional enterprises to comply with relevant regulations

Actively invest in and introduce new business lines, set up new
“tracks” and explore new growth points, with the goal to further
satisfy customer needs under the cloud computing environment

B In terms of the U.S. and Europe business, the “new normal” has led to
a significant increase in the demand for cloud technology in the market:

The Group is optimistic about GDH’s continuous growth in 2021,
trusting that it will continue to obtain good returns due to its rapid
development

BEREBHR: TARRE - BEEBRR

FH B BRE BB EREE R &R

HITEEPHNTE

HOMBPHEEINE &

EBNDARE - RFE TR - BT T

BREM

BAZEN: R T EERETE  EE
=E B8 - 5A DevSecOps X1t » BE MR
% TEREmMERRABRE  AEEZTT
{L &) as-a-Service i R EM 1B E

FE1& /I UOC ~ SOC2 - FEHIAI$H ¥ 2 P ¥
EBBHBUNRETK

BB - ANIRERUOC - URAE
[ DevSecOps #¢

R BEAR RO ZERHAUNRE TS
1A 1 % 32 75 10 (on-premise) & % & (multi-
cloud) 388 T~ HJ as-a-Service * I B & B4
Dev as-a-Service * Sec as-a-Service }&z Ops as-
a-Service B M RGBT R - WiRA
BENSIEREFNERERGEREE - B
BEHEB) as-a-Service HTET

ZEMABER L 2EBOIRE - RGRBE
REXNERE  MEREALENTIERME

ERAS AR - BAITERS -
£ SR EPERSERE THRE

MEBXEBHTE  EMFETSHEEHEHR
BHIFRRAIE -

SEH T —FREERIREE - BE
TR & # 4B R GDH A PR R B R E IR 1 [
s

Strive to be a Professional and Trustworthy Unified Technology Services Partner

To integrate various technologies and products using our rich industry domain knowledge so as to fit customer application scenarios;
to use regional layout for market expansion adhering to the footsteps of customer’s business growth

BN RABBEE T ERRS R R+
FIRB TR B R S FR A S AR AEFRASS
B 5 R LR 9B 2 B B B 0 376 ROIRISE

Industry-specific

(e 3|

o @G - &)

Integration

30414

Regional Expansion

~




Note 1: Adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation, and Amortisation (Adjusted EBITDA)
is calculated based on profit for the year from continuing operations excluding interest income
and expenses, tax, depreciation, amortisation, fair value change on revaluation of investment
properties, equity-settled share-based payments expense, government grants, one-off rebate,
share of results of associates, loss on deemed disposal of partial interests in associate, waiver of
intercompany balances of Disposal Group and one-off professional fees.

Note 2: Adjusted Net Profit is calculated based on profit for the year of continuing operations
excluding overseas withholding tax, interest income and expenses, fair value change on revaluation
of investment properties, equity-settled share-based payments expense, government grants
and one-off rebate, share of results of associates, loss on deemed disposal of partial interests in
associate, waiver of intercompany balances of Disposal Group, one-off professional fees and tax
impacts of these adjustments.

Note 3: Amounts stated were extracted from Form 10-K for the year ended 31st December 2020
("Form 10-K") of Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. (“GDH") published on US Security and Exchange
Commission website. The results of GDH were not consolidated in the Group’s results, but after
completion date of the disposal were accounted for using equity method and based on the
Group's shareholding in GDH.

Note 4: According to Form 10-K of GDH, the Adjusted EBITDA is net income before interest income/
expense, provision for income taxes and depreciation and amortization, and further adjusted for
the impact of stock-based compensation expense, transaction-related costs (which include, when
applicable, professional fees, staff retention bonuses, and consulting, legal and advisory costs related
to merger and acquisition and capital-raising activities), impairment of goodwill, other income/
expenses, net (which includes mainly interest income and expense, foreign currency transaction
losses and gains, fair value adjustments and other miscellaneous expenses), and restructuring costs.

Note 5: According to Form 10-K of GDH, the Non-US GAAP PAT is net income adjusted for
the impact of stock-based compensation, impairment of goodwill, transaction-related costs,
restructuring costs, other income/expenses, net, and the tax impacts of these adjustments.

Note 6: Figures in US$ have been converted to HK$ at the rate of US$1 = HK$7.75 for illustration
purposes.

Note 7: The net gain represents profit for the year from discontinued operations, deducting
overseas withholding tax, waiver of intercompany balances of Disposal Group, interest on bank
borrowings, interest on convertible bonds and one-off professional fees.

Note 8: Loss of the Group related to associate companies includes the share of results of associates
and loss on deemed disposal of partial interests in associates.

MIEE1: KARKER MEREBHAMNBSR(LHAE
EBITDA) Jh E RSB E & 75 2 F s FIFN R A S U A S 7
TR TE M SRREMEZAABERE  BH
RN DAR ) AR SN - BUFHB) - —RIER - FE
EBVERRIEE  BIENERE QRN RE B - Bl
EREEENRRRESRE —RIEEEERAE -

MIEE 2 ERPEEF 2 SRDERFELEEB 2 FRaF
RREINEHIE - MBBMARMEX BEREMEZAAE
B - A ABBENARD AR - BA#D -
—RMEET - BEBE QRS  SUELEBE R RSO E
DZER MRl EREZKENARREHS  E-RUR
XERARUSABER RBEEAHE -

BteE 3: BUR T3 EENE Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. ([GDH.) T
BRERBRSFRSEEGREZHE_S S5+ -A=1+—
HEE L2 M 10-K([£RHE 10K]) - GDH 2 EET S WA
AREE 2 #ER - WEERRBRZ EEG R AN
WAZAREER GDH Z FIREL B AR R 2 245X o

MHFE 4: R1E GDH Z &A% 10-K  &FF5% EBITDA 5B EF

WEREHAMBERARN BERIARY - RSMEEAKE

(RIFEEER  BIREES  SHBEREEEPEBENE

ARERER)  HERE  HiFRA/SE (EE2REFE

WA/ZH - BHIBR - AAEEARREMMES) REHEM
SREARBZSE -

Bff3E 5: R4 GDH Z K # 10-K * Non-US GAAP PAT 5 %518
UM AERIHEY - BERE  XHEEKAN - 24
P REMFRA/ X HER AT BRAER I EE -

MiaE 6: SETCEURIZIER 1.00 £ITH 7.75 BuEBRHHERZ
}Eﬁ o

Mgk 7: FRE B S EBFa IR gINRIT - #
REEEEESBARRMARR  RITEERS - AHRRE
FZRBR—RMEBEER -

BiRE 8: i N AR AR B R R EER S AR A
FAREHER S AR I D Hm 2 BE -
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Quality Policy of ASL
BERGNEE RS

We are committed to be the excellent IT services partner by providing
customers innovative, quality and integrated one-stop IT services and
solutions. We aim at satisfying our customers’ business needs through forging
strategic alliance with our business partners and the core values of the Group
— "SPACT":

“S" - Strive for Excellence
Perform work with best effort and the highest standard. Always looking for
ways to make further improvement.

“P" - Problem Solving

Solve problem with effective solutions in a timely manner and be able to
identify the core of the problems and provide workable solutions in an honest
manner.

“A" - Accountable

Be accountable for one’s area of responsibilities whilst working towards the
goal of the company, be responsible for managing and following up with the
work until complete success.

“C" - Courage

To change and innovate — respond timely to change and to enable the
company to become efficient and competitive. Eager to invent new ideas and
new ways of work to advance in a leading position.

“T" — Teamwork
Work as part of the team, co-operate and contribute to team effort and
success. Willing to offer help, share ideas and knowledge.

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
HBRSA(ER)ARAE

1SO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 1505
Service Delivery

PR AT

1SO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 5337
Sales Operation Division

SHEBIEED

ISO/IEC 20000-1:2018
Certificate No.: CC5406
IT Service Center
Security Operation Center
ERRHRBE
ERZBEERL

ELM Computer Technologies Limited
MM ERBRARAE

1SO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 3268
Service Delivery

BRI AT

2 Annual Report 2020 & #f

ISO/IEC 27001:2013
Certificate No.: HK12/00068
Security Operation Center
ERZ2EEPL

BRMEERARESNENNERBEE  AESREA
5 BEE-HROGE EANBRBRBAT R - B
BT M BAAEEN RO EE  RORREPNE
BEES -

AREH - UERANE NNRS

FRREIRE - BRI AR RRORME - 58 500R AR A
FrfE - AR IR AR Rl TR AR T 5 ©

RECOE - EEAANBESEARECDE  REARANER
MBNHMEE - ERMRETEZEIRAKDY) °

ERER - BICRERAF - UL EE VR AR BME
MEEFE N - BREE - SREMOTETR - A

BRI o

BETN - RCREBN—OF  BEEEHEAE ERM
& BEERBWEERT - B4 TRED
B REBEEND ZHE -

VIR TAE » RAR

n _SGS.
Capability Maturity Model Integration for Development (CMMI)

Version 1.3 - Maturity Level 3 - DEV
Software Development and Support Service Organization

BATRA S R BRI A A



Customer Service Excellence with Corporate Responsibility

BITERER  NBREBEEREFPRK

Caring Company - 10 Consecutive Years Recognition
EARAE - EETFHRE CTgoodjobs Best HR Awards 2020

CTgoodjobs fx £ A 1 &R #2020

Over the years, ASL not only has provided innovative solutions and services to customers,
but is also committed to caring for the community, the environment as well as our
employees for sustainability. In 2020, the Group organised various activities, including, “ASL
Staff Excellence Awards”, “Virtual Christmas Party” and “Grid Dynamics New Year Party”,
etc for our staff, and also contributed to the society by participating in “Job Shadowing
Programme”, “CoolThink@JC Competition 2020" and “The Women'’s Foundation Virtual
Gala 2020, etc. Besides, ASL received several “Best HR Awards 2020" in recognition
of its outstanding talent management and achievements in creating an employee-
friendly workplace. Furthermore, ASL donated anti-epidemic supplies to those in need for
combating COVID-19. With our long-term commitment in attaining social responsibility,
we received the “Caring Company” recognition for the 10th consecutive year.

ZER - BBFRGNERTPIRERIFTART RFRY - M EEENRRIET
B REURET  UEBRIFEER - 2020F - NEBBRN T SBES - 21
RB TR [ASLEEH B TH#ERTE ) - [ - 5= E | & [Grid Dynamics #1
FRe S JEB2E [ TIERFTIER | - [CoolThink@)C #2020 | M [fwAE
TEERRE2020] FEELE - b ABERERESZE[SKEANERE
2020) AREHMEENAS ER LA EE TRERFIME < I - BEIFE
MEFEALTBENZMELELCOVID-19 - BENBITHEETHENRHE
71 BBEGUEEE TFES [RRIE] IR -

ASL Excellence Awards
ASLEEH B T 82Epst 2

Job Shadowing
Programme — The Hong
Kong Association for
Computer Education

CoolThink@JC Competition 2020
CoolThink@JC 5% 2020

Grid Dynamics New Year Party The Women's Foundation Virtual Gala 2020
Grid Dynamics ¥TF R & FRE S ERBRE 2020

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB ZAEEBR AR 3



Corporate Information
ARER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WANG Weihang (Chairman)
WANG Yueou (Chief Executive Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CUI'Yong

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

PAN Xinrong
DENG Jianxin
OR Siu Ching, Rerina

AUDIT COMMITTEE

DENG Jianxin (Chairman)
PAN Xinrong
OR Siu Ching, Rerina

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

PAN Xinrong (Chairman)
DENG Jianxin
OR Siu Ching, Rerina

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

WANG Weihang (Chairman)
PAN Xinrong
DENG Jianxin

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

WANG Yueou (Chairman)
WANG Weihang
CUI Yong

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

WANG Weihang (Chairman)
WANG Yueou

PAN Xinrong

DENG Jianxin

COMPANY SECRETARY

NGAN Wai Hing
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

SOLICITORS

Jones Day
Woo Kwan Lee & Lo

AUDITOR

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Ocorian Management (Bermuda) Limited
Victoria Place, 5th Floor,

31 Victoria Street,

Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 771

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
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Financial Summary

MR

L
RESULTS
N
ES
For the year ended 31st December
BZ+t-A=1+-ALFE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZEIBE (| ZE-NE ZZ)\& ZE—tF ZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THR FEL FAET TAEL
From continuing and REFELS
discontinued operations R R ER
Revenue WA 2,155,459 | 2,828,773 2,344,457 1917453 1,521,985
Profit before income tax BRATSHEAT AR 1,143,206 139,381 127,335 69,748 38,978
Income tax expense FEHRX (287,064) (39,073) (43,002) (17,169) (10,181)
Profit for the year £ PO 856,142 | 100,308 84,333 52,579 28,797
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to RGN
non-controlling interests EN(BE) /EF (156) 7,032 - - -
Profit for the year attributable to ARARBREHEBA
equity holders of the Company JEASEF PR 856,298 93,276 84,333 52,579 28,797

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERARE
At 31st December
R+t=A=1+-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
EIRE | ZTNF T\ ZT—+tF ZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THERT FET FET TET
Total assets BERE 3,247,997 2,798,592 2,381,032 2,264,893 1,166,328
Total liabilities mak 1,054,204 1,345,810 1,168,155 1,167,075 447,295
Equity attributable to equity ARARBRAEHEBA
holders of the Company FE{E R 2,193,793 | 1405272 1,212,877 1,097,818 719,033
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

The Group will further increase its investment
in new business-related fields, and leverage
with the external market investment to
facilitate the continuous transformation of its
core business and cross-regional development.

REBEKE— D MAREHNEHRERENIR
A BENHTHRE - HEBROERITEE
BURBEBHBRE

Mr. WANG Weihang
Chairman

B3

FE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present to
the shareholders the annual report of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “ASL" or the “Group”).

2020 was an extraordinary year under a challenging global business environment.
Although corporate customers tend to be conservative in the demand for traditional
maintenance, such impact has been partially offset by the ardent demand for
information technology (“IT”) such as cloud computing, remote working, artificial
intelligence and emerging complex cybersecurity. Overall, the Group’s businesses
in the Asia Pacific, U.S. and Europe outperformed the Group’s expectations and
demonstrated solid performance. This fully reflects the strong capability of the Group
and the remarkable results from continuous digital transformation.

In 2020, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$1,988.8 million from continuing
operations, increased by 4.5% compared to the same period of last year. During the
year, the Group’s profit after tax recorded an increase of 753.5% to HK$856.1 million
as compared to last year. The increase was due to the one-off gain amounted to
HK$832.4 million from the disposal of Grid Dynamics International, Inc. (“GDI") and
its subsidiaries and listing of Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. (“GDH") on NASDAQ. Basic
earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations of the Group soared
795.0% to 103.37 HK cents as compared to last year. The Group maintained a healthy
financial position, with bank balances and cash standing at approximately HK$370.5
million. The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of 3.0
HK cents per share.

In the Asia Pacific market, the three core businesses — Innovative Solutions business,
Intelligent Cybersecurity Services business and Integrated Managed Services business
— remained generally stable as compared to last year and further secured significant
orders from both public and private sectors.
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Furthermore, the Group has made breakthroughs in business development
and advocated serving corporate customers with an “as-a-service” on-demand
consumption model. as-a-Service is a novel cloud delivery and business model. On
top of being cost-effective, increasing productivity and enhancing the agility of an
enterprise systems, it also effectively protects corporate resources. During the year, the
Group launched a new and highly automated IT managed service platform that adopts
DevSecOps culture and supports cloud environment to build the foundation and
pillar for future development of a diversified as-a-Service. The Group formulated such
new market positioning due to the current enterprise needs of emphasizing real-time
market contact, agile operation and scalability, and the general increase in demand for
enterprises to adopt cloud and as-a-Service model to address operational challenges.
In addition, cloud computing also drives customers’ need for IT service providers with
industry expertise to assist in the continuous integration of various technologies and
products, so as to meet their needs of application scenarios.

During the year, the Group successively established two service platforms with
regarding to the new IT managed service platform. In May 2020, the Group
established a Unified Operation Center (UOC) to integrate the Group’s three core
businesses and industry advantages to provide enterprises with comprehensive
development (Dev), cybersecurity (Sec) and managed services (Ops), which allows
customers to flexibly consume on-demand services through network or adopt
one-stop managed services to assist in digital transformation, so as to achieve “IT
Operation as-a-Service”. In the third quarter of 2020, the Group launched its second
as-a-Service platform, the Security Operation Center (SOC2). This cybersecurity
platform was jointly launched by the Group and CTM which supports both SIEM and
situation awareness, providing Sec-as-a-Service to enterprises. It successfully extended
the reach of the Group’s SOC business to Macau.

Moreover, the Group has also won various awards, including the Most Outstanding
Partner Award presented by numerous IT partners, which demonstrates the
advancement of the Group’s cross-platform technology integration capabilities
under its positioning as a technology integrator. In terms of industry applications,
the Group also won the “Hong Kong Most Outstanding Service Award” and the
"Best Use of Mobile Apps Award”, which affirmed our ability to provide high-quality
industry solutions. Meanwhile, the Group was once again awarded the “Listed
Company Awards of Excellence 2020" in the Main Board category, which reflects the
recognition and favor of the capital market and the Hong Kong business community
on the Group's business performance and capital operation last year and in future
development.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFERE

In addition to business expansion, the Group also supported sustainable development
and enthusiastically fulfilled its corporate social responsibilities. Apart from being
recognized as a caring company for ten consecutive years, the Group was also
awarded the “Grand Award of Best Family-friendly Employment Policy” and the “Gold
Award of Best Graduate Recruitment and Management Trainee Programme” in early
2020. At the end of 2020, the Group was further awarded the “Employer of the
Year” and “Grand Award for Best Talent Management Strategy”. The Group pledged
to commit continuous devotion to create a harmonious working environment for
employees, so that talents can give full play to their strengths. It is worth mentioning
that the Group has witnessed the development of Hong Kong for nearly half a
century since its establishment. While the epidemic was rampant in 2020, the Group
supported the government’s anti-epidemic efforts timely for the IT facet with its
professional delivery team.

For overseas business, the Group has successfully spun off GDI, its business in the U.S.
and Europe, which was listed on NASDAQ as GDH (ticker symbol: GDYN) in 2020. The
business of GDYN has gradually recovered under the new normal, with its revenue
in the fourth quarter of 2020 having rebounded close to the pre-COVID-19 level. IT,
media and telecommunications industries have been the largest industry sectors for
GDH. It is worth noting that GDH has joined the Russell 2000 Index during the year
and acquired Daxx Web Industries BV, a Netherlands-based software development
and technology consulting company last year. This acquisition enabled GDH to rapidly
expand its business coverage to Western Europe with promising potential.

Looking ahead, the Group will focus its business development in the Asia Pacific
market, with the U.S. and Europe market as its auxiliary business line. In the Asia
Pacific market, the Group will further transform and invest heavily in UOC to enhance
the Group’s DevSecOps capabilities. In order to promote the new business of as-
a-Service as a whole, the Group has set up a solution center in 2021, focusing
on scientific research to accelerate and improve the provision of as-a-Service to
enterprises, and gradually launch its own brand solutions focused on “Dev”, “Sec”
and “Ops”. At the same time, the Group will cooperate with partners to form a
cloud-native service ecosystem in the long run to promote such new business. On the
other hand, the Group is considering increasing its investment in cybersecurity in the
Greater Bay Area. The Group will also actively introduce new business lines, explore
new growth drivers and provide customers with a better experience with innovative
technology to fulfill the needs of regional customers for efficiency, automation and
flexible charging in the cloud computing environment.
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my gratitude to the management
and employees for their dedication and contributions in such a volatile new normal
environment, with satisfactory performance delivered. | would also like to take this
opportunity to thank our loyal customers, business partners and shareholders for their
continuous support. Finally, | would like to express my appreciation to all Directors of
the Board for their sincere cooperation, support and valuable contributions.

Wang Weihang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31st March 2021
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
TR IRE

By integrating industry know-how, utilizing
technology integration capabilities and giving
full play to industry advantages, the Group
has launched an innovative “as-a-Service”
business service model through DevSecOps to
assist customers in digital transformation.

REBRERSTENS - EARMERE DR
EIT#ES » B8 DevSecOps HHAIHTHI[ as-
a-Service | EERBELN - HEIEFEIFHR -

Mr. WANG Yueou
Chief Executive Officer
TERB

1TIABE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEENWE D

Financial Results

For the year ended 31st December 2020, total revenue from the Group’s continuing
operation was HK$1,988.8 million, representing a 4.5% increase from the last year, in
which product sales was increased by 0.9% to HK$1,035.4 million and service revenue
was increased by 8.7% to HK$953.4 million. In addition, product sales and service
revenue contributed 52.1% and 47.9% to total revenue from continuing operation
respectively, compared to 53.9% and 46.1% last year.

For the year ended 31st December 2020, commercial and public sector sales
contributed 43.1% and 56.9% to total revenue from continuing operation
respectively, compared to 46.9% and 53.1% last year.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a profit attributable to the
Company’s equity holders of HK$856.3 million, an increase of 8.2 times compared
to last year of HK$93.3 million. The increase was mainly due to the gain of disposal
of Grid Dynamics International, Inc. (“Grid Dynamics”) and its subsidiaries. The one-
off gain was approximately HK$832.4 million after deducting transaction costs and
related current and deferred income tax.
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For the year ended 31st December 2020, orders newly secured by the Group’s
continuing operation amounted to approximately HK$1,930.3 million. As at 31st
December 2020, the Group’s order book balance of continuing operation was
approximately HK$1,043.0 million. The Group’s bank balances and cash stood at
approximately HK$370.5 million with a working capital ratio of 1.32:1. The Group
maintained a healthy financial position. As at 31st December 2020, the outstanding
borrowings amounted to HK$145.9 million.

Business Review

The Group has operated under a two-business-lines layout, with its focus on the
business development in the Asia Pacific region as main business line, and the U.S. and
Europe business as its auxiliary business line. The COVID-19 epidemic has lasted for
more than one year, which devastated the global economy, and all industries across
the world were affected to varying degrees. Although the economic environment
has been severe and difficult, yet, the Group’s Asia Pacific business and the U.S.
and Europe business performed better than the Group’s expectation, with steady
performance and strong resilience.

The Group's profit attributable to the Company's equity holders for the year
was HK$856.3 million, representing an increase of 8.2 times compared with the
corresponding period of last year. The increase in profit for the period was due to
a one-off gain of approximately HK$832.4 million arising from the disposal of Grid
Dynamics, which was subsequently listed on NASDAQ under Grid Dynamics Holdings,
Inc. (“GDH").

Business in Hong Kong and Asia Pacific

Impacted by the COVID-19 epidemic, the revenue, and adjusted EBITDA of the Group’s
core business in the Asia Pacific region (including its Asia Pacific subsidiaries in and
outside of Hong Kong) were HK$1,988.8 million, and HK$95.3 million respectively.
Among them, revenue increased 4.5% when compared with the corresponding period
of last year.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement
THETBRE

Although the “new normal” under the epidemic has brought new business
opportunities for the Group, the volatile market conditions have caused some
private companies to become cautious when procuring IT services that can improve
their businesses in the long run, and the demands for traditional maintenance have
weakened or fell back, thus these factors affected the Group’s performance for the
period. However, leveraging on its continuous deepening of transformation, rapid
adjustment of strategies and operation methods, as well as the industry’s competitive
advantages, the Group’s three core businesses in the Asia Pacific region (see the
detailed description below) were roughly stable compared with the corresponding
period of last year. During the year, orders newly secured, including major projects,
amounted to over HK$1,541.2 million, which maintained at a steady level as in the
same period of last year. Under the market downturn, the Group was still able to
maintain customer loyalty, proving the Group’s solid strengths.

Innovative Solutions Business

Innovative Solutions Business delivered the most outstanding performance when
compared with the other two core businesses, with service orders newly secured
recording a double-digit growth during the year. Service revenue was HK$303.6
million, with a significant increase of 25.1% compared with the corresponding period
of last year.

By enhancing its large-scale team capabilities, continuing to receive staunch support
from suppliers in various IT fields, as well as keeping updated on market needs, the
Group was able to acquire several major project orders during the year. Moreover,
benefitting from digital transformation and anti-epidemic needs, the Group has
performed exceptionally in both the government and healthcare sectors. The Group
provided pertinent development and IT services for the Hong Kong Government'’s
mobile app “iAM Smart”, assisting the government in building smart city. In addition,
the Group continued to rank first in the service categories under the Standing
Offer Agreement for Quality Professional Services 4. It also secured orders from two
major healthcare institutions of the Hong Kong Government, succeeded in instantly
supporting the government’s epidemic-monitoring system within a short time and
working together to fight the epidemic. In the private healthcare sector, the Group
also succeeded in developing mobile apps for various well-known private hospitals.
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Intelligent Cybersecurity Services Business

Service orders newly secured in this business performed steadily as last year, service
revenue recorded HK$148.9 million during the year, with a significant increase of
17.6% compared with last year.

The business mainly assisted customers overcome the “new normal” trend of remote
offices, the network needs in various complex application scenarios, as well as
new cybersecurity threats. The Group ranked among the top three security service
providers in Hong Kong, receiving market recognition for its services and industry
know-how. During the year, the Group secured an order from an investment banking
firm (one of the top five China-based banks) to enhance the security of its software-
defined network, demonstrating the Group’s ability to handle large-scale complex
cybersecurity technology. In the second half of 2020, the Group’s SOC service
improved significantly, with the revenue from orders increased by 38.9% year-on-year.
In August 2020, the Group extended its SOC business to Macau, and jointly launched
the Security Operation Center (SOC?) for the regional market with CTM, so as to meet
the needs of Macau customers to comply with cybersecurity, in particular, the Macau
Cybersecurity Law.

Integrated Managed Services Business

During the year, the service orders newly secured in this business was roughly
the same as the corresponding period of last year, with service revenue recorded
HK$430.7 million.

The epidemic was rampant throughout 2020, various industries have been severely
impacted. However, leveraging on its large-scale professional delivery team, technical
advantages and strong customer relationships, the Group was able to continue
displaying its industry advantages while securing various orders from both new and
existing major customers. For the public sector, the Group provided prompt IT support
to the government’s anti-epidemic work. For the banking and finance industry, the
Group secured numerous orders, including the use of ITSM to provide IT managed
support service for a local bank, and covered such bank’s needs from frontend to
backend. In addition, the new customers also included a property developer, which
required the Group to provide IT operation services for over 2,000 of its users across
the entire city. During the year, the Group continued to heighten its competitiveness,
which included supporting emerging technology — cloud-native application
automation, so as to rapidly respond to the market’s ardent demands for access to
cloud and management of multi-cloud environment.
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New Business, New Market Positioning — The Launch of
"as-a-Service” through DevSecOps, Assisting in Digital
Transformation

With the emergence of cloud computing and mobile internet, the Group noticed that,
whether it is in traditional IT operations or in the process of digital transformation,
there has been increasing interaction among the three areas: Application
Development, Cybersecurity and Managed Services, and the connection of application
scenarios within has become more and more complex. Customers need IT service
providers with industry expertise to assist with continuous integration of all kinds of
technology and products, so as to accommodate the needs of customer application
scenarios.

Moreover, in order to launch the application services in the market in a faster and
more stable manner with lower costs, companies seek for cloud-service-oriented
business model, such as cloud-native application development and Software as a
Service (SaaS). In view of this, the Group has developed, designed and deployed “as-a-
Service” using cloud-native application. “As-a-Service” comprises of several individual
services, and each individual service introduces lateral maintenance and expansion
capabilities. Meanwhile, applications are used to implement automated services
through the agile DevSecOps in cloud infrastructure, thereby achieving continuous
integration and continuous deployment (CI/CD), and proper comprehensive testing
will be conducted to ensure that service interruption would not occur during the rapid
deployment cycle. Such system structure responds to customer needs in a swift and
safe manner, thus reduces costs, saves resources and speeds up investment returns.

In the foreseeable future, the “as-a-Service” business model not only is a cloud
delivery model that is cost-effective, able to increase productivity and strengthens the
agility of an enterprise’s system, but also capable of protecting company’s resources.
In order to meet the needs of companies in agile development of applications and in
security — demands for DevSecOps assistance has been escalating.

In order to cater to this new economic model and respond to the challenges from
traditional businesses, the Group has integrated industry know-how, used technology
integration capabilities and given full play to industry advantages (industries including
the government, healthcare, aviation, finance and property). Also, during the year, the
Group launched innovative business service models, proposing that IT services could
be consumed on demand, and formulated corresponding strategies and roadmaps.
For the Group, the "as-a-Service” business model increases customer loyalty, and
while existing customers continue to expand, it is expected to bring about recurring
revenue for the Group with considerable long-term benefits.
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Inauguration of a Unified Operation Center (UOC)

In the first half of 2020, the Group launched the Unified Operation Center (UOC) to
promote the new business model of “as-a-Service”. Such cloud-based service platform
provided customers with integrated, one-stop IT managed operation. This platform
unifies the Company’s three core businesses and industry advantages, as well as
provides enterprises with holistic development (Dev), cybersecurity (Sec) and managed
services (Ops). It allows customers to flexibly use services on demand through the
network, or to adopt one-stop managed services, and flexibly customizes to meet
customers’ business needs throughout the entire IT lifecycle, thus facilitating digital

transformation, thereby achieving “IT Operation as-a-Service"”.

In the second half of the year, the optimized UOC functions and the continuous
improvement in competitiveness enable customers to achieve asset-light status, more
effective cost management and business enhancement. The market has positive
response to this new service, the orders secured during the year included those from
a multi-channel B2B trading platform company and an international non-profit aid
agency.

Setting Up of Security Operation Center (SOC?)

Following the establishment of UOC, the Group launched its second “as-a-Service”
platform — the Security Operation Center (SOC?) during the year. This cybersecurity
platform is jointly rolled out by the Group and CTM, supporting the dual technology
of SIEM and situation awareness, and also providing “Sec as-a-Service” to enterprises.

Business in the U.S. and Europe

With respect to regional layout, in 2020, the Group successfully completed the spin-
off of its business in the U.S. and Europe — Grid Dynamics as well as Grid Dynamics’
listing on NASDAQ as GDH (ticker symbol: GDYN). Through the spin-off and listing
of Grid Dynamics, the Group not only obtained a considerable amount of investment
return, but also timely reduced the geopolitical risks faced by the Group. GDH is
currently an associate of the Group, the results of GDH are included in the results of
the Group as interests as an associate and accounted for using equity method.

Despite the impact of the epidemic, the “new normal” has led to a significant increase
in the demand for cloud technology in the market, driving the continued recovery
of GDH'’s business, with its revenue in the fourth quarter having returned to the pre-
COVID-19 level. According to Form 10-K of GDH, the annual total revenue reached
US$111.3 million, and the annual adjusted EBITDA was US$12.5 million. The revenue
of GDH’s non-retail industry accounted for 69.5% of the revenue for the year, in
which the IT, media and telecommunications industries accounted for 40.8% of GDH's
annual revenue, representing a year-on-year growth of 40.3%, and is the largest
industry sector of GDH.

It is worth mentioning that, GDH has been listed in the U.S. Equity Russell 2000 Index
in the second half of the year, which serves as a recognition of GDH's technological
capabilities and long-term development. In December 2020, through the acquisition of
Daxx Web Industries BV, a software development and technology consulting company
in Netherlands, GDH rapidly expanded its business coverage to Western Europe.
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Outlook and Prospects

The outlook of post-epidemic era is unpredictable, while the COVID-19 epidemic
and geopolitics are still full of uncertainties. The Group will continue to monitor the
progress of economic recovery and the impact of geopolitics on customers across
industries, and it will strive to assist companies to conduct businesses as usual.
Moreover, the Group will also take appropriate contingency measures during the
epidemic, so as to ensure the normal operations of the Group and to mitigate the
impact brought by the epidemic, while actively capturing the business opportunities
arisen from the new business model under the epidemic.

Overall, the Group will continue to adopt a two-business-lines layout with its focus
on the business development in the Asia Pacific region as main business line, and
the U.S. and Europe business as its auxiliary business line. As the largest shareholder
of GDH, the Group believes that, GDH will provide complementary advantages in
terms of technology and talents, creates breakthroughs for the business in the Asia
Pacific region, thus enhances the high-value and professional innovative aspects of IT
integrated services.

With respect to the Asia Pacific region, the Group commenced its new development
phase, and established its new market position. As enterprises have shifted demands
to areas such as the emphasis on instant market access, agile operation and scalability,
more and more enterprises adopt the cloud to cope with operational challenges. In
2020, the Group had a major breakthrough in business development, it first launched
the new IT managed services platform which focuses on a high degree of automation,
adopts DevSecOps culture and smart services, supports cloud-based resources and
container environment, thereby laying a basic foundation for the development of
the diversified “as-a-Service”. In terms of the new IT managed services platform, the
Group successively set up the UOC and SOC?, intended to meet customer demands

for digital transformation of their businesses in the long run.

At the beginning of 2021, the Group completed the setting up of a UOC multi-cloud
management environment and will continue to invest in UOC in terms of technology
and human resources for enhancing the Group’s DevSecOps capabilities. Following last
year's partnership with Equinix, a global interconnection and world-class data center
company, to enhance UOC’s strengths, in order to integrate the Group’s advantageous
business and to achieve breakthroughs in new business realms. The Group has set
up a solution center and continued to cooperate with the world’s leading technology
manufacturers, while focusing on scientific research to facilitate and improve the
provision of “as-a-Service” under on-premises and multi-cloud environments to
enterprises, as well as gradually launching individual service brand solutions around
"Dev as-a-Service”, "Sec as-a-Service” and “Ops as-a-Service”. Through cooperation
with partners to form a cloud-native service ecosystem in the long run, the Group has
promoted the new business “as-a-Service”, satisfied customers’ new needs under
the trends of cloud computing, smart city, 5G and others, and assisted customers
in improving businesses in an efficient and automated way. On the other hand, the
Group also considered increasing its investment in the cybersecurity business or
expanding its services to the Greater Bay Area so as to meet the needs of regional

enterprises to comply with relevant regulations.
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Besides, the Company will also actively invest in and introduce new business lines,
set up new “tracks” and explore new growth points, with the goal to further satisfy
customer needs under the cloud computing environment.

With respect to regional layout, GDH'’s business for the first two months in 2021
continued to improve, and it is optimistic about its continuous growth in 2021. As the
largest shareholder of GDH, the Group believes that it will continue to obtain good
returns due to GDH's rapid development.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to uphold the notion of industrialization,
integration and regionalization — to integrate various technologies and products using
our rich industry domain knowledge so as to fit customer application scenarios; to use
regional layout for market expansion adhering to the footsteps of customer’s business
growth. The Group believes that this new market positioning can assist the Group in
continuous development amidst the global wave of digital transformation as well as
in becoming a professional and reliable unified technology service partner among our
customers.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31st December 2020, the Group's total assets of HK$3,248.0 million were
financed by current liabilities of HK$849.1 million, non-current liabilities of HK$205.1
million and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$2,193.8
million. The Group had a working capital ratio of approximately 1.32:1.

As at 31st December 2020, the Group had an aggregate composite banking facility
from banks of approximately HK$386.6 million (2019: HK$363.4 million). The
Group had pledged land and buildings in an aggregate amount of HK$166.7 million
(2019: HK$171.2 million) and investment properties with a carrying amount of
HK$54.3 million (2019: HK$55.8 million) to secure the Group’s bank borrowings.
The Group had no restricted bank deposit (2019: HK$0.6 million) pledged to secure
the performance bonds of the Group. The performance bonds issued by the Group
to customers as security of contracts were approximately HK$84.8 million as at 31st
December 2020 (2019: HK$85.9 million). The Group’s gearing ratio (total borrowings
over equity attributable to equity holders of the Company) was 6.7% as at 31st
December 2020 (2019: 31.3%).

Material Acquisition and Disposal

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 13th November 2019,
the circular of the Company dated 31st December 2019 and the announcement of
the Company dated 8th March 2020, respectively, in relation to, among other matters,
very substantial disposal and very substantial acquisition in relation to the mergers and
proposed spin-off and separate listing of Grid Dynamics and completion of disposal
and spin-off of Grid Dynamics.
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On 13th November 2019, the Company, Grid Dynamics, ChaSerg Technology
Acquisition Corp. (“ChaSerg”), CS Merger Sub 1 Inc. (“Merger Sub 1”) and CS
Merger Sub 2 LLC (“Merger Sub 2") entered into the conditional merger agreement
(the “Merger Agreement”). The transactions contemplated under the Merger
Agreement involving the acquisition of Grid Dynamics by ChaSerg, a special purpose
acquisition company the shares of which are listed on NASDAQ through the two-step
mergers (the “Mergers”) between Grid Dynamics and the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of ChaSerg, Merger Sub 1 and Merger Sub 2, are effectively an injection of Grid
Dynamics in exchange for cash and equity interests in ChaSerg and thereby effecting
the separate listing of Grid Dynamics on NASDAQ.

The shareholders of the Company approved the Mergers and proposed spin-off in the
special general meeting held on 22nd January 2020.

On 5th March 2020, all the conditions precedent set out in the Merger Agreement
have been fulfilled in accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement (the
“Completion”). Upon Completion, Grid Dynamics has effectively become a wholly
owned subsidiary of Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. ("GDH", formerly known as
ChaSerg) and Grid Dynamics is effectively listed on NASDAQ (ticker symbol of GDH:
GDYN). In connection with the Mergers, the Company received cash consideration
of approximately USD93.8 million (equivalent to approximately HK$727.5 million)
which will predominantly be used to repay the relevant liabilities. Immediately upon
Completion, the Company was interested in approximately 38.3% of the issued share
capital of GDH as at the date of Completion, being the single largest shareholder of
GDH, and was entitled to appoint up to two directors to the board of GDH. As Grid
Dynamics is no longer a subsidiary of the Company, the Company will account for the
results of GDH as an associate in the results of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31st December 2020, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had other material acquisition or disposal.

Fund Raising Activities

Redemption of Convertible Bonds

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 23rd March 2020 in
relation to the full redemption of convertible bonds.

On 23rd March 2020, the maturity date of the convertible bonds, the Company has
made full redemption of outstanding principal amount of the convertible bonds of
HK$230,000,000 with accrued interests. Subsequently, no convertible bonds were
outstanding, and all redeemed convertible bonds were cancelled.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31st December 2020, there was no
other conversion or redemption of the convertible bonds.
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Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with internally generated resources and
credit facilities provided by banks. Bank facilities available for the Group include trust
receipt loans, clean import loans, overdrafts and term loans. The interest rates of most
of them are fixed by reference to the respective countries’ Interbank Offer Rate. The
bank deposits are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and United
States dollars (“USD"). The bank borrowings are denominated in HKD.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and USD. Foreign exchange
exposure to USD of the Group will continue to be minimal as long as the policy of
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to link HKD to USD
remains in effect. There was no material exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates
and therefore no related hedging financial instrument was applied during the year
ended 31st December 2019 and 2020.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December 2020, the Group had no restricted bank deposit held as
security for performance bonds (2019: HK$0.6 million). As at 31st December 2020,
performance bonds of approximately HK$84.8 million (2019: HK$85.9 million) had
been issued by the bank on behalf of the Group to customers as security of contracts.

Capital Commitments

As at 31st December 2020, the Group had contracted capital commitment in
respect of property, plant and equipment and investment in equity investment of
approximately HK$12.3 million (2019: HK$10.8 million).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the five largest customers and single
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 28.3% and 14.0%,
respectively, of the Group’s revenue from continuing operations. The five largest
suppliers and single largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 38.3%
and 10.3%, respectively, of the Group's purchases from continuing operations.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2020 did a Director, their close
associate or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued shares) has an
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st December 2020, the Group, excluding its associates, employed 1,072
permanent and contract staff in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan, Macau
and Thailand. The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and the prevailing market conditions. Bonuses are granted on
a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include mandatory provident fund,
insurance, medical coverage and share option scheme.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR 2021
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on Wednesday,
26th May 2021. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 21st May 2021 to Wednesday, 26th May 2021, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 20th May 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR PROPOSED
FINAL DIVIDEND

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The record date for entitlement to the proposed
final dividend is Monday, 7th June 2021. For determining the entitlement of the final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
2nd June 2021 to Monday, 7th June 2021, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the
final dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 1st June 2021. The final
dividend warrants are expected to be despatched to the qualifying shareholders of the
Company on or before Monday, 21st June 2021.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2020, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting principles and 1% % B & %@E%Bﬁ$%lﬁﬁ%f\ﬂz
practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, risk management and internal B RIEH] - WHEEZ - RREE RAEPEEE /\?vt&@f
control systems and financial reporting matters including the review of the audited — ##R% %?H(@?ﬁ%&ﬁi“‘§$ié\¢¥zi)

annual results.

By Order of the Board

Wang Yueou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31st March 2021

Chief Executive Officer’'s Statement
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Activity Highlights
EEER

[ J
Opens the Group’s first Unified Operation Center (UOC) in Asia Pacific to assist RUAEEDARE G E— RS & R L
enterprises achieve digital transformation in a more agile, efficient, and secure way (UOC) ' BhEFLAESEE  EANEG - &

RERMNH FETEIGEE

Automated and CTM, Macau's leading integrated
telecommunications service provider, jointly launch the
Security Operation Center (SOC2) in Macau

A webinar is held to introduce how SOC2 can help Macau
customer to comply with the Macau Cybersecurity Law

at e MBI S HEN AT E 1B SOC2 RTS
VAR & RPN 22 20

In 2020, the Group establishes new market positioning, and rolls out an as-a-Service 2020 4F + ANEEE TN T HTTISENLL - MO T BDARS
new business model to meet the needs of enterprises’ needs for digital transformation.  ([as-a-Service ]) & ¥R, + LASTH (bR a5
Adhering to the new developmental phases, the Group launches two new IT managed ~ )&k - BEFEHERRE - £E 9 5%k UOC

services platform, UOC and SOC2, respectively. N SOC? R EFTEY IT BEEREFE -

In response to the new normal, the Group has organised various events, covering a EENERE  SEBRTRIER - BMP REERK

variety of heated tech topics, with aims to promote ASLs diversified and innovative IT HPEE  BEHEEBBESRZ T - A EAAR

services and solutions, and its new “as-a-Service”. BRGMERR T E + AR [as-a-Service | &FTARTE ©
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Mr. Leon Wang, Executive Director

and CEO of ASL, attends “HUAWEI
CONNECT 2020"” which broadcasted
live worldwide, and delivers a speech
themed on “New Normal, New Journey
— IT Operation as a Service”

B RGEENTEETETRESRT
BEEALFERRERN [ER2H
B WA THRRE - ER - 1T ES
BIERTS ) {EIREERE

Completes the spin-
off of the U.S. and
Europe business — Grid
Dynamics and its listing
on NASDAQ as GDH

HHERZE 7% Grid
Dynamics D #FAS
B ETET FTK A
GDH

Activity Highlights
EETER

Mr. Leon Wang, Executive Director
and CEO of ASL, represents ASL, one
of the few Hong Kong IT companies
being invited, to deliver a speech

at “The 23rd Beijing-Hong Kong
Economic Cooperation Symposium”

Wins the “Listed Company
Awards of Excellence 2020 —
The Main Board"” again
BERE [ EHRREMARE
2020 - £k

Hosts a year-end
virtual conference,
“New Normal,

Unify Technologies
@Everything”,
completing the last
chapter of ASLs “New
Normal” webinar
series in 2020

BT g

=% [ New Normal,

Receives the “Hong Kong Most
Outstanding Service Award 2020"

EE LE B [2020 FEEBREERBA
% %

Successfully
acquires Daxx
Web Industries
BV by GDH

GDH I bf

% Daxx Web
Industries BV
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

REAMEZEESH

CUSTOMER
B

SCOPE OF WORK
BHEE

A government authority in Macau

—RFIBTHE

Provision of hyper-converged infrastructure with 7x24 onsite support services
1R R AL S TSRS A B 724 2 R IBBUIS IR IR

A government department
— B ERPT

Provision of application development and IT services for “iAM Smart”, the
Hong Kong Government’s mobile app
he AR & M EAMBERB TR BT RE R AER [B5(E]

A government department

Provision of prompt IT support to the Hong Kong Government's anti-

—BUTEBFT epidemic work

REAROEMBHRE IR U FEBBUITHIE TE
A local bank Making use of ITSM to provide IT managed support service, covering
—AARAI Y ERTT customer’s frontend to backend needs

A ITSMRZ R AR ER X ERTE - BERIIRERmZRITHF R

A multinational IT distributor
—ESEIT 7 857

Provision of automation testing in the application

REEAEEAFHEA

A property developer
—HEERR

Provision of IT operation services Hong-Kong wide to over 2,000 users

BEBHEE 2,000 %A PRHEEMBHEERY

A public research university in Macau
—EFIFE AT KRE

Provision of high simulation and mechanical intelligence experimental
platform for the customer’s Al and robotics research center

REATEEEERATET OEESTERERMEMEECERT S

A renowned multinational enterprise

—HEEEEE

Provision of SD-WAN (Software-Defined Wide Area Network), a new and
secure network technology

SRR 2 2 RO BT L 4 RE 2% 8048 (SD-WAN)

A renowned teaching hospital in Thailand
—REMEH BB

Provision of hardware and implementation of a WIFI networking solution
TRALE AN B e WIFI 4848 AR5 2R

An international non-profit aid agency

— B IE A FRR IR

Provision of IT operation management and cloud migration via Unified
Operation Center’s support services
FHRRA S ET DN RMEARREEETENTBRE ERS

An investment banking firm from one of the top five
China-based banks
PREAERPERTZ —HIRERITHE

Enhancement of its software-defined network security

RIATFPRMEERELRE

Two major healthcare institutions of the Hong Kong
Government

MAEBRITES B #E

Provision of instant support of the Hong Kong Government’s epidemic-
monitoring system within a short time

RIEREALR S EEBBUR SRS < R4t

Two prestigious universities in Hong Kong

MAEEZERKRE

Implementation of large-scale Wi-Fi 6 projects for building smart campuses
EHAL WiFie HE @ ITHEEERE
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HTES

Mr. WANG Weihang
THMEE

Chairman
FE

Mr. Wang, aged 54, has been the Chairman of the Board of the
Company since May 2019 and a Director of the Company since
September 2009. Mr. Wang has been a director of Grid Dynamics
Holdings, Inc., an associate of the Company which listed on Nasdaq
(ticker symbol: GDYN), since March 2020. Mr. Wang is currently the
chairman of Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”), the
Company’s ultimate holding company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600410.5H) and the sole director of Teamsun
Technology (HK) Limited (“Hong Kong Teamsun”), the Company's
immediate holding company. Mr. Wang is currently a director of
certain subsidiaries of Teamsun. Prior to re-designation as the chairman
of Teamsun, Mr. Wang was the vice chairman and general manager
of the first board of directors of Teamsun, and the vice chairman
and president of the second, third and fourth board of directors
of Teamsun, and the chairman and president of the fifth board of
directors of Teamsun. Mr. Wang was also the president of the seventh
council of Beijing Software Industry Association. Mr. Wang holds an
Executive Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Tsinghua
University in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"”) and a Master’s
Degree in Semi-Conductor Materials and Microelectronic Technology
from the Information and Electronic Engineering Department of
Zhejiang University in the PRC. Mr. Wang was awarded as 1 BI#X {4+
EEHHMER (China Software Industry Outstanding Entrepreneur
Laureate®) and FEIEHFEZEINBAY (China Software Industry
Prestige Award Laureate*) by China Software Industry Association in
2009. He was also awarded the “Innovation Outstanding Personality
of Chinese Brand Award” in 2011.

FhE  BEATNE B2 NWFRABHAARAZEESER
REZZTENFNARBEARRIES - TAEA-STF=A
EEAA AR ER E (RZERSE A [GDYN]) 2 5 & X & Grid
Dynamics Holdings, Inc. ZE =% - TAER AR RRR EBBEER S
Pt £ (B XSE : 600410.5H) 2 S AR A A BIE AU B R AR i
MERRA([EBRK ) ZEER  WAARRZEBLERARER
RAERBHE (BB BRAA([BEBEBRK])E—EF - TAERA
ERINETHERRZES - RATHAEBRARZESRAN - T4
ERTERRNE EEFERNEFRRBEERE- - ZRNEE
FRRIEFRFEH  UREBANFIREFSEFRIBEH - T
TENBTAREHETENRE R LEREEEER - TAEBEPEA
REMBE ([FE])EEABREESREBAEIHERELTEMK
FEMIASEEETIRERZBH IMEFBE LM - TAER
ZETNFEFERGTEGEREPREEEZRLCERRRE
EHEENIAY - FHAR T ——FREE [P EREEFEHLA
W] o

EENGREEAESHN

Mr. WANG Yueou
FTEBLEE

Chief Executive Officer
T E

Mr. Wang, aged 46, has been the Chief Executive Officer and an
Executive Director of the Company since September 2016 and
September 2015 respectively. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 2011
and was the Financial Controller, the Chief Financial Officer and
the Joint Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Wang has been a
director of Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc., an associate of the Company
which listed on Nasdaq (ticker symbol: GDYN), since March 2020.
He is currently a director of certain subsidiaries and associates of the
Company (i.e. the directorships of i-Sprint Holdings Limited and i-Sprint
Innovations Pte Ltd), and a supervisor of Victorysoft Technology Ltd,
the joint venture company of the Company in the PRC. Mr. Wang
was a director of Teamsun, the chief financial officer and a director of
Carnation Software Ltd., a subsidiary of Teamsun, the chief financial
officer and a board secretary of Guangzhou Headway Technology Co.,
Ltd. and the regional finance manager (China) of Wistron Information
Technology & Services Corporation. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in International Accounting from Jinan University in the PRC,
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from University of Wales
in the United Kingdom and an Executive Master's Degree in Business
Administration from Research Institute of Tsinghua University in the
PRC.

ToAE  BFEN+RE DREZE—AFALARZE—RAFNLAR
PERRBZITBBENAITES - TEAERZT——FNHLEE
REBARNEE B ELE  WKBERBEATWE - TX4£8
TECTF= ABECARRIRPETER ET (RERSEA [GDYN])
2 B4 X ) Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. 2 % » IR AR A RS
TH B A 7 KBt A a) 2 2= % (Bli-Sprint Holdings Limited }%i-Sprint
Innovations Pte Ltd 2 %) * URARTRFE 2 & & QT REE
RHEBRARIZEDS - ThESTEBRKUIES  EHBAK KB
NRBMNAMFERBHER AR CMBBERES - BNERRR
BRABZHEHERZBESWE  ULEEEHERMHER AR ZH
B[ B ISACEE - TORERERREEASRE VBEST2L807 -
EEHBTASEE TRERET2N - WRPBIEEXEMIER
BEZERERABTHERBETEN o
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREBEAEB/N

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FUTES

Mr. CUI Yong
EBRAE

Mr. Cui, aged 53, has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company
since September 2015. He joined Teamsun in March 2005. He has
been appointed as a director, the executive vice president and the
general manager of the system information product (plate) and
service (plate) division in Teamsun since December 2017, January
2017 and January 2015 respectively. During his tenure with Teamsun,
Mr. Cui was the general manager of various divisions, including
telecommunications industry, value-added storage business division
and system product business division. Mr. Cui holds an Executive
Master of Business Administration from Guanghua School of
Management in Peking University in the PRC.

BRE BFELT=m B2 HFNABLRERAAFERITE
E-RR_ZEZRF=-ANBEBRK - BOFBE_ZE—tF+=
A2 tF AR DF - AREZEIREBRKES B
TRIBE R FEE BER (R TR (R3) BT - ERAENE
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B3 s mMEBAE ITHEIBRT 2 -
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BUFHTES

Mr. PAN Xinrong
BIRRRE

Mr. Pan, aged 66, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company since September 2015. He is currently an independent
director of Shanghai Bokesoft Information Co., Ltd.* (/G ERIE
HRMD AR AT). He was an executive director and the deputy
chairman of Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
Code: 934) from 2004 to 2007 and was the chief executive officer
of Petro-Cyberworks Information Technology Co., Ltd. from 2006
to 2014. Mr. Pan also held financial positions in various companies,
including China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (“SINOPEC"),
China Petrochemical Corporation, China Eastern United Petrochemical
(Group) Company Limited and SINOPEC Anging Company (formerly
known as China Petrochemical Anging Petrochemical Plate). Mr. Pan
graduated from China Huazhong University of Science and Technology
with a profession in Quantitative Economics. Mr. Pan was awarded the
“Outstanding Management Award” by China Petroleum and Chemical
Industries Integration of Informatization and Industrialization in 2011
and the First Prize of SINOPEC Technology Advancement in 2014.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

BIYEHITES o)

Mpr. DENG lJianxin
WEIFEE

Mr. Deng, aged 56, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since September 2015. He is currently an executive
director of Shenzhen Zhuoyuan Capital Investment Management Co.,
Ltd.# (RIITTE BRI EEL AR AT, an executive director of
Shenzhen Zhuoyi Management Consulting Co., Ltd.# (R 3II T &1z & 32
AR A R]), an executive director of Shenzhen Zhuoyuan Enterprise
Consultants Co., Ltd* (RIITTRTEEEM AR A A]), the chairman
of Shanghai Debimai Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* (&
HEVIRDEERAWAR AR, the chairman of Shanghai 4Smart
Technology Co., Ltd.* (/8@ sEEHE B R A F]) and the chairman
of Hangzhou Zhuoyuan Ledao Holding Co., Ltd.* (fi/l & T 43812 A%
BMR/AF]). Mr. Deng was a supervisor of Shanghai Dobe Cultural &
Creative Industry Development (Group) Co., Ltd., a partner of Beijing
JD Capital Co., Ltd., a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
("Deloitte”), a full-time member of the 7th and 8th Stock Offering
Approval Committee of China Securities Regulatory Commission and
a director of Shandong Bori Bioenergy Co., Ltd., a company listed
on the New Third Board (Stock Code: 871585.0C). Mr. Deng was
mainly responsible for managing and auditing the listing of companies
as well as the merger and acquisition services in Deloitte. Mr. Deng
holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting from Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law in the PRC and an Executive Master’s Degree
in Business Administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business in the PRC.

L BER+TA R A-E—AFNAEZTARNRBBIEHN
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ESERESREEAEBRBN

Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina
MNEZE

Ms. Or, aged 51, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company since April 2017. She has been a senior vice-president
of Schneider Electric SE (collectively with its subsidiaries “Schneider
Electric”), a company listed on the Euronext Paris Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: SU) since February 2019. She joined Schneider Electric
in 1994 and held various positions with Schneider Electric, including
the director and president of Schneider Electric (Hong Kong) Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Schneider Electric between 2015 and
January 2019, the vice president of global purchasing of Schneider
Electric between 2012 and 2014, the president of Schneider Electric
Taiwan Co., Ltd. between 2008 and 2011 and the director of certain
subsidiaries of Schneider Electric. Ms. Or has also been appointed as
a member of Energy Advisory Committee of Environment Bureau of
The Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region since
2016. She has more than 20 years’ management experience in energy
management and automation industry. Ms. Or holds an Executive
Master’s Degree in Business Administrative from the Kellogg School
of Management at Northwestern University in the United States of
America and the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, and
a Master’s degree of Science in Management from ESSEC Graduate
School of Management in France.

Mzt BFERE+—HR > AT —+tFNABZTARNRAGELIEHN
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREBEAEB/N

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SREEAS

Mr. NGAN Wai Hing
BEERERE

Financial Controller and Company Secretary
B BRI R 1 A&

Mr. Ngan, aged 49, has been the Financial Controller and the
Company Secretary of the Company since September 2016. Mr.
Ngan joined the Company in 2009 and was a financial controller
of a subsidiary of the Company. He was also the Joint Company
Secretary of the Company from September 2014 to August 2016.
Mr. Ngan holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Financial Administration (major
in accounting) from University of New England in Australia and is a
certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a certified practicing accountant of CPA Australia.

BLs BEEHNR - BT R"FALALRHERR R BELE
RARME - BEER_ZTNFMBAARRF KRG HERR R —REH
BRI ZPIGEIE - FHREAT—NFAAZT—"FNALME
ARBZBERRMWE - BEERERMNTEREAR M BERS
TR (EEEFER)  WIAABTB GRS EME o M &5t
B A EMES D o

#  For identification purpose only # EHEE
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance to the
Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to identifying and
formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles and code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). During the year
ended 31st December 2020, the Company has complied with all the code provisions,
save and except for code provision A.6.7, details of which are explained below. The
Company regularly monitors and reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure
these continue to meet the increasing stringent regulatory requirements and to
improve its practices.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board of Directors (the “Board”)
in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and transparency and
accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted the written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with a view to
enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-day operations of the Company are
delegated to the management.

The Board reserves its decisions for all major matters of the Company, including
the approval of long term objectives and strategies, changes to capital and overall
corporate structure, risk management and internal control systems, material
transactions (in particular those which may involve conflicts of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services from the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals have to be obtained
from the Board prior to entering into any significant transactions by the above-
mentioned officers.

o =

1FE #&l:l

ARBRARFZEEEBHARNRRRERZER
M WNHAES S WEBREHEDSEREHE
ZIERERER o

AABZEEEAFRIRREBBEISMERR
AP ]) s EmAR R LR ) M8 145
Fz(bEERERTRD ([(FADD Pr#z RAIKST
AEXMGIE BE-_Z-TF+_A=1+—HLF
B ARFEEFHAESFRNGE - HERBETRIEE
ABTIRZRTE BHFBRBN T XME - KRAF
HER R EAEER %*%E NEREETA RSB
JEEE%E’Jﬁ***%EE&E&DA

ARBRAHEZS ([EER ) MEEEEAE B
AATHREAMBG A5 H] - WHERATE RBEEM
FrBRE MEE N -

AABZz EBEEEARANERERN T

=g

BE

ARFEERHIERIFAE RS 2 BERE
2 MEEEEFARETEREORE -

EFRUEREAERELEREE RS - BRI
BRRES  ERARAZ AREE - HMERES

EEeRBUARFMEEREEIRER - M

SRR BB R éfﬂi&%%%ﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁ - R
ERNAMERERS  BARS (FHIRF LS R

BERZRS) ﬁﬂ’zéﬂ EEIoREBESE
BREEEH -
PRERLA2EEEIE—UABER - URES

RAMEZBRNIR - #ILBRESS
P& E AR A SRR PIRSELE -
REEBERT  FEF-RARNEFSRLER - A
NARRBZABHHABIEEER -

EEEFR

Apmlz BHHEEE - TR REETEDRIK TITHA
BRERERRE - TIRBRE R TES TR - bt
SRBENETENEARSAIAFERSEFTSH
SfE°

The Board has the full support from the Chief Executive Officer and senior EZEEBTHAHASAEEEE2 NI  UET
management to discharge its responsibilities. HBE -
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TEERRE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of two Executive Directors, one
Non-Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors. The number
of Independent Non-Executive Directors represents more than one-third of the Board
as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Weihang (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Cui Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Pan Xinrong

Mr. Deng Jianxin

Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina

None of the members of the Board has any financial, business, family or other material
relationships with each other.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 27 to 30 of this annual report.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate communications
issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules and is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors with at least one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive Director an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-Executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

Notes:

1. Mr. Liresigned as a non-executive director of the Company on 31st March 2020.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continued)

The Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a wide
range of business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through active participation in Board meetings and affairs of the Company,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflicts of interests and serving
in Board committees, all Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures for the
appointment of Directors.

The Company has adopted the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director of the Company. These procedures are available and accessible
on the Company’s website at http:/Awww.asl.com.hk.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors
are as set out in the Bye-laws of the Company. The Board established a Nomination
Committee to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board at least
annually, identify suitable candidates for the Board, and to make recommendations
on any matters in relation to the appointment and re-appointment of members of the
Board. Appointment of new Directors is reserved for the Board'’s approval.

The Nomination Committee ensures that the Board comprises members with a diverse
range of skills and experience with the appropriate knowledge necessary to oversee
the business development, strategies, operations, challenges and opportunities of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Nomination Committee takes that
person’s skills, qualifications and expected contributions to the Company into account
before making any recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment or
re-appointment of members of the Board.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection process,
with the advice provided by the Nomination Committee, by making reference to the
proposed candidates’ skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments as well as the needs of the Company and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to
carry out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general meeting
of the Company (“AGM") one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as additional Director shall be subject to re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

Each of the Non-Executive Directors is appointed under a specific term and they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM in accordance with the Bye-
laws of the Company.

The Company has formal letters of appointment for all Non-Executive Directors
(including Independent Non-Executive Directors) or service contracts for Executive
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment and the terms
of references have set out the work scope of the Board committees and delegation
were made by the Board in respect of the responsibilities of the Non-Executive
Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors) in such Board Committees.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Wang Yueou, Mr. Pan Xinrong
and Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of these Directors standing for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company’s circular regarding the notice of the forthcoming AGM contains
detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Training for Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Company. Each newly-appointed
Director receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training for its
Directors. All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors are
continually updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and the
business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefing and professional development for Directors are arranged where necessary.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Training for Directors (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2020, a training session was organised by the
Company in November 2020 titled “Insider Reporting Obligations” and provided
Directors with relevant training materials. The training session was conducted by a
professional institute with a presentation and briefing materials. All Directors have
provided the Company with records of the trainings during the Year. According to the
training records maintained by the Company, the types of trainings received by each
of the Directors during the Year are summarised as follows:
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Types of Training
IR
Attending seminar(s)/
conference and/or

Receiving updates and forums conducted
briefings from the by the Company or
Company/self-study external parties
WEHADE HEARRRRIBEN
RENEFERR BRHOHE
Name of Director HEH®E Gk SERHRE
Executive Directors HITES
Wang Weihang T 4EMm v/
Wang Yueou TER v
Non-executive Director FHTES
Cui Yong EB
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Pan Xinrong TEREE v
Deng Jianxin BT 4
Or Siu Ching, Rerina wNE v
Insurance Cover for Directors EENREBRHEE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors to comply with the requirement of the Code.

Attendance Records of Directors and Committee members
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board has at least four regular meetings a year and holds additional meetings on
other occasions as needed.

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the Board held four Board meetings.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 5 Z 5B BR A7

ARAEREEERNEYNERTHLH A BOR
B+ SARFACTFRDAE -
BESRZEEREHELE

RN REFLFAL

EXeNEFERRTRIOAEH  UBREFE
L M R ERITRIINE

BEZ-ZF+-A=+—HILEFE FTFEIHE

TR

35



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

THE BOARD (Continued)

Attendance Records of Directors and Committee members
(Continued)

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (Continued)

The individual attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings, meetings of

BEE=
BEERZEEREHFEH (B

CEANBREFHEAL (B)
BREERNHEZ -_ZF+_A=1+—HLFESET

Board committees and/or the general meetings of the Company held during the year HARGEEEMHEBETZEENSHLIREK
ended 31st December 2020 are set out below: g2 AL EEEHINT
Attendance/Number of Meetings held during the tenure of directorship
RESEHRLE BETEERY
Remuneration Audit Nomination Management Investment 2020 AGM
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee b S 223
Name of Directors £ ¥$8  HMEE®  FMEAEE  R4ZAE  EEEAR  KEEAR  BRETAR
Executive Directors HTES
Wang Weihang T 4/4 N/A N/A ”n 3/4 212 1
TER TER
Wang Yueou TER 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 44 20 1
@R TER aR
Non-Executive Directors ~ JEH{TES
Li Wei! T 17 171 171 N/A 171 N/A N/A
TER TEA TER
Cui Yong EB 0/4 N/A N/A N/A 0/4 N/A 01
TER TEA TER TR
Independent Non- BUkHTES
Executive Directors
Pan Xinrong EME 4/4 1 44 n N/A 212 1
TER
Deng Jianxin =5 3/4 N/A 3/4 171 N/A 1 0
TER TER
Or Siu Ching, Rerina & 444 171 44 N/A N/A N/A 171
ek TER ek
Note: Bff3E

1. Mr. Li Wei resigned as a non-executive director of the Company and cease to be a member
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Management Committee of
the Company with effect from 31st March 2020.

None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate Director.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with
the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors)
without the presence of Executive Directors during the year ended 31st December
2020.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum attendance of
the Directors. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other Board meetings and Board committees meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least three days (or such other period as agreed)
before each Board meeting or Board committees meeting to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The management has provided all members of the Board with monthly updates giving
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board meetings
and Board committees meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open
for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves a conflict
of interest for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered by the Board
and dealt with by a physical board meeting rather than a written resolution. The
Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a balance of power and authority.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Wang Weihang
and Mr. Wang Yueou respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined
and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning of
the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practice. With the support
of the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-
day management and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible
for developing strategic plans and formulating the organisational structure, control
systems and internal procedures and processes for the Board's approval.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy effective since 30th August 2013. All
board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
based on objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, independence and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors. One of them is female.
Three of them are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thereby promoting critical
review and control of the management process. The Board is also characterised by
significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender, professional background
and skills.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy effective since 31st December 2018. This
policy aims to set out guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends are
to be declared and paid, and the level of dividend to be paid to the shareholders
of the Company. The Board endeavours to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a sustainable
dividend policy.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board should also take into account, inter alia,
the following factors:—

(@) the actual and expected financial results of the Group;

(b) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of the Group;

(c) the Group's business strategies, including future cash commitments and
investment needs to sustain the long-term growth aspect of the business;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s
lenders;

(e) the current and future operations, liquidity position and capital requirements of
the Group; and

(f) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

Subject to the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and any applicable
laws, rules and regulations, dividends may be paid in cash or be satisfied wholly
or partly in the form of allotment of shares of the Company. The Board may also
consider the issuance of bonus shares on a basis permitted by the applicable laws
and regulations. The dividend shall include scrip dividends, distributions in specie or in
kind, capital distributions and capitalisation issues.

The Board may from time to time determine and pay to the Company’s shareholders
interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the position of the
Company. The Board may recommend the payment of final dividends which are
required to be approved by shareholders of the Company in general meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established five committees, namely Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Management Committee and Investment
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms of reference.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange and/or are available to shareholders upon request.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from time to time to
facilitate the Company’s operations.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Deng Jianxi, Mr. Pan Xinrong and Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina. Mr.
Pan Xinrong is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of all Directors and the senior management and share
options matters. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual remuneration
packages of all Directors and the senior management and other related matters. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman of the Board and/or the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company about these recommendations on remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31st
December 2020. At the meeting, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the
Directors’ remuneration packages (including their service agreements) and bonuses
payable and matters concerning share options of a subsidiary, and determined, with
delegated responsibility, the change and remuneration packages of all Directors and
senior management.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the code provision B.1.5, the annual
remuneration of a member of the senior management by band for the year ended
31st December 2020 is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of Individual

HKD2,500,001 — HKD3,000,000 1

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Pan Xinrong, Mr. Deng Jianxin and Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina, among
them one Independent Non-Executive Director possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. Mr. Deng
Jianxin is the chairman of the Audit Committee. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the management, internal auditor or external auditor
before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the relationship with the external auditor with reference to the work
performed by the auditor, its independence, fees and terms of engagement, and
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor;

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems and associated procedures;
and

(d) to report the findings and make recommendations to the Board for improvements
or implementations in relation to the above matters.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31st December 2020.
At these meetings, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the following:

(@) the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures;

(b) the reports from the external auditor, management letters and management
response;

(c) the corporate governance matters;

(d) the matters in relation to the risk management and internal control systems as
well as internal audit function; and

(e) the re-appointment of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice via video conference during
the year ended 31st December 2020.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st December 2020 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises the chairman of the Board and
two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Pan
Xinrong and Mr. Deng Jianxin. Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(@) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

() to access the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman of
the Board and the chief executive.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31st December

2020. At the meeting, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the following:

the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;
the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors;

to make recommendation to the Board about the proposed re-election of
Directors who were due to retire at the AGM; and

the time spent by Non-Executive Directors to fulfill their duties.

A set of nomination procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of the

Company has been adopted by making reference to the skills, experience, professional

knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the

Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

A nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”) has been adopted by

the Board on 31st December 2018. The key nomination criteria and principles of the

Company for the nomination of Directors constitute the Nomination Policy as set out

below:

(a)

42

to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive;

before recommending an appointment, to evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity on the Board, and, in the light of this
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required for a
particular appointment. In identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination
Committee shall:

(i) use such method or methods to facilitate the search as it may deem
appropriate;

(i) consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds; and

(i) consider candidates on merit and against objective criteria and with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board, taking care that candidates
have enough time available to devote to the position; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

(e) to ensure that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive
a formal letter of appointment setting out clearly what is expected of them in
terms of time commitment, committee service and involvement outside Board
meetings, where appropriate.

Management Committee

The Management Committee currently comprises two Executive Directors and one
Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Wang Yueou and Mr. Cui
Yong. Mr. Wang Yueou is the chairman of the Management Committee.

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing and reviewing
the Company’s day-to-day operations and financial reporting, and making
recommendations in respect of the objectives and strategies of the Group. The
Management Committee meets as appropriate and when required to discuss the
related issues.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee currently comprises two Executive Directors and two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Wang Yueou,
Mr. Pan Xinrong and Mr. Deng Jianxin. Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman of the
Investment Committee.

The Investment Committee is primarily responsible for identifying and evaluating
existing and potential investment opportunities for the Company, and making
recommendations to the Board. The Investment Committee meets as and when
required to discuss the related issues.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31st
December 2020.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting terms than
the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions by
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees
was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has delegated the duties and responsibilities in performing its corporate
governance functions to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is responsible for
corporate governance functions with the following duties:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2020.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements of
the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The Board has received from the management explanation and relevant information
which enable the Board to make an informed assessment for approving the financial
statements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of external auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
78 to 83 of this annual report.

The remuneration paid and payable to Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited, the
existing external auditor of the Company, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 31st December 2020 amounted to HK$1,500,000 and
HK$435,000 respectively.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The main features of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
to provide a clear governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as reporting
mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage its risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework, which consists of the
Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and the senior management. The Board
has evaluated and determined the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in
achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and has overseen the senior management
in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management Policy in providing direction
in identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on an annual basis,
the senior management identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of
the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritises the identified risks according to a
set of standardised criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk owners are then established
for those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has engaged an independent professional advisor to assist the
Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring of internal control systems
of the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal controls are
identified and recommendations are proposed for improvement. Significant internal
control deficiencies are reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely
basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.

Risk management report and internal control report which covered financial,
operational and compliance control for the year ended 31st December 2020, has
submitted for the Audit Committee’s and the Board’s reviews. The Group has an
internal audit function in place to provide an independent appraisal of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
in accordance with the Code. The Board had performed an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems during
the year, including but not limited to the change, since the last annual review, in
nature and extent of significant risk, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes
in its business and external environment; the scope and quality of management'’s
ongoing monitoring of risk management and internal control systems; the extent and
frequency of communication with the Board in relation to monitoring result of risk and
internal control review; significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and the effectiveness of the Company’s processes for financial reporting
and Listing Rules compliance. The Board considers the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate. The Board in particular considers
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities & Futures Ordinance (“SFO")
and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the Safe Harbours
as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that
the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality
may have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the information
to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading
through the omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear
and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is essential
for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other general
meetings. The Chairman of the Board, all Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors,
Independent Non-Executive Directors, and the Chairmen of all Board committees or
their delegate(s) will make themselves available at each AGM to meet shareholders
and answer their enquiries.

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy setting out the
Company’s procedures in providing the shareholders with clear communication and
easy access to information about the Company.

The 2020 AGM was held on 27th May 2020 (the “2020 AGM"). The notice of 2020
AGM was sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the 2020 AGM.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the view of shareholders. One Independent Non-Executive Director
and Non-Executive Director were unable to attend the 2020 AGM due to other
commitments; two Non-Executive Directors and two Independent Non-Executive
Directors were unable to attend the special general meeting of the Company held
on 22nd January 2020 due to other commitments; and a Non-Executive Director was
unable to attend the special general meeting of the Company held on 23th April 2020
due to other commitments.

The chairman of the Board, the chairmen of the Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Management Committee and Investment
Committee or their delegate, and the Company’s external auditor have attended the
2020 AGM to answer questions.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (Continued)

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at http:/
www.asl.com.hk, where extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationships with its
investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries
from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws. An updated version of the Company’s
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is proposed
for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Directors. Save as provided under the Listing Rules, resolutions put to vote
at the general meetings of the Company (other than procedural matters) are taken
by poll and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange after the general meetings.

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders

Under Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”), shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company
may convene a SGM by written requisition.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned, must state
the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses incurred in
giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under Section 74 of the
Companies Act once a valid requisition is received.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

The Companies Act allows certain shareholders to make requisition to the Company
to give notice to the shareholders in respect of any resolution which is intended to be
moved at AGM of the Company or circulate a statement in respect of any proposed
resolution or business to be considered at a general meeting of the Company.

The number of shareholders necessary to put forward such proposal for consideration
at a general meeting of the Company shall be:

(@) either any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the meeting; or

(b) not less than 100 shareholders.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders concerned and
together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposal, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company.
The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and unless the Company otherwise resolves, the shareholders concerned would be
responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents
are received.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as follows:

Contact Details

The Company Secretary

Automated Systems Holdings Limited

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2608 6585

Email: ir@asl.com.hk

For avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed
written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Ngan Wai Hing (“Mr. Ngan”), a full time employee of
the Company, who is responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman of the
Board on governance matters and facilitates induction and professional development
of Directors. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure
that Board procedures, all applicable law, rules and regulations are followed.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules since Mr. Ngan has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year
ended 31st December 2020.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Yueou

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31st March 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIB - 8 RERWRE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report, complying with the
“comply or explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “ESG Guide"), provides our stakeholders with an annual update of the Group’s
corporate social responsibility performance and gives them a better understanding of
it. Unless otherwise stated, the scope of the ESG report covers issues of environmental
and social aspects in relation to the Group’s core business operations in Hong Kong
headquarters for the year ended 31st December 2020. The ESG report should be
read in conjunction with the Company’s annual report, in particular the Corporate
Governance Report contained therein.

BUSINESS OF THE GROUP

The Company principally engages in the business of information technology (“IT") and
is one of the leading and professional IT service providers in Hong Kong. The Group’s
core business is based in Hong Kong and Macau and covers Asia Pacific, Europe and
the United States. It is dedicated to offering professional and trustworthy IT services to
global corporate clients.

BOARD MANAGEMENT & RESPONSIBILITY

The Company is committed to good corporate governance, which promotes the
long-term interests of shareholders and the healthy growth of the Company. The
Company'’s identifying significant risks related to ESG matters relies on evaluation
of management of the Company. The Board has overseen the senior management
on their ESG governance and compliance effort. The Company’s risk management
measures, which include ESG, consider annually whether the Company’s policies and
programs adequately identify and respond to the material ESG risks that it faces.
The Company’s risk management and internal control systems are important to the
sustainable development of the Company since they help ensuring protection of
the Company'’s stakeholders, for examples, a series of well-established employment
policies to protect the rights of employees, regular trainings to employees for
providing of high-quality products and services to customers to maintain sustainable
business growth, and the compliance with applicable laws and regulations to maintain
a healthy growth of the Company and strengthen the confidence of shareholders and
investors in the Company.

The ESG report has been reviewed and approved by the Board.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group's Environmental Policy stresses carbon reduction and waste reduction
with the principle of “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” to promote better utilization of
environmental resources. To further encourage stakeholder engagement in protecting
the environment, the Group is committed to promoting an environmental-friendly
ambience among its employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

In the long run, the Company will enhance its energy saving management in
minimizing the usage of lighting, air-conditioning and electronic appliances and track
its energy consumption regularly in the coming years.

In the following sections, unless otherwise specified, the environmental data covers
the Group’s business operations in overseas are excluded from scope as the scale of
each of them is insignificant as compared to the Group’s operation in Hong Kong
headquarters and some of them are not fully managed and controlled by the Group.
The total floor area coverage and the total employees of the Group’s operation in
Hong Kong headquarters are 7970 m2 and 600 respectively.

A. 1 Emissions’

Our main business being IT services, our environmental impact, on the whole, is
relatively low. Our emissions, energy consumption and water consumption mainly
come from the use of resources in our offices in Hong Kong. During the year, there
was no material non-compliance with applicable legislation or regulations.

Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions

During the year, the total GHG emissions in two respective scopes:

e Scope 1: Direct emissions in terms of fuel consumed by corporate vehicles
e Scope 2: Indirect emissions from purchased electricity

The total GHG emissions and intensity in Hong Kong headquarters in 2020 and 2019

Rk - HERERME
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are as follows: WMEREREEAT :

Issue 2020 2019
£I18 —ECEF —T-NEF
Fuel consumed by corporate vehicles Total (litre) 879 2,186
AR EEEFEME we (RF)

Purchased Electricity Total (kwWh) 2,024,161 2,054,077
HESE we (TR

GHG emissions? for Scope 1 and 2 Total (tonnes) 1,034.32 1,052.74
BREE MEE 2 MR EREEN #E (Wg)

GHG emissions for Scope 1 and 2 per floor area Total (tonnes/m?) 0.1298 0.1321
BEFAEEIEENBRESEE 1 REE2/REREINR #E (W, HK)

GHG emissions for Scope 1 and 2 per employee Total (tonnes/employee) 1.7239 1.7546
BRETHEE REHE2 AR E RSN wE (g, BT)

Notes: Bff3E

1. Due to our business nature, the significant air emissions of the Group are the GHG emissions,
arising mainly from the use of electricity and fuels derived from fossil fuels.

2. GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and was based on the
reporting requirements of the “Guideline to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas
Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes)”
issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department and the Environmental
Protection Department in Hong Kong.
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Waste Management

For the business operations of the Group’s major subsidiaries, a standard policy and
procedures for handling damaged components and materials have been established
to ensure all damaged components and materials are properly identified and
handled. For handling hazardous waste produced in Hong Kong, the Company has
registered as a Chemical Waste Producer under the Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste)
(General) Regulation and sent the waste to specialists for recycling. A scheme named
The Producer Responsibility Scheme on waste electrical and electronic equipment
implemented by Environmental Protection Department (EPD) is also integrated into
our Quality Management System (QMS) and deployed successfully through sufficient
briefings and appropriate operational change demonstrated in corresponding
procedures and internal audit. The impact and effectiveness of QMS will be reviewed
by the management of the Company annually to ensure its continual suitability
and alignment with the business strategic direction and related external issues
surroundings. There was no material non-compliance with applicable legislation or
regulations during the year.

The total hazardous waste and total non-hazardous waste produced in Hong Kong
headquarters in 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

BRYER

UNALBETEMNBRARNERZEMS - ARAE
I BRI R AR R B IR E R AR T - DARRIR
IERES R R BRI P A R B MR » R IE A
BEENAZEENM S - ARARCRIKENRE
(E2EY) (—R)RIDELRICBEWELSE - I
WYX EHPIB O - IRFREE (EPD) B
REEREfEMEESETTEBEBAIIHMD
EEEERR(QVS)F  WERTD HHINEE =&
HERERREFMAEET R mAIER - KAAF
MEEEREBFEREEEERANTZEMANL
VAR (R L5 A8 10 81 P 1 0 B 5T BRAR 07 (R AN AR B A 5
ERFERE — BT - FALEEEE RERARERE
HIRPI -

ERRHARN B EER T NFREENEZRE
BVHBERBTEEMREELT

Issue 2020 2019
ESE] ZECTF —TNF
Hazardous waste (i.e. used computers and server batteries) Total (tonnes) 29 3.8
BEREREY(AEEKRFAREZE) = (Mg)

Non-hazardous waste (i.e. used computers and components) Total (tonnes) 63 85

mEEEY (AESH &) = (mg)
A.2 Use of Resources

Energy Consumption

The total energy consumption, total energy consumption per floor area, total energy
consumption per employee and direct energy consumption in terms of electricity in
Hong Kong headquarters in 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

A.2 BRIEH
RERHFE

ERRENR TR FR T -NFHRRERER
8 SYIKEEEERREREE  S5EEER
HERENRAETENERERERNT

Issue 2020 2019
i L i
Energy consumption Total (kWh) 2,024,161 2,054,077
RETRHFE @t (TRES)

Energy consumption per floor area Total (kWh/m?) 253.97 257.73
Y AKEEEEIRERE et (FREFHK)

Energy consumption per employee Total (kWh/employee) 3,373.60 3,423.46

BRERRRER
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Water Consumption

The total water consumption and total water consumption per floor area in Hong
Kong headquarters in 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Rk - HERERME

FEK

EREHAN _E_RER T -NFHERKENE
SFHAKBEEBLRKENT

Issue 2020 2019
55 —g-F  —TNF
Water consumption Total (m?3) 690 464
FEKE #BEt (S27K)

Water consumption per floor area Total (m3/m?) 0.0866 0.0582

B AKEEEEREKE

Water management is not a material area for the Group. Much of our water
consumption is for basic cleaning and sanitation, as well as certain catering facilities
in our offices. The Company encourages all staff to save water. Since the company
strengthened cleaning and disinfection of offices during COVID-19 pandemic period,
water consumption increased.

Since the Group is principally engaged in the delivery of comprehensive one-stop IT
services, no significant levels of pollutants were discharged into the air or water and
no substantial amount of packaging materials was used during the reporting period.
Therefore, disclosures relating to these aspects, as set forth in the ESG Guide, are not
applicable to the Group and so have not been made.

During the year, the Company adopted the following procedures in its office to
minimizing carbon emission and waste generation:

e Use energy saving light across all office areas

e Utilize electronic communication where applicable such as e-form system, e-leave,
e-memo and e-cards for festival greetings

e Use high performance and quality all-in-one “multi-function printers” that
incorporate printer, scanner and copier functions into a single device. This can be
shared among teams in order to reduce a large number of devices with different
functions so as to minimize power consumption and carbon footprint as well as
follow-up maintenance

e Send used toner cartridges to specialists for further recycling when feasible

e Redeploy usable and suitable office furniture within the Company to reduce the
amount of material going to landfills

e Redeploy usable and suitable computers or notebooks within the Company

e Reuse or recycle computer parts by selection from a team of engineers; for those
parts and materials cannot be reused by the Company will be further sent to
specialist for further recycling

e Send spent batteries to specialists for recycling

e Minimise waste wherever feasible
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A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources

Although the core business of the Group has a minimal impact on the environment
and natural resources, we recognize the corporate social responsibility in minimizing
the negative environmental impact of our business operations and investment
portfolio as our ongoing commitment, in order to achieve a sustainable development
for generating long-term values to our stakeholders and community as a whole.
We regularly assess the environmental risks of our business, and adopt preventive
measures, where necessary, to reduce the risks and ensure the compliance of relevant
laws and regulations.

B. SOCIAL ASPECTS
Employment and Labour Practices

The Group values its human capital with a belief that its employees are pivotal to its
success in the IT industry. The Group has established a series of policies and measures
regarding employment policy, health and safety, development and training, labour
standards and workplace quality to provide its employees with a fair and comfortable
working environment.

B.1 Employment Policy

The Group ensures our employees in different locations are protected by the law of
employment in such jurisdictions and has implemented its comprehensive Employment
Policy which comprises recruitment, change of employment in relation to promotion
and transfer, working hours, annual leave entitlement, maternity and paternity leave,
annual salary review through annual performance appraisal, job-related allowances,
insurance schemes, compensation and termination of employment. The Group stresses
equal opportunities in relation to recruitment or promotion of an individual, without
discrimination against their age, gender, race, family status, sexual orientation,
disability, nationality or region. There was no material non-compliance with the
Employment Ordinance and other applicable legislation or regulations during the year.

B.2 Health and Safety

Being committed to maintaining a safe and healthy working environment for its
employees, the Company has established a safety and health policy and complied with
applicable laws regarding safety in the workplace in Hong Kong. For safety measures,
the Administrative Department of the Company is responsible for monitoring and
reviewing the safety and security management from time to time and performing
regular checking in the entire office to ensure furniture, fixtures and fittings are well-
maintained and replaced when necessary to avoid unnecessary physical injuries. For
health measures, smoking is prohibited in the entire office premises including enclosed
offices, conference rooms and other open areas while maintaining proper lighting
and ventilation to safeguard employees’ health. In addition, first aid kits are available
at an easily-accessible location on every floor of the entire office. Policies are also set
up to cover the prevention of injuries and illnesses and workplace violence. There was
no non-compliance with legislation or regulations related to occupational safety and
health during the year.
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B.3 Development and Training

The Group understands that training and development are indispensable for its staff
to keep abreast of the latest trend in the IT industry and the dynamic pace in the
current domestic market. In light of this, the Group provides employees with regular
training, development programmes and training sponsorship. For the development of
IT staff in Hong Kong, the Company promotes an e-Learning platform to hone their
hard and soft skills. For the development of non-IT staff, the Company encourages
department heads to work closely in assessing areas of training and development
for their subordinates to improve their capabilities and ability in career advancement.
Sponsorships are available to employees who have met certain conditions set by the
Company.

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$1.6 million on staff training in
Hong Kong's subsidiaries, and most of them were spent on strengthening staff’s
competence and aiding them in obtaining qualifications.

B.4 Labour Standard

There was no child nor forced labour in the Group’s operations in the reporting period.
Meanwhile, each candidate’s personal particulars are confirmed during recruitment
processes. The Group also ensures a fair recruitment process and working environment
without any coercive acts. There was no non-compliance with legislation or regulations
related to child labour or forced labour during the year.

Workplace Quality

The Group is concerned about its employees’ quality of life and promotes a positive
work-life balance. During the year, the Group has organized a few events to enhance
work-life balance and to strengthen employee relations. The Group always makes
its best endeavours to develop a happy and caring working environment for its
employees.

Moreover, the Group is committed to building a family-friendly environment so
as to allow its staff to achieve their full potential. During the year, the Group has
implemented a series of measures to promote a balance between work and family. In
Hong Kong, the Company provides its employees with marriage leave, compassionate
leave and welcome red packets to its employees’ newborn babies. The Company is
also proud of having set up a nursing room with comprehensive facilities and strict
privacy in its office to support its breastfeeding employees.

Operating Practices

The Group believes that monitoring and evaluation of the vendors are important
management tools to track the business progress and facilitate decision making and,
in return, the Group could serve the customers towards their satisfaction through the
products and services with the best quality. The Group will continue to maintain the
vendor management policy and proactively seek room for improvement.
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B.5 Supply Chain Management

The Company’s two major Hong Kong subsidiaries, Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
("ASLHK") and ELM Computer Technologies Limited (“ELM"), are committed to
complying with a vendor management policy established for ensuring the quality of
services offered. The policy covers the control of vendors, including nomination and
evaluation, selection, monitoring, suspension and blacklisting when necessary. A list
of approved vendors has been created and updated on an ongoing basis according to
procedures clearly stated in the policy. The Company’s another major subsidiary.

ASLHK demonstrates our commitment to high standards of quality in provision of
supply chain management services in accordance with ISO 9001:2015 from Hong
Kong Quality Assurance Agency.

During the year, the Group evaluated the top 15 product vendors for our two major
Hong Kong subsidiaries in terms of the purchase amount which equal to 78% of the
total product purchase amount. For service vendors, the Group particularly got the
relevant service delivery team(s) involved in selecting, monitoring and performance
evaluation of service vendors to ensure the quality of services provided to customers.

In view of increasing environmental concerns in society, the Company is aware of the
importance in managing environmental and social risks of its supply chain. The top
10 IT product brands from which ASLHK purchased during the year demonstrated
excellent environmental awareness. The IT product brands took initiatives in
minimizing their negative operational impacts on the environment and society. The
Company will continue to monitor its supply chain in accordance with environmental
and social standards.

B.6 Product (Service) Responsibility

Customers’ support has been of paramount importance to the Group. The Group
therefore put strong emphasis on assuring the quality and reliability of its services.

The Group has implemented its IT Security Policy on the major subsidiaries in Hong
Kong over a decade, the policy ensures the confidentiality, integrity and availability of
internal and customers’ security systems, which addresses security considerations in
physical security, access control security, data security, security on application systems,
network & communication security, security risk assessment & auditing and security
incident management. The Group’s relevant staff must comply with regulations in
relation to physical security, access control security, data security and network and
communication security, which are all covered in the IT Security Policy, to protect
the customers’ privacy. For redressing security incidents, such as network or systems
software malfunctions, the Company has adopted a set of reporting and handling
procedures, which are executed by the relevant staff and a Customer Care Unit (the
“Unit"). There was no non-compliance with legislation or regulations related to the
services provided by the Group during the year.
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In addition, the Group has long established a policy with a set of procedures to handle
customers’ feedbacks or complaints in a professional manner. The Unit reviews the
feedbacks or complaints and coordinates relevant teams to address the concerns.
The Unit will also escalate the feedbacks or complaints to appropriate level(s) of
management if necessary.

Intellectual Property Rights

Regarding intellectual property rights, employees of the Group are reminded that the
Group has exclusive ownership of its intellectual property while all materials made or
compiled by them in the course of employment is the property of the Group, details
of which are set out in Business and Ethical Code of Conduct of the Group or relevant
guidelines of its subsidiaries.

Personal Data Protection

In relation to the customers’ data protection, the Group requires its staff to handle
customers’ data in a strictly confidential manner to prevent data leakage, details of
which are set out in our IT Security Policy. The staff shall observe and comply with
the non-disclosure agreements made with the Group and the agreements entered
into between the Group and customers from time to time. Besides, the Group may
collect personal data from different parties through the enquiry box on the Company’s
website, from candidates or employees through recruitment or employment during
the year. A privacy policy statement and the relevant personal information collection
statements have been set out and uploaded on the Company’s website so that
relevant parties were timely informed before giving their personal information. During
the year, the Company follows the six general principles relating to data protection
as set down by the Hong Kong Privacy Commission. During the year, there was no
confirmed case or non-compliance with any rules and regulation of the Group as
regards the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap.486) and Personal Data (Privacy)
(Amendment) Ordinance.
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RIE - HERER

Quality Assurance

For quality assurance, the quality office of the Group has performed quality reviews
and internal audit functions monitoring the effectiveness of the corrective actions
taken and advised any risk mitigation plans can be taken for years. The Company’s two
major subsidiaries, ASLHK and ELM, have been confident in their quality management
systems, IT service management system and information security management system.

In recent years, our major subsidiaries have been recognised with the following quality

achievements:

Major Subsidiaries

W

Quality Achievement

mERE

Type of Service Provision

MREARENS @ ZFK AEBEREHIIEHTE
BFTE M AR EE B A B B PR ERENAL LE#8 e A B I
BB RN IR AT RS - AR R MBI ER
BRARIBEEERG AN EGHEEER RS B
M RBERERGLEMREEERZRTMED -

- RPN EEMBARSEIRAT REME

Awarding Bodies

TEWEBATE = R AR AR5 AREE
ASLHK ISO 9001:2015 Quiality Enterprise Information Technology Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Management System Services
ECEEES ISO 9001:2015 MEEIR  (EEMBHXIR ERmERER
ISO 9001:2015 Quality Supply Chain Management Services on Hong Kong Quiality Assurance Agency
Management System Computer-related Products
ISO 90012015 EEIE  BINHEBMERMNHIEREIERS EEmERER
ISO/IEC 20000-1:2018 Service Desk Operation, Hosting Services, Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
IT Service Infrastructure Hardware & Software
Management System Maintenance Services
ISO/IEC 20000-1:2018 RIS B HME - FEERS - ERREENE BERERER
BB RGERRSR  REHEERS
ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Information Security Monitoring Service  SGS Hong Kong Limited
Information Security
Management System
ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Bz 2ERRE ERBRRAREERAA
B2 ER RS
Capability Maturity Software Development CMMI Institute
Model® Integration and Support Services
for Development Organization
(CMMI-DEV) Version 1.3
Maturity Level 3
Capability Maturity BB R ST IE ARG A CMMITFZEFR
Model® Integration
for Development
(CMMI-DEV) 1.3 hr
FE=WETR
ELM ISO 9001:2015 Quality IT System Integration, Software Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Management System Development, Installation and
Maintenance Support Services
TRz ISO 9001:2015 AR RS - AR EEMERER
mEBRREL 5 N R SR IR
Annual Report 2020 F#f
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B.7 Anti-corruption

The Company has established an anti-corruption policy included in Business and
Ethical Code of Conduct of the Group. Employees must not solicit or accept an
advantage as a reward or inducement for doing any act or showing favour to any
person or corporate without the permission of the Company. Any gifts or souvenirs
offered or received shall be reported and passed to the Company. Besides the
antibribery policy, employees are encouraged to report without fear of reprisal any
business malpractices including questionable accounting and auditing matters. In line
with the Group’s commitment to anti-corruption, a whistle-blower policy is also placed
to allow employees to report any malpractice and misconduct to the Legal Manager of
the Company with completed confidentiality. During the year, there was no confirmed
case of corruption or non-compliance with any rules and regulation of the Group as
regards anti-corruption such as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.

A competition compliance policy has also been adopted in the Company’s subsidiaries
involving business conducted in Hong Kong, of which to prohibit any conduct that
prevents, restricts or distorts competition in Hong Kong. Online training workshop is
available on the Company’s intranet to help employees understand the competition
compliance policy and the Competition Ordinance. Any employees in doubt about
the legality of any business activity may consult the Legal Manager of the Company.
Employees are also encouraged to make a complaint or disclose any potential
violations of such policy in accordance with the Company’s whistle-blower policy and
procedure. During the year, there was no confirmed case or non-compliance with any
rules and regulation of the Group as regards the Competition Ordinance.

Community

B.8 Community investment

Apart from taking the social vulnerable groups into consideration, the Group is
dedicated to developing a social responsibility culture among its employees. Our core
subsidiary, ASLHK, has long been recognised by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service with “Caring Company Award” under Caring Company Scheme for ten
consecutive years. During the year, due to the pandemic of COVID-19, most of the
activities in the local community had been suspended. Instead of offering volunteer
work, the Company put effort in disease prevention, such as sponsor of face masks
and providing funds in order to sustainably fulfill its responsibility to the society.
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EEEWMSE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31st December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and provides corporate management
services. The principal activities of its major subsidiaries and associates are set out in
Notes 50 and 23, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2020 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 84 to 85 and 86 of the annual report respectively.

The board recommended the payment of a final dividend of 3.0 HK cent per share
held by the shareholders of the company whose names appear on the register of
members on Monday, 7th June 2021 for the year ended 31st December 2020 (2019:
3.0 HK cent per).

2021 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on Wednesday,
26th May 2021.
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 21st May 2021 to Wednesday, 26th May 2021, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the

to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 20th May 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year, a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2020 and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business as required by schedule 5 of the
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Chief
Executive Officer's Statement” and Note 51 to the consolidated financial statements
on pages 8 to 11, 12 to 23 and 226 of the annual report, respectively. For the financial
key performance indicators for an understanding of the development, performance or
position of the Group’s business, it can also be found under the same sections and the
financial summary on page 7 of the annual report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
relationships with the Group’s key stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have significant impact on the Company are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 50 to 59 respectively.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant
laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.

To achieve the Company’s vision of becoming the most competitive entity in
Asia information technology (“IT") sector, strengthening business practices in
environmental protection and corporate social responsibilities are always an integral
part of the Group’s corporate business strategy.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31st December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 89 to 90 of
the annual report.

As at 31st December 2020, the Group’s special reserve and retained earnings totalled
approximately HK$1,454,780,000 (2019: HK$622,286,000).

The Company’s reserves are available for distribution to the shareholders as at 31st
December 2020 included special reserve and retained earnings totaling approximately
HK$100,494,000 (2019: HK$78,293,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the Group spent approximately
HK$16,196,000 (2019: HK$22,776,000) on property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements during the year ended 31st December 2020 in
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of the Group's purchases and sales attributable to major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the five largest customers and single
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 28.3% and 14.0% of the
Group's revenue from continuing operations respectively. The five largest suppliers and
single largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 38.3% and 10.3%
of the Group’s purchases from continuing operations respectively.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2020 did a Director, an associate of
a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued shares) had an interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements during the year ended 31st December 2020 in share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31st December 2020 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Wang Weihang
Wang Yueou

Non-Executive Director
Cui Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Pan Xinrong

Deng Jianxin

Or Siu Ching, Rerina

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company, Mr. Wang Yueou, Mr. Pan Xinrong
and Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, be eligible, offer themselves for election.

As at the date of this report, each of the Directors has entered into either a service
contract or a letter of appointment with the Company. All Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of
Directors of the Company are set out below:

Details of changes

Mr. Pan Xinrong has been appointed as an independent director of Shanghai Bokesoft
Information Co., Ltd.* in September 2019.

Mr. Wang Yueou resigned as a director of Teamsun in February 2020 and resigned
as a the chief financial officer and a director of Carnation Software Ltd., a subsidiary
of Teamsun in October 2020. Mr. Wang has been appointed as an director of Grid
Dynamics Holdings, Inc. (“Grid Dynamics Holdings”) in March 2020.

Mr. Wang Weihang has been appointed as an director of Grid Dynamics Holdings in
March 2020. Mr. Wang has also been appointed as a member of the management
committee of the Company (“Management Committee”) on 31st March 2020.
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION (continued)
Details of changes (Continued)

Mr. Li Wei resigned as a director of Teamsun in January 2020. Besides, Mr. Li resigned
as a non-executive director of the Company and cease to be a member of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) and the Management Committee with effect from 31st March 2020.

Mr. Deng Jianxin has been appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 31st March 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected and Related Party Transactions”
below, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director of the Company or his or her connected entity had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended
31st December 2020 or at any time during the year ended 31st December 2020.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 5 Z 5B BR A7

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

EHEEEH®
SEFHE (@)

FREAN-_Z_TF-ABRTEBRNES - It
S FRAEBTEARFIFNMTES  UIABETAR
AIEZZEENE ARAFHZEE(HFMEE
gHRERZEENE  RZT_TF=A=+—H
ER o

HEFEERZTATFMNEEGKE  RZZT=ZF
“A=+—H4%#%-

BEE2RG  RHRSHOES

BRI [EERBEALRS]FMEREN  RER
R T+ A+ —HILEFEAEASZFERN
TR EBERHEEEETRETEREAQR - HE
AR AR - R RHMTE A B SM B A R FTR] M ¥ A
NAEBMERBEZZAMR S - THIELPH
BMEESREE 2 EXERSELRS

63



Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31st December
2020, the following Directors were considered to have interests in the businesses
which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, particulars of which are set out below:

Name of the entities which were
considered to compete or likely
to compete with the businesses

EENBRER 2 ER

RIELETHRAESI0BKHATE RBEEZT_TF+=
A=Z+—BLFER  WTEEEREEZLIBER
BN E @SR GF ok e AR E BB R T

ZEBh G gL - EFBHIIOT

Description of businesses of the
entities which were considered to
compete or likely to compete with

of the Group the businesses of the Group Nature of Director's

Name of Director BRRETEEERERS WARETEEEREAR T interest in the entities

ESps DEZ S O BRATER 2 EBHT ESRZSER EENE

Wang Weihang Teamsun IT product service, application Chairman, director and
software development, value-added substantial shareholder
distribution and system integration

T4 EBRK BARIREmRS - ERRABLRE EER EERFERR
BENHERZGES

Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited Window company of Teamsun in Sole director
(“Hong Kong Teamsun”) Hong Kong and mainly provides
administrative support to the clients of
Teamsun in the PRC and Hong Kong
EBREARR (BE) BB EBRREEBRELR  FEMEBRK :
(TEBEBRH ) ZEPRAPBIREBRE TR E
Certain subsidiaries of Teamsun IT related Director
EBRRETHEAR TEHERRE %

Wang Yueou Teamsun IT product service, application Director
software development, value-added
distribution and system integration

Tes EBRN ANHEERRE - ERELBANE %

BEAERERES
Carnation Software Ltd. [T related Director
(a subsidiary of Teamsun)
BN ERRHERAR TREERRR %
(EBARZIMBRR)

Li Wei Teamsun IT product service, application Director
software development, value-added
distribution and system integration

e EBRK B ERRS - ERREABIRE %

HEAERFRES
Certain subsidiaries and [T related Director
associates of Teamsun
EBRRETHBLRREE DR TEHERRE %

CuiYong Teamsun IT product service, application Director, executive vice president and
software development, value-added general manager of the system
distribution and system integration information product (plate) division

EE EBRNK BARRE RS - ERREABRE R HITRBRNLASERER

BEHHEEZGES (thek) a2

Deng Jianxin Shanghai 4Smart Technology Co., Ltd. Cloud computation and cloud services Chairman

is=2il FEREREREERAR EHERERE EER
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

(Continued)

As the Board is independent from the board of directors of the aforesaid companies,
and as none of the above Directors controls the Board, the Group is capable of
carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of
the aforesaid companies.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st December 2020, the interests or short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange (“Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”), were as follows:
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(a) Shares () R 12
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total shareholding
RAER 3 AL FhER LIl Aty & RESRASHL
Teamsun, the ultimate holding Wang Weihang 77,069,358 - - - 77,069,358 7.01%
company of the Company T
ERRN - AREZ Cui Yong 360,100 - - - 360,100 0.03%
REERA ER
Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. Wang Weihang 15,894 - - - 15,894 0.03%
("GDH") T -
Wang Yueou 15,8042 - - - 15,894 0.03%
T8
(b) Underlying shares (Z) @R %
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total shareholding
NEER s AN FhER NEER Hits @zt REGHEDL
The Company Wang Yueou 4,620,000° - - - 4,620,000 0.56%
YN I8g
Cui Yong 1,320,000° - - - 1,320,000 0.16%
EE
GDH Wang Yueou 190,603 - - - 190,603 037%
88
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1.

Mr. Li Wei resigned as a non-executive director of the Company on 31st March 2020.

Common stock of GDH granted under the restricted stock units of GDH.

Share options to acquire ordinary shares of the Company under a share option scheme
adopted on 13th March 2017, further details of which are set out in section headed “Share
Option Schemes” below.

Share options to subscribe for shares of common stock of GDH under the equity incentive
plan of GDH effective on 4th March 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2020, none of the Directors and the

chief executives of the Company had any Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying

Shares.

# For identification purpose only

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
A. 2002 Share Option Scheme

66

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”) on 8th August 2002. The 2002 Share Option Scheme expired on
7th August 2012. As a result, the Company can no longer grant any further
share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme. However, all share options
granted prior to 7th August 2012 will remain in full force and effect. A summary
of the 2002 Share Option Scheme is as follows:

The purpose of 2002 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and rewards
to any employee and/or Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the Directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
A. 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
2002 Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time. The total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time. As
at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares of the Company
available to be issued upon exercise of the outstanding options under the 2002
Share Option Scheme is 355,928, representing 0.04% of total number of issued
shares of the Company as at that date.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. There is no general requirement
that an option must be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised
but the directors of the Company are empowered to impose at its discretion any
such minimum period at the time of grant of any particular option. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the directors of
the Company at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Board and shall not be less than the
higher of (a) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (b) the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share of
the Company. Details of the 2002 Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 39(i)
to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year:
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Number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

WMIEBRERARTZRE
Adjusted At 1st Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Adjusted At 31st
Date of Exercise January during during during during during December
grant Exercise Price 2020 the year the year the year the year the year 2020
Participants RHE Period g3 it 22 REE REE REE REE REE e 22
5% RERH T8 fTiE -B-H AR akiNid REX R n#EE  t-A=t-H
HKS
B
Other Employees  19.3.2012 1932013t0F  0.7041 557,100 - (278,553) (92,847) - - 185,700
HftEE 18.3.2022
2.5.2012 25201310 & 0.7281 170,228 - - - - - 170,228
1.5.2022
Total 727,328 . (278,553) (92,847) - - 355,928
B
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
A. 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

68

Notes:

1. All of the above share options were vested equally on each of the first, second and
third anniversaries of the date of grant.

2. No Director held any share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the
year ended 31st December 2020.

3. The weighted average closing price of the share of the Company immediately before
the dates on which the share options were exercised was HK$1.49.

2017 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2017 Share Option
Scheme”) on 13th March 2017. The 2017 Share Option Scheme will expire on
12th March 2027. A summary of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is as follows:

The purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Company and/or the subsidiaries to subscribe for ordinary shares of
par value HK$0.10 each of the Company. The eligible participants include any
employee, executive or officer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors of each of the
abovementioned companies).

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (if any) shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at 13th March 2017,
the date of approval of the adoption of the 2017 Share Option Scheme. The
maximum number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2017 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. The total number of shares of the Company available for issue under the
2017 Share Option Scheme is 52,618,335, representing 10% and 6.33% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
adoption of the 2017 Share Option Scheme and as at the date of this annual
report, respectively. As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares of the Company may be issued upon exercise of options which available
to be granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme is 21,136,060, representing
2.54% of total number of issued shares of the Company as at that date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

B.

2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The Board may at its absolute
discretion impose any minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which must be achieved by
the eligible participant before the option can be exercised. The period during
which an option may be exercised will be determined by the Directors at its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years
after it has been granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and shall be at least the higher of
(a) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date an offer is made; (b) the average of the closing
prices of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date an offer is made; and (c) the nominal value
of a share of the Company. Details of the 2017 Share Option Scheme are set out
in Note 39(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options under
the 2017 Share Option Scheme during the year:
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Number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

RTERRERARTZRE
Vesting Period At 1st Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Adjusted At 31st
Date of and Exercise January during during during during during December
grant Period Exercise 2020 the year the year the year the year the year 2020
Participants RiLE HEA Price iyt 2:3 REE REE REE REE REE iyt e 2:3
SHE RERH REH k@ -A-H R A &R Wit w#EE  +ZA=t-H
HKS
AT
Directors
2
Wang Yueou 31.3.2017 (Note 1) 0.970 4,620,000 . - - - 4,620,000
I88 (B&E)
Li Wei 31.3.2017 (Note 1) 0.970 907,500 . (907,500) - - -
2 (Hx1)
Cui Yong 3132017 (Note 1) 0.970 1,320,000 - - - - 1,320,000
EE (MsE1)
Other Employees  31.3.2017 (Note 1) 0.970 16,209,600 - (2,549,600) - - - 13,660,000
HitfES (Mt
2842017 (Note 1) 0.909 7,260,000 - - - - 7,260,000°°
(FzE1)
13.12.2017 (Note 1) 0.867 1,447,200 - (165,750) - - - 1,281,450
(BzE1)
Total 31,764,300 - (2,715,350) (907,500) - - 28,141,450
CES
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
B. 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes:

1.

On 31st March 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible
participants under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of
19,140,000 shares of the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.28. The share options
are divided into four tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the share
options and is associated with performance targets within a specific financial period,
the details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 31st March
2017.

On 28th April 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible participants
under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of 6,500,000 shares of
the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.20. The share options are divided into four
tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the share options and is associated
with performance targets within a specific financial period, the details of which are
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28th April 2017.

On 13th December 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible
participants under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of 1,388,000
shares of the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.04. The share options are divided
into four tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the share options and is
associated with performance targets within a specific financial period, the details of
which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 13th December 2017.

The vesting period and exercise period of each tranche of the share options granted
on 31st March 2017, 28th April 2017 and 13th December 2017, respectively, are as
follows:

BB ERTEl )
—E—tFERETE E)
B

1.

RZZE—tF=A=+—H KARFARE_-Z
—LFEBRETRETAER2RERBBR
- AREE A $£19,140,000 R AR A B D - F7{E
ER12887 - R ZBBED(EMHL - BHLE
FEn — 2 BRENENSEHBEHRRNZRRA
BEH  FERENARRTRPA-_T—LF=
RA=+—HzRER-

RZFE—+FWMA=Z+N\A " AQFARE=Z
—tFERETSAETAERSEERLER
1 - AREEA $£6,500,000 BARA RN » TEE
#1208 7T c M ZEIRESETH - SHBE
Moy — 2 AR E R B E IS BRI N 2 R B R
B FBEHERARRAHA-ZT—tFHA
Z+NBZRER -

RZZE—+F+=ZA+=H ' ARERE=F
—tFEREFTERNE TEERS2EERLER
- LARREE A ££ 1,388,000 R AN A RIS + 1T1E(E
B1.0487T o BiH ZERES (EEL - BtBE
Mo — 2 BARE R ST RN RE B E
B #EBEERARRAHA-T—+F+=
B+=B22ER -

AR —F—tF=A=+—RH —F—tFN
AZ+NBRZZ—tF+ZA+=BRHZE
BRI REARITERET

Percentage of options
of each tranche shall
be exercisable

Date of grant  Tranches Vesting Period Exercise Periods BitEB AR E
R B #ER BEH TR AFIEZEDL
31.3.2017 First tranche 31.3.2017 to & 1.4.2019 31.3.2017 to & 30.3.2027 50%
E—4t 1.4.2018 to & 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2019 to & 30.3.2027 25%

Second tranche 28.3.2018 to & 1.4.2020 28.3.2018 to & 30.3.2027 50%

Fit 1.4.2019 to = 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2020 to & 30.3.2027 25%

Third tranche 20.3.2019to & 1.4.2021 20.3.2019 to = 30.3.2027 50%

F=4 1.4.2020 to & 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2021 to & 30.3.2027 25%

Fourth tranche 25.3.2020 to & 1.4.2022 25.3.2020 to & 30.3.2027 50%

Erit 1.4.2021 to & 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2022 to & 30.3.2027 25%
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B. 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
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B. —ZEZ—tFBERETE®)

Notes: (Continued) BisE - (48)
1. (Continued) 1. (&
Percentage of options
of each tranche shall
be exercisable
Date of grant  Tranches Vesting Period Exercise Periods SR RE
#EAH R FES 1T AFIEZEDL
28.4.2017 First tranche 1.6.2018 to & 1.6.2020 1.6.2018 to & 27.4.2027 50%
gt 1.6.2019 to & 27.4.2027 25%
1.6.2020 to & 27.4.2027 25%
Second tranche 1.6.2019to & 1.6.2021 1.6.2019 to & 27.4.2027 50%
Foi 1.6.2020 to & 27.4.2027 25%
1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027 25%
Third tranche 1.6.2020 to £ 1.6.2022 1.6.2020 to & 27.4.2027 50%
F=it 1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027 25%
1.6.2022 to & 27.4.2027 25%
Fourth tranche 1.6.2021 to & 1.6.2023 1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027 50%
FEmit 1.6.2022 to & 27.4.2027 25%
1.6.2023 to & 27.4.2027 25%
13.12.2017 First tranche 1.4.2019 to & 1.4.2021 1.4.2019to & 12.12.2027 50%
F—H#t 1.4.2020 to & 12.12.2027 25%
1.4.2021 to 2 12.12.2027 25%
Second tranche 1.4.2020 to & 1.4.2022 1.4.2020 to 2 12.12.2027 50%
Fi 1.4.2021 to & 12.12.2027 25%
1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027 25%
Third tranche 1.4.2021 to & 1.4.2023 1.4.2021 to & 12.12.2027 50%
F=it 1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027 25%
1.4.2023 to 2 12.12.2027 25%
Fourth tranche 1.4.2022 to & 1.4.2024 1.4.2022 to 2 12.12.2027 50%
Emit 1.4.2023 to & 12.12.2027 25%
1.4.2024 to & 12.12.2027 25%

2. The offer for a total number of 6,500,000 options was made to eligible participants,
in which an offer of 1,000,000 options was not accepted by an eligible participant,
pursuant to the 2017 Share Option Scheme, the offer of these options was
automatically lapsed and became null and void.

3. The closing prices of the shares of the Company immediately before 31st March 2017,
28th April 2017 and 13th December 2017 on which the share options were granted
under the 2017 Share Option Scheme were HK$1.25, HK$1.08 and HK$0.90 per share
of the Company, respectively.

4. Mr. Li Wei resigned as a non-executive director of the Company on 31st March 2020
and the outstanding share options which he was entitled to exercise had automatically
lapsed according to the 2017 Share Option Scheme.

2. BEAERSEERLE6,500,000 RHERER
49 H1,000,000 RERENZHORE—BE
BSEEREN  BIE-T—FHERETE -
BRI E BB WIERE AR -

3. REE-_Z—+tH=ZA=+—10 - _Z—+tFNQ
AZ+NBRZZ—+F+ZA+=BRE=Z
— - FERERT IR EREA - AR ARD K
TEDBASR.25%7T « 1.088 7L K%0.9074 T ©

4. FEEAR-Z-ZEF=-A=+—HEELART
FFHMITESR  HABTEZHARTENBRED
RIE - - FBRETSBR TR -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
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BRERTE @)

B. 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued) B. —E—tFBREE®)
Notes: (Continued) Mzt : (88)
5. Notwithstanding that Grid Dynamics is no longer a subsidiary of the Company since 5 @EGrid Dynamicc BE=F=—FF=ARARTHER
5th March 2020, all outstanding share options which the employees of Grid Dynamics AN ZHEBAR] - Grid Dynamics{g 8 ([1EE )
(the “Employees”) were entitled to exercise remain effective due to the appointment BRTEZHRTENEREREERZERT
of the Employees as consultants of the Company. The table discloses movements in the ARIERMEREN - N T _TFEHHR
Company’s share options under the 2017 Share Option Scheme stated in the Interim EZARDNRR T FEREEIE T 2 ER
Report 2020 shall be revised as follow with the change duly underlined: 2 EBER T EREBEENT -
Vesting Period At 1st Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Adjusted At 30th
Date of and Exercise January during during during during during June
grant Period Exercise 2020 the period the period the period the period the period 2020
Participants R BES Price gtk 2:3 REE AR AR AR AR gt - 3:3
28% BEAD RATEH & -A-H aE b % 3 H HE ~AZtA
HKS
B
Directors
2
Wang Yueou 3132017 (Note 1) 0.970 4,620,000 - - - - - 4,620,000
188 (BzEn)
Li Wei 31.3.2017 (Note 1) 0.970 907,500 - - (907,500 - - -
*f (Bssx1)
Cui Yong 3132017 (Note 1) 0.970 1,320,000 - - - - - 1,320,000
EB (Fiz1)
Other Employees 31.3.2017 (Note 1) 0.970 16,209,600 - - - - - 16,209,600
HitfES (BsE1)
28.4.2017 (Note 1) 0.909 7,260,000 - - - - - 7,260,000
(Fzx1)
13.12.2017 (Note 1) 0.867 1,447,200 - - - - - 1,447,200
(1)
Total 31,764,300 - - 907,500 - - 30,856,800
R
6.  The weighted average closing price of the share of the Company immediately before 6. ANARBEITEBERERRATRG 60T H UK
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the dates on which the share options were exercised was HK$1.49.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Schemes” above, at
no time during the year ended 31st December 2020 was the Company, or any of its
holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company or their connected entities to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On 26th October 2018, the Company and Teamsun entered into a supply agreement
in relation to the sale and purchase of products between the Group and Teamsun
and its subsidiaries (“Teamsun Group”) and the provision or sharing of services (the
“Supply Agreement”). The term of the transactions contemplated under the Supply
Agreement shall commence on 26th October 2018 and shall end on 31st December
2020 (both days inclusive), unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Supply Agreement. Teamsun is a controlling shareholder and
a connected person of the Company, thus the transactions contemplate under the
Supply Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company. The
transactions contemplate under the Supply Agreement and the relevant annual caps
are subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement.

Both the Group and Teamsun Group are reputable IT infrastructure, solution and
services providers, and have well established distribution channels and networks
in Hong Kong, Southeast Asia, Europe, United States and the PRC, respectively.
The entering into of the Supply Agreement will enhance the efficiency and sales
capabilities of ASH Group’s existing distribution channels and networks by sharing
the business know-how between the Group and Teamsun Group. In addition, the
Directors believe that the cooperation between the Group and Teamsun Group would
allow the realisation of substantial synergies in terms of, among others, convenience,
support and marketing of the Group Products and services.
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Set out below are the relevant annual caps and actual transaction amounts of the
continuing connected transactions which occurred during the period from 1st January
2020 to 31st December 2020 pursuant to the Supply Agreement:

FERBEATRZ @

AN AR R e 53

FLRMERZZEH

\7777q£ H E
EE+ - AZTHBMBELEZHER

x%mﬁ%%

Actual annual
transaction

Annual cap of amount for
the transactions the year ended
for the year ended 31st December 2020
31st December 2020 BZE-_ZT_-ZF
BZE-_ZT-ZF +=A=+—8H
Name of company Description of the transactions +=HA=+—H L2 FER
NCIEE ] RBHE LE2FERE FR REeH
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T
Teamsun Amount payable by the Group in respect of 10,000 -
the purchase of products from Teamsun Group
FERBRK REBEFBEEBAKNEEERENHE
Amount receivable by the Group in respect of 10,000 -
the supply of products of the Group to Teamsun Group
ANER (B [R5 5 R Pk S5 181 444 B 7 &2 i 2 o R MR TR
Amount payable by the Group in respect of 25,000 40
the services provided by Teamsun
NG B R EE B R B Y IR TS FE AT £ 2
Amount receivable by the Group in respect of 25,000 -
the provision of services to Teamsun
NEE R FE SR AR RIS FEUCRRIR
The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected ~ AR RIZHMEBEFZBIEBETEGTRAGELNE

transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised), “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740, “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor has issued

issued

an unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The auditor of the Company has also confirmed to
the Board in writing that the above continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31st December 2020:

(i)  have received the approval of the Board;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant pricing policies of the
Group;

(iii) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(iv) have not exceeded the relevant annual caps.

All of the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(ili) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that were
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31st December 2020, none of the
related party transactions entered into by the Group set out in the section headed
“Related Party Transactions” in Note 49 to the consolidated financial statements
constitutes connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which is
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2020, so far as was known to the Directors and chief executives
of the Company, the following person (other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO:

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

FERBEALTRS @

(iv) EBEERESFE LR

AABIMEBIERTEEHC EHALER - _Lits

() AAEEN—RLEREBBIZRET
(i) IZIR— AR MR EEGFUETT - R

(i) RIFEAIZOMHLETT  HFRATFRE XA
HEARNFIRR 2 BN

B EXPES  BEZZ-ZF+-A=+—HIE
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RENWERHAHERERZM - EFHR - AQ
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RIB-ZBFE+-_A=+—H REFRARAES
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T RARBZBfn sk ABRER D B IRIEE 75 &
B IRPIZEXV B 2 3 0 BRI IR AR AN A B R B A
P B8 SR 1R85 M BB R 58 336 (R A A RIZA T8
Trz &R Mk EmsoRamT

(a) Shares (a) it
Number of
ordinary Percentage
shares of the of issued
Company held share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity Nature BEAXAT hE 81T
KRR AR BE HE EBERZROBE BAZEDH
Hong Kong Teamsun Beneficial owner Long Position 455,268,915 54.83%
BBEBRK E&@mA HE
Teamsun Interest of controlled corporation Long Position 455,268,915' 54.83%
EBRK IR N R R 7R
Beijing International Trust Trustee Long Position 107,841,7422 12.99%
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Trust") ZFEA R

It REREFEERAT
(MHEmfE5E))
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Note:

1. Teamsun was interested in the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Teamsun and was
therefore deemed to be interested in the 455,268,915 shares of the Company in which
Hong Kong Teamsun was interested.

2. Beijing Trust held 107,841,742 shares of the Company, being the trustee of a unit trust of
BOC - BJITIC Overseas Market Financing 016.

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st December 2020, there was no other person (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company or the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in the register of interest required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the convertible bonds are set out in the “Chief Executive Officer’s
Statement” on page 20 of the annual report and Note 36(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2020, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of the Company, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31st December
2020, except as noted below:

With respect to Code provision A.6.7, (i) a Non-Executive Director and an Independent
Non-Executive Director were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27th May 2020 due to other commitments; (ii) two Non-Executive
Directors and two Independent Non-Executive Directors were unable to attend the
special general meeting of the Company held on 22nd January 2020 due to other
commitments; and (iii) a Non-Executive Director was unable to attend the special
general meeting of the Company held on 23th April 2020 due to other commitments.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31st December 2020.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31st December 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

As permitted by the Bye-laws of the Company, a director of the Company may be
indemnified out of the Company’s assets against any liability incurred by the director,
to the extent permitted by Bermuda law. Such permitted indemnity provision has been
in force during the year and is currently in force at the time of approval of this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance during the year, which provides appropriate cover for certain legal actions
brought against its directors and officers.

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries in Hong
Kong (“Hong Kong Subsidiaries”), a director or a former director of the Hong Kong
Subsidiaries may be indemnified out of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries’ assets against any
liability incurred by the director to a person other than the Hong Kong Subsidiaries or
an associated company of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries, to the extent permitted by law.
Such permitted indemnity provision is currently in force at the time of approval of this
report.

DONATION

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to HK$106,103.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee met four times during the year ended 31st December
2020. During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed with the management
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group including the review of the
annual results and interim results, and discussed various auditing, financial reporting
and risk management and internal control system matters.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be tabled in the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as Auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Yueou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31st March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR

~a' GrantThornton
- BE

To the members of Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BBRGEEERRAR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated Systems
Holdings Limited (the “Company"”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 84 to 226, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31st December 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matter are the matters that, in our professional judgement, was of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
BRERSER

Accounting related to acquisition of an associate

BEBE AR ZEREE

Refer to notes 3(d), 17, 23 and 46 to the consolidated financial
statements
BRI S B HREN 3~ 17 > 2346

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the Group acquired
19,490,295 shares of Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. (“GDH")
at the consideration of approximately HK$1,813,591,000 (the
“Acquisition”), which represents approximately 38.34% of the
issued capital of GDH as at the completion date.
BE_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE - E5EMEUHE 19,490,295
fi% Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. ([GDHI) =2 & 5 KR B B &
1,813,591,000/8 7T ([WHESIE]) - HER GDHR TRl A Iz B8
1IARAN4938.34% ©

Upon completion of the Acquisition, GDH became an associate of
the Group and accounted for using equity method.

RULHBSEIRTTAK IR - GDHEX BB S E 2 Bt N R IRz A AR

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

FRRELSEE

MREZERERERMOFEHE - RREAHRE
RAVBREANERRREENSEE - Z5FERHE
BMERBERGAMRER L AR N E RRETT
EEE - BRMATEHZFFREHEBNER -

How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit

BMNEROUEERAREREE

Our audit procedures to assess the key assumptions used in determining
the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate

acquired in the Acquisition include the following:
BRI E EEWEE T IS S N R R BRI EEN BB ZARE
BERFTERZARBRRCEZRETEENTEIE

obtained and reviewed relevant contracts related to the Acquisition;

SR EMEWBEIEAR ZBEAR

evaluated the competence, capabilities, objectivity and
independence of independent external valuer engaged by the
management;

AHAREREMMEFE BN EMZ B e BEIER
B

obtained the valuation report and discussed with the independent
external valuer on the methodologies and key assumptions used;
ER 15t (B 3R 5 LA Ko B8 57 SNEB 1 (BB =1 5 P42 AR 2 77 0 B B B R
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BB E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRENER

Accounting related to acquisition of an associate
BERE AR ZERERE

Refer to notes 3(d), 17, 23 and 46 to the consolidated financial
statements

R A EIRENE3W) 17 23K 46

The cost of initial recognition of the Group’s interests in GDH of
approximately HK$1,813,591,000 represents the Group s share of
fair value of identifiable net assets in GDH and the goodwiill arising
from the Acquisition included in interests in associates amounted
to approximately HK$501,236,000 and HK$1,312,355,000,
respectively.

SE ML MHERN GDH 2 #E 2 2 X A4 1,813,591,000 8 7T * #
SRERKRESBEEGGDH 2 AI# A FEER A BEIAAREE
DR BB EIEME £ HEE D 5147 501,236,000 /8 7T &
1,312,355,000 7T ©

Management engaged an external valuer to value the assets and
liabilities acquired in the Acquisition, including the identification and
valuation of intangible assets.
ERECRFIMMEEMENBETRRE . EERBEETHR
B BE#ARGEREEZ(EE -

We identified the accounting for acquisition of an associate as a
key audit matter because the valuation of identifiable assets and
liabilities are inherently complex as it involves significant estimation
of key assumptions including the growth rate, asset lives, customer
attrition rate and discount rate. Any significant changes in these key
assumptions may give rise to material changes in the fair value of
the acquired assets and liabilities including intangible assets, which
directly impact the goodwill included in the carrying amount of
interests in associates.

BIENEE — MBS AR 2 ST RIBR A —IRMEREZEE - RE
RAIERIEERBBEZHEEAS LEER - BAHY MERER
ZEEMEFH(BEERE BES® TR ZERBERIFEER) - %
SHRBR2EMEREDAIEHAWBEERE G (BERETE
BE)ZAnBENRENES HEEZEF ABEQAFRRZE
EEZHE -
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How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit

RN ERNARERREEREE

assessed the appropriateness and reasonableness of the
methodology and the key assumptions such as growth rate and
attrition rate by comparing them with economic and industry
forecasts; and

R AR BARBERINERERERRSE 2
HEE BT AT R TRBBEITLLEY - |

BEEERAEM X

checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and reliance of the input
data used.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information in the 2020 annual report of the Company, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

31st March 2021

Lam Yau Hing
Practising Certificate No.: P06622
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

%/_‘r\ E\/,%%

For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

2020 2019
—ECEF —TNEF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B s FHET FHET
(restated)
(#&E51)

Continuing operations BEREXER
Revenue A 7 1,988,849 1,903,196
Cost of goods sold HEKA (924,392) (917,883)
Cost of services rendered RULARTE 2 B AR (807,377) (775,048)
Other income HAbA 8 5,341 7,032
Other loss, net HibFE1E 9 (3.362) (2,802)
Fair value (loss)/gain on ‘AWM AREE

investment properties (F518) M= 21 (1,500) 1,800
Selling expenses HEER (75,182) (84,839)
Administrative expenses 1THER (57,347) (65,554)
Finance income BRI 10 359 172
Finance costs JEUR LI 1 (8,520) (23,683)
Share of results of associates JE(REEE N RIEE 23 (63,480) (8,287)
Profit before income tax F?Fﬁ SB AR 12 53,389 34,104
Income tax expense FriSBiR 2 16 (28,053) (14,798)
Profit for the year from BEREEBRFRRR

continuing operations 25,336 19,306
Discontinued operations KPR
Profit for the year from B4 ZE TS N g A

discontinued operations 17 830,806 81,002
Profit for the year FRREF 856,142 100,308
Profit for the year attributable AT REEHE AL

to equity holders of the Company FraFl

— From continuing operations - REFHELEED 25,336 19,306

— From discontinued operations RERIEEEER 830,962 73,970

856,298 93,276

(Loss)/Profit for the year FIERERELEA

attributable to (E18) A

non-controlling interests

— From continuing operations - REFECEER - -

— From discontinued operations - RERIEEEETR (156) 7,032

(156) 7,032

Profit for the year FERHER 856,142 100,308

The notes on pages 92 to 226 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

st.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEBER

For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
Notes HK cents HK cents
B3 AL Al
(restated)
(#E51)
Earnings per share attributable to ARBEREFAA
equity holders of the Company: EhEERER 19
From continuing and discontinued REBESER
operations BB
— Basic - EXK 103.37 11.55
— Diluted - #E 103.28 10.96
From continuing operations REFELEEL
— Basic - HK 3.06 2.39
— Diluted - #E 3.06 2.39
From discontinued operations RERIEEEER
— Basic - 7 100.31 9.16
— Diluted -E 100.22 8.57

The notes on pages 92 to 226 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meZEBER

For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

2020 2019
—ECEF —TNEF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
iF=3 FHT FHT
Profit for the year FRRF 856,142 100,308
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hi 2w (58) ik
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently R T aRET DL B &
to profit or loss: HIEE -
Revaluation surplus of land and buildings T RIEFE GRS 20 2,149 19,249
Deferred taxation arising from revaluation T RIEFE GRS
surplus of land and buildings EAEZIRERTE 37 (355) (3,176)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to R E ES I
profit or loss: Rk HE -
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINER 2 EREZR
overseas operations (2,163) (4,087)
Release of translation reserve upon S B B R B R R B O R
disposal of subsidiaries 46 3,413 -
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income PRGBS AR EMEE
of associates (E518) e 23 (57) 193
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEBEAE 859,129 112,487
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FAREBEEER
Equity holders of the Company RRABRAFHFE A 859,285 105,754
Non-controlling interests SEPERR R (156) 6,733
859,129 112,487
The notes on pages 92 to 226 are an integral part of these consolidated financial — #H5 92 25 226 B 2 M sHiER AR & B HREK 2 A

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31st December 2020 R=Z=FF+=-A=+—H

2020 2019
—EIEH —TNEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE FET FAxT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BER& 20 297,711 321,595
Investment properties REYZE 21 54,300 55,800
Intangible assets EmREE 22 - 107,243
Goodwill mE 22 - 766,816
Interests in associates Bt N BIRERS 23 1,769,196 19,625
Equity investment IRAEI & 24 598 598
Finance lease receivables FEU B E T E RRIE 28 4,208 4,946
Deferred income tax assets mkﬁﬁ BHEE 37 513 16,341
2,126,526 1,292,964
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 26 212,725 267,938
Trade receivables FEN & 5 5 IE 27 240,472 344,219
Finance lease receivables FEM B E T E R IE 28 2,779 2,729
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments Efh EUCHIR » HRE RN FIR 29 18,032 70,135
Contract assets BREE 30 269,003 362,333
Tax recoverable AT YR [O] £ 78 7,939 1,660
Restricted bank deposits ZRFIRITFER 31 - 556
Bank balances and cash RITER KA S 31 370,521 456,058
1,121,471 1,505,628
Total assets BEE 3,247,997 2,798,592
Equity =
Share capital [N 32 83,031 82,731
Share premium A& 17 5 (B R 399,272 395,830
Reserves GG 1,711,490 926,711
Equity attributable to equity holders AATRKGE AEILER
of the Company 2,193,793 1,405,272
Non-controlling interests RS - 47,510
Total Equity R 2,193,793 1,452,782

The notes on pages 92 to 226 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31st December 2020 R=ZE=FF+=-A=+—H

2020 2019
—EIEH —ZET—hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BEE FEx FAxT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMGHAasE 37 203,886 78,299
Lease liabilities HEEE 38 1,175 3,236
205,061 81,535
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FERTE 5538 33 282,557 360,282
Other payables and accruals HAh N FIE R EGE R 34 171,511 184,612
Receipts in advance TEl s 35 239,629 176,533
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRIS R B & 4,247 25,352
Borrowings BE 36 145,938 439,770
Financial liabilities at fair value BRARBEBRIERYIRN
through profit or loss SRBE 40 - 75,017
Lease liabilities HEBE 38 5,261 2,709
849,143 1,264,275
Total liabilities wasE 1,054,204 1,345,810
Total equity and liabilities wERRAE 3,247,997 2,798,592
Net current assets REBEETFE 272,328 241,353
Total assets less current liabilities wEERREBERE 2,398,854 1,534,317
WANG Weihang WANG Yueou
FHM TERE
Director Director
EZE E

The notes on pages 92 to 226 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 5 92 25 226 B 2 M sHEK AR & B HREK 2 A
statements. ERER S ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
A RESL T 2

FHZA=+—HLFE

n‘/-ﬁ

For the year ended 31st December 2020 HZ=Z ==

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARARAHEAER
Share-
hased
Special Property Convertible payment
reserve  revaluation bonds reserve Non-
Share Share (Note (i) reserve Translation reserve IR{A Retained controling Total
capital premium BRIGE IEE reseve  ARES BER eamings Total interests equity
Bx  RhEER (Ri3E () L i3 Ei S{IEE BEF g8 ERER RREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT ThEL ThEL TAT THAT T THL TET THAL T THL
At 1st January 2019 R=E-n5-A-A 80,522 377,146 34,350 235,661 (3,060) 11,097 27,288 449,774 1,212,778 - 1,212,778
Comprehensive income: 2N :
Profit for the year FRET| - - - - - - - 93276 93276 7,032 100,308
Other comprehensive Eth2ERE/
income/(loss): (8
Revaluation surplus of THRETEERL
land and buildings - - - 19,249 - - - - 19,249 - 19,249
Deferred taxation arising T REFEEER
from revaluation surplus EEZERERE
of land and buildings - - - (3,176) - - - - (3,176) - (3,176)
Exchange differenceson ~ REBHERK 2
translation of overseas ERER
operations - - - - (3,7898) - - - (3,788) (299) (4,087)
Share of other comprehensive  FE(SBIE AR EMZE
income of associates (Note 23) Uz (Mf3t 23) - - = = 193 = = = 193 = 193
Total comprehensive Er2ERE/
income/(loss) for the year  (Eif8) 45 = - = 16,073 (3,595) - - 93,276 105,754 6,733 112,487
Transactions with owners: BEFAZRS :
Issue of ordinary shares upon  {TESEMER 2172
exercise of share options ~ EBAR (Ff£32)
(Note 32) 1" 133 - - - - (36) - 108 - 108
Recognition of equity-settled  BEBMARA AER
share-based payment A% - - = = = = 25877 = 25,877 = 25877
Lapse of share options BRZRARNZ
transferred to retained KHERE
eamings - - - - - - (97) 97 - - -
Disposal of partial interests in /&R —FK BB
a subsidiary (Note 45) s (ff3E45) - - - - - - (3,899) 44,789 40,894 40,777 81,671
Conversion of convertible ~ E[ R ER 2 EHk
bonds (Note 36(i) (B &£ 36() 2198 18,551 - - - (888) - - 19,861 - 19,861
Total transactions with ~ REEAZRZEE
owners 2,209 18,684 - - - (888) 21,849 44,886 86,740 40,777 127517
At31stDecember2019  R=ZF-hE
+-A=1+-A 82,731 395,830 34,350 251,734 (6,655) 10,209 49,137 587,936 1,405,272 47510 1,452,782
The notes on pages 92 to 226 are an integral part of these consolidated financial S5 92 25 226 B 2 M HERK AR A MIEHRE 2 A
statements. HERE S ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

MEEREER
For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KAARKEEARE
Share-
based
Special Property Convertible payment
reserve  revaluation bonds reserve Non-
Share Share (Note (i) reserve  Translation reserve IR Retained controlling Total
capital premium #hIGE NEER reserve  AIRRES RER earnings Total interests equity
Br  ROEER (W) e ERfE i ZHEE RERF BE  FERER ERuE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR FET THT TR FER AT THT TR FET AT TR
At 1st January 2020 R-B-Z%-f-A 82,731 395,830 34,350 251,734 (6,655) 10,209 49,137 587,936 1,405,272 47,510 1,452,782
Comprehensive income: ~ 2EKE
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - - - 856,298 856,298 (156) 856,142
Other comprehensive Hth2ERE/
income/(loss): (BR):
Revaluation surplus of THRETERRR
and and buildings - - - 2,149 - - - - 2,149 - 2,149
Deferred taxation arising T REFEERH
from revaluation surplus EEZERERE
of land and buildings - - - (355) - - - - (355) - (355)
Exchange differenceson ~ HEIBNER 2
translation of overseas EHZEZ
operations - - - - (2,163) - - - (2,163) - (2,163)
Release of translation HERBARRRR
reserve upon disposal B 5 Gt (Mt 46)
of subsidiaries (Note 46) - - - - 3413 - - - 3413 - 3413
Share of other comprehensive  FE(EBFEAREMZE
loss of associates (Note 23) 58 (Hfz£23) - - - - (57) - - - (57) - (57)
Total comprehensive ER2ERE/
income/(loss) for the year ~ (%5i8) @8 - - - 1,79 1,193 - - 856,298 859,285 (156) 859,129
Transactions with owners: REFAZRS
Final dvidend for theyear ~ HZ=F-NF
ended 315t December 2019 +=A=F+—RIEE
and special dividend ZRERERERIRE
(Note 18) (Ht18) - - - - - - - (85,213) (85,213) - (85,213)
Issue of ordinary shares IERERETL
upon exercise of share LBk (ME32)
options (Note 32) 300 3442 - - - - (928) - 2814 - 2,814
Recognition of equity-settled  FESALARR (A AERE
share-based payment S3pdii5 - - - - - - 11,635 - 11635 - 11,635
Lapse of share options ERZRERA
transferred to retained KiERE
earnings - - - - - - (239) 239 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR
(Notes 39 and 46) (Pi5E39 12 46) - - - - - - (50,961) 50961 - (47,350) (47,354)
Redemption of convertible B AR ES
bonds (Note 36(ii)) (B3 36(i) - - - - - (10,209) - 10,209 - - -
Total transactions with ~ REEAZRZLEE
owners 300 3442 - - - (10,209) (40,493) (23,804) (70,764) (47,354) (118,118)
At31stDecember 2020  R=F-f
+=A=1-H 83,031 399,272 34,350 253,528 (5,462) - 8,644 1,420,430 2,193,793 - 2,193,793
Note (i) The special reserve of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its  HizE() : BBRFEEEMER AR ([AAF ) REWB AR (5
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) represents the difference between the nominal value HIAEER]) 2HRIFEEER—NANEERAGK
of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s shares M EMAETEEEAR - WIE 2B AR %
issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of TR 2 {8 - Bk WS T 31T AN A R AR (D
the Company’s shares in 1997. EE MEZEZERE -
The notes on pages 92 to 226 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 5 92 25 226 B 2 M sHEK AR & B HREK 2 A
statements. ERER S ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

.\/T\ Eﬁ:%/)lb%%‘%

For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

2020 2019
—E-EF ZTNEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
LEz3 FET FET
Operating activities R
Cash generated from operations KEHEB RS 42(a) 269,268 197,846
Tax paid EAHIE
— Hong Kong profits tax - BEHEH (28,219) (2,026)
— Overseas tax - BN IR (156,266) (35,075)
Tax refunded REIFIR
— Hong Kong profits tax - BENEH 208
— Overseas profits tax - BINEIE - 1,084
Net cash from operating activities REEB2BREBWARE 84,991 161,829
Investing activities REZTH
Cash outflow in respect of acquisition of subsidiaries ~ BRIWENB AT ZIREHRH - (70,624)
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HERBRAREENFRSRA 46 232,618 =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME - BEREZE (8,866) (17,034)
Additions to intangible assets B ERE 2 IE N (3,587) (5,372)
Proceeds from disposal of partial interest in HER B QR H R
a subsidiary Z 508 45(a) - 23,961
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BFE RERESHIE
plant and equipment - 1
Interests received B UFLE 839 1,901
Dividends received from an associate B & A R iR E 23 - 154
Cash outflow in respect of professional fee related to %%Q‘%*ﬁﬁ@x%ﬁﬁi
equity transactions #IR e - (9,062)
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities BRETBH BB () FE 221,004 (76,075)
Financing activities RESEE
Repayment of bank borrowings BZRITEE (45,000) (33,750)
Principal portion of lease payments iEN=E RN ) (5,899) (5,361)
Payment for redemption of convertible bonds i B AT AR (& 5 2 1K (250,700) =
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BT ERRAS IR TR 2,814 108
Proceed from issuance of financial liabilities BITRAREBEERIER
at fair value through profit or loss FIRRM BB 2 TS IE 40 - 72,565
Proceed from disposal of partial interests in HER—EIE QA0 s
a subsidiary Z S 5RIE 45(b)&(c) - 57,710
Interests paid [EEREESS (6,654) (12,070)
Dividends paid BIRE (85,213) =
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities BMEFH RS (H) WAFE (390,652) 79,202
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%f”%i
and cash equivalents W) B (84,657) 164,956
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FHZHeRBEEEEY
the year 456,058 292,183
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SN P TR B By 2w A (880) (1,081)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FR2IRe RIREEEY 31 370,521 456,058

The notes on pages 92 to 226 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~— #H 5 92

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B AR R B EE

For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

1.

92

GENERAL INFORMATION

Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). At 31st
December 2020, its immediate holding company is Teamsun Technology (HK)
Limited (“Hong Kong Teamsun”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its
ultimate holding company is Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”),
a company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and its
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda, and 15th Floor, Topsail
Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company and provides corporate
management services to its subsidiaries. The principal activities of its major
associates and subsidiaries are set out in Notes 23 and 50 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of units of
Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors (the
“Board"”) on 31st March 2021.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are summarised in Note 3. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except for land and buildings, investment properties, equity investment
classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI™), financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), which
are stated at fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

The impacts of the adoption of the new and amended HKFRSs are discussed
below:

(a) Amended HKFRSs that are effective for the annual
periods beginning on 1st January 2020:

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the following
amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s
operations and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning on 1st January 2020:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Definition of Material
HKAS 8

The adoption of these amended HKFRSs has no material impact on how the
results and financial position of the Group for the current and prior periods
have been prepared and presented. The accounting policy for discontinued
operations is stated in Note 3(c).

2. RREE &)

RETTE BB MEE 2R EMBEHREKR
ERE TR - ANMEREEERER
REEZ SFTRRFITEEHE - P RSEHE
HAEM S R B R A RART 5 BERZMR
REfEET - DT RMRE 4 BEE -

SR ST A ST BB RS R 8] Y B
T -

(@ R=B—BE— 5 —AMEKENR
HAR T R ST BB B R s
g

WAREE  AEBEEREATIHEES:
A AgEmEBAEELERETN T —F
F—A-BRBZVRFEHARE 24
EMBWMRERZRETNT BN RS E
Al :

EEMBREER  EBITE
SB35 ({E5TA)
EBMISREER  FIREERE
Eo% - BHAGE
ZERIZE 3957 &z
B RS 2R
EWEACCHEN)
EREHERE 1 EAZTEE
REEG AR
EXEACCHEN)

RREEFERLMET BB RELE
AUAEERAFERBEFEMRRK
BN EERMBEMRD I EIERE KT
ZoMEBKRIECEES 2 ST HERAH
FHIEE3(0)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs:

2. RREE &)

(b) EHEEHRERNE M BEREE

a -

94

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements,
certain new and amended HKFRSs have been published but are not yet
effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28
HKAS 1 (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions'

Insurance Contracts and
other related amendments*
Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 22

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current*

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards 2018-2020°

Merger Accounting for Common Control®

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause*

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2021

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2022

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2023

> Effective date not yet determined

Effective for business combination/common control combination for which the

acquisition/combination date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1st January 2022

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be adopted
in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period beginning after the
effective date of the pronouncement. The new and amended HKFRSs are

not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c) Restatements due to discontinued operations

The presentation of comparative information in respect of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31st December 2019 has been
restated in order to disclose the discontinued operations separately from
continuing operations.

As the restatements do not affect the consolidated statement of financial
position, it is not necessary to disclose comparative information as at 1st
January 2019.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power over the entity, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

96

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation
of the profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the period between
non-controlling interests and the equity holders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Where
certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of the related assets
(i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, unless the investment is
classified as held for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost is adjusted
to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are
recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFTHEw

(Continued)

(b) A

(b) Business combination

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value on the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as bargain purchase gain.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being made against
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date. Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date. The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounting
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as a financial
liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value with
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

98

(b) Business combination (Continued)

(c)

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity before the
acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss when the Group obtains
control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end
of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period,
or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that
date.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale. The component comprises
operations and cash flows that can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss comprising the total of: (i) the post-
tax profit or loss of discontinued operations and (i) the post-tax gain or
loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs to sell or on
the disposal of the assets or disposal groups constituting the discontinued
operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEETHHR

(Continued)

(d) Interests in associates (d) BE& QRS

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence, but
not control or joint control, over its management, including participation in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control
or joint control of those policies.

In consolidated financial statements, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for using equity
method. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of
the acquisition-date net fair values of the investee’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is
included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. The cost of acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued by the
Group, plus any costs directly attributable to the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the determination of the Group’s
share of the associate’s profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the associate is carried
at cost and adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the associate’s net assets less any identified impairment loss, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). The Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Interests in associates (Continued)

100

After the application of equity method, the Group determines whether
it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss on the Group'’s
investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in associate is
impaired. If such indications are identified, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as being the difference between the recoverable amount (i.e.
higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) of the associate
and its carrying amount. In determining the value in use of the investment,
the Group estimates its share of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the associate, including cash flows
arising from the operations of the associate and the proceeds on ultimate
disposal of the investment.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from the date when it
ceases to have significant influence over an associate. If the retained interest
in that former associate is a financial asset, the retained interest is measured
at fair value, which is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a
financial asset in accordance with HKFRS 9. The difference between (i) the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part
interest in the associate; and (i) the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the equity method was discontinued, is recognised in the profit or
loss. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same basis
as would have been required if the associate had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by the investee would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the entity
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(e) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

(f) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HKD or HK$), which is the Company’s functional currency and
the Group’s presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, within finance
costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a net basis within other loss,
net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as FVOCI are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies

102

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss presented
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(iii

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the
translation reserve in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the translation reserve in equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or loss of
significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the accumulated exchange differences in respect of that operation
attributable to the Group are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed to non-controlling
interests are derecognised, but they are not reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFTHEw

(Continued)

(9) Property, plant and equipment (9) ¥% - RERRE

Land and buildings are stated at fair value. Property, plant and equipment,
other than cost of right-of-use assets as described in Note 3(z) and land and
buildings, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Land and buildings are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair values at the reporting
date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and buildings is
credited to the property revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assets previously recognised
as an expense, in which case the increase is credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged.
A decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt
with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Land and buildings Over the remaining term of the lease or

50 years, whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures 10% —33'/3%
Motor vehicles 20%

Computer and office equipment  162/3% — 50%
Right-of-use assets Shorter of lease term or useful life of

2 — 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in
property revaluation reserves are transferred to retained earnings.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

104

(h) Investment properties

(i)

Property that is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment properties. Investment property is
measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment property.

After initial recognition at cost, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting date
by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment. However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill arising on acquisition
of a subsidiary. Accounting for goodwill arising on acquisition of investment
in an associate is set out in Note 3(d).

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset at the
date that control is acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill is measured as
the excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units and is tested annually for impairment as
described below in Note 3(k).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of gain or loss on
disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFTHEw

(Continued)

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) () BREE (BERM)

Technical know-how and customer relationships

Technical know-how and customer relationships acquired in business
combination are recognised initially at fair value at the acquisition date.
After initial recognition, those have finite useful lives and are subsequently
carried at cost less amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation for
technical know-how and customer relationships is provided on the straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of 3 years and 15 years, respectively.

Intangible assets, with finite and indefinite useful lives, are tested for
impairment as described below in Note 3(k).

Research and development expenditure

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as incurred. Costs that are directly attributable
to development activities are recognised as intangible assets provided they
meet the following recognition requirements:

(a) demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective product for
internal use or sale;

(b) there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

(c) the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is demonstrated;

(d) the intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits through
internal use or sale;

(e) sufficient technical, financial and other resources are available for
completion; and

(f) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be reliably
measured.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is
the sum of the direct costs incurred from the date when the intangible asset
first meets the recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Direct costs include employee
costs incurred on development activities along with an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible asset is
reported at cost less amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using straight-line method over the estimated useful life of 3
years.

The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each reporting date.
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(Continued)

(k) Impairment of non-financial assets

The following assets are subject to impairment testing:

e Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries;

e Other intangible assets;

e Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets);
e Interests in associates; and

e The Company’s investments in subsidiaries

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful life or those
not yet available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
for impairment at least annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions
less costs of disposal, and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent from those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generate cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some
are tested at cash-generating unit level. Corporate assets are allocated to
individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from synergies of
the related business combination and represent the lowest level within the
Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose
and not be larger than an operating segment.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to which goodwill
has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill.
Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the
cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if
determinable.
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3. TEEHHEEK @

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

)

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. In
respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount and only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.

Financial assets and liabilities

(i) Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

. debt instruments to be measured at amortised cost; and

o equity instrument to be measured subsequently at FVOCI.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For debt instruments, the classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and its contractual cash flows
characteristics. For investment in equity instrument, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)

() Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in
profit or loss.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flow represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in other loss, net together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.

The Group's financial assets are amortised cost comprise “trade
receivables”, “other receivables and deposits”, “finance lease

receivables”, “restricted bank deposits” and “bank balances and cash”
as set out in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investment at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as other income when the Group's right to receive dividend
payments is established. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEETHHR

(Continued)
() eREEREE®
(ii) Financial liabilities (i) THEE

() Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The Group’s financial liabilities include “trade payables”, "“other payables
and accruals”, “contingent consideration payable”, “borrowings”,
“lease liabilities” and “financial liabilities at FVTPL".

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments. Financial
liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially measured at fair value,
and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the Group
designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method except
for derivatives which are not designated and effective as hedging
instruments and financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, which are
carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss.

All interest related charges are recognised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note 3(x)).

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in Note 3(z).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Trade payables and other payables and accruals

They are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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() Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Borrowings

They are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

They are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share capital at
the option of the holder, where the number of shares that would be
issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that would
be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as compound
financial instruments which contain a liability component, a derivative
component and an equity component.

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both financial
liability and equity components are classified separately into respective
liability, derivative and equity components on initial recognition. On
initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible
debts. The difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the call option for conversion of the convertible bonds into
equity, is included in equity as convertible bonds reserve.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component will remain in
equity until conversion or redemption of the bond.

When the convertible bond is converted, the equity component of
convertible bond and the carrying value of the liability component at the
time of conversion are transferred to share capital and share premium
as consideration for the shares issued. If the bond is redeemed, the
convertible bonds reserve is released directly to retained earnings.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities (Continued)
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() eRMEEREGE®E)
(i) 2REEE

Convertible preferred shares

Convertible preferred shares issued by a subsidiary of the Company
are designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL on initial recognition. The
conversion option allows the holder to convert the preferred shares into
ordinary shares and will be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
subsidiary’s own equity instruments, and therefore it does not meet the
equity classification. At the end of each reporting period, subsequent to
initial recognition, the entire convertible preferred shares are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for changes in fair value arising from the subsidiary’s own credit
risk which are presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issuance of the convertible preferred
shares designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL are charged to profit or
loss immediately.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual contracts or separated
from hybrid financial instruments, are initially recognised at fair value
on the date the derivative contract is entered into and subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives that are not designated as hedging
instruments are accounted for as financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are taken
directly to profit or loss.

(iii) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

112

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses
("ECL") associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
contract assets as recognised and measured under HKFRS 15.

The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk. Note 6(b) shows the details about how
the Group determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For trade receivables, contract assets and finance lease receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

For all other financial assets measured at amortised cost, the Group adopted
a “three-stage” model for impairment based on changes in credit quality
since initial recognition as summarised below:

e The receivables with low credit risk on initial recognition is classified in
“Stage 1" and has its credit risk continuously monitored by the Group;

e If asignificant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is identified,
the receivables is moved to “Stage 2" but is not yet deemed to be credit
impaired,;

e |f the receivables is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then
moved to “Stage 3".

Receivables in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the
portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events possible within the
next 12 months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured
based on ECL on a lifetime basis.
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e SRR
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFTHEw

(Continued)

(MEMEERSNEEZRE®)

(m)Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.

When estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based
on the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

e 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

e lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the expected lives of the items to which the
ECL model applies.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade receivables, contract assets,
finance lease receivables and other financial assets measured at amortised
cost are set out in Note 6(b).

(n) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue (see Note
3(v)) before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECL
in accordance with the policy set out in Note 3(m) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has become unconditional
(see Note 3()).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue (see Note 3(v)). A contract
liability would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In
such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see Note
3(1)). Contract liability is disclosed as receipts in advance in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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(n) Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset or a net

contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and

contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

(o) Inventories

()

(ir)

Inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and goods pending for
customers’ acceptance and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer
which are not capitalised as inventory (Note 3(o)(i)), property, plant and
equipment (Note 3(g)) or intangible assets (Note 3(j)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the Group
incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained e.g. an incremental sales
commission. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised
when incurred if the costs relate to revenue which will be recognised in
a future reporting period and the costs are expected to be recovered.
Other costs of obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate directly to an
existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated contract;
generate or enhance resources that will be used to provide goods or
services in the future; and are expected to be recovered. Costs that
relate directly to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract may include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly chargeable to the customer
and other costs that are incurred only because the Group entered into
the contract (for example, payments to sub-contractors). Other costs
of fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised as inventory, property,
plant and equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFTHEw

(Continued)

(o) Inventories (Continued) (o) FE#H)

(i) Other contract costs (Continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Impairment losses are recognised to
the extent that the carrying amount of the contract cost asset exceeds
the net of (i) remaining amount of consideration that the Group expects
to receive in exchange for the goods or services to which the asset
relates, less (ii) any costs that relate directly to providing those goods or
services that have not yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged to profit or
loss when the revenue to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is set out in Note 3(v).

(p) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that
is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 27 for further information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and Note 3(m) for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.

(q) Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
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(r)

(s)

()

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental cost directly attributable
to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as deduction, net
of tax, from the proceed.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
and other payables are classified as current liabilities unless payment is not
due within 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the places/
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i) Deferred income tax
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3. TEEFHE®

(t) BNHAREREFREH (&)
(i) B

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

For investment property measured using the fair value model in
accordance with the accounting policy above, the measurement of
the related deferred tax liability or asset reflects the tax consequences
of recovering the carrying amount of the investment property entirely
through sale, unless the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable income,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the average tax
rates that are expected to apply to the taxable income of the periods in
which the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

The determination of the average tax rates requires an estimation of (1)
when the existing temporary differences will reverse and (2) the amount
of future taxable profit in those years. The estimate of future taxable
profit includes:

- income or loss excluding reversals of temporary differences; and

- reversals of existing temporary differences.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(u) Provisions, contingent liabilities and financial

118

guarantee contract

(i)  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses. Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A
provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the
contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the net cost of continuing with the contract.
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. TEEFHE®

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u) Provisions, contingent liabilities and financial
guarantee contract (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer (or
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within other
payables. Where consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

Subsequently, financial guarantees are measured at the higher of the
amount determined in accordance with ECL under HKFRS 9 and the
amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)

(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the sales of IT products and contracts for the IT
services.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows a 5-step
process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer

2. Identifying the performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is allocated amongst the
various performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling
prices. The transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts collected
on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the
Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring the promised goods
or services to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12 months,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where the contract contains
a financing component which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method.
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3. TEEFHE®

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(v) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income recognition policies

are as follows:

0]

(ir)

Sales of goods and rendering of services

Revenue from the sale of goods for a fixed fee is recognised when (or
as) the Group transfers control of the assets to the customer.

For stand-alone sales of goods that are neither customised by the
Group nor subject to significant integration services, control transfers at
the point in time when the customer takes undisputed delivery of the
goods.

When such items are either customised or sold together with significant
integration services, the goods and services represent a single combined
performance obligation over which control is considered to transfer
over time. This is because the combined product is unique to each
customer (has no alternative use) and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for the work completed to date. Revenue for these
performance obligations is recognised over time as the customisation
or integration work is performed, using the cost-to-cost method to
estimate progress towards completion. As costs are generally incurred
uniformly as the work progresses and are considered to be proportionate
to the entity’s performance, the cost-to-cost method provides a faithful
depiction of the transfer of goods and services to the customer.

Installation service

For sales of goods together with installation service, where the
installation is simple and does not include an integration service and
could be performed by another party, such installation is accounted
for as a separate performance obligation. In this case, the transaction
price will be allocated to each performance obligation based on the
stand-alone selling prices. Where these are not directly observable,
they are estimated based on expected cost plus margin. For sales of
goods, control transfers at the point in time when the customer takes
undisputed delivery of the goods. Where the installation is complex
and goods or services are highly interdependent or interrelated (i.e. the
sales of goods are significantly affected by the successful installation
services in the contract), the installation and goods or services are not
separately identifiable and revenue is recognised upon completion of
the installation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

122

(v) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i) Maintenance service

The Group enters into fixed price maintenance contracts with its
customers. Customers are required to pay in advance and the relevant
payment due dates are specified in each contract. Revenue is recognised
over time based on the maintenance service period.

(iv) Rental income

Rental income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

(v) Finance income

Finance income implicit in finance lease is recognised as interest income
over the period of the lease so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of return of the outstanding net investment in the leases
for each accounting period.

(vi) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

(w) Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all
qualifying employees. The MPF Scheme is established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group’s contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme and other defined contribution retirement benefit
plans.

In addition, the Group offers a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under section 401(k) of the Inland Revenue Code of the United States
of America (the “US") for substantially all of its US based employees who
are eligible to participate in. The scheme is a qualified profit-sharing plan
that allows employees to contribute a portion of their wages to individual
accounts up to 60% of their eligible compensation, subject to the maximum
allowed by Internal Revenue Service. The Group is not required to make
contributions to the plan but can make discretionary contributions.
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3. TEEFHE®

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(x)

(y)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income earned on the
temporary investment of the specific borrowings, for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are complete.

Share-based payment

The fair value of services received were determined by reference to the fair
value of shares and share options granted at the grant date and expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when the shares and share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve).

At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
shares and share options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to share-based payment reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium.
After vesting date, when the shares or share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry dates, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)

(z) Leases

(i) The Group as a lessee

Definition of lease

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether a contract is, or
contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract,
that conveys the right to use an identified asset (the underlying asset)
for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

To apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets
three key evaluations which are whether:

e the contracts contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly
identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at
the time the asset is made available to the Group;

e the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period of
use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract;
and

e the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use. The Group assess whether it has
the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease component
on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability on the consolidated statement of financial position.
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the
initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred
by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made
in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any lease incentives
received).

While the Group’s land and buildings presented in property, plant and
equipment are carried at revaluation model, the Group has elected not
to apply revaluation model to right-of-use office premises held by the
Group as the Group exercises its judgements and determines that it is a
separate class of asset apart from the land and buildings which is held
for own use.
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(Continued)

(z) Leases (Continued)
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3. TEEFHE®

(z) HE®)

(i) The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee (Continued)

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis
from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the
useful life of the right-of-use assets or the end of the lease term. The
Group also assesses the right-of-use assets for impairment when such
indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at
the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available
or the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are
made up of fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable payments based on an
index or rate, and amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee. The lease payments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payment of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for lease
payments made and increased for interest cost on the lease liability. It is
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or if there
are changes in in-substance fixed payments.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is
reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use
asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases using the
practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and
lease liability, the payments in relation to these leases are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

On the consolidated statement of financial position, right-of-use assets
have been included in property, plant and equipment and lease liabilities
have been presented separately.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(z) Leases (Continued)

126

(ii) The Group as a lessor
Assets leased out under finance leases as the lessor

When assets are leased out under finance leases, the risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred out to customers. When assets are leased
out under finance leases, the present value of the lease payments is
recognised as a receivable.

(aa) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government grants are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that compensate the Group for staff cost incurred are
set-off with relevant staff costs included in the respective line item of “cost
of services rendered”, “selling expenses” and “administrative expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(ab)Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in the year
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

(ac)Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person, or a close member of that person‘s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(ac)Related parties (Continued)

(b)

the party is an entity and if any of the following conditions applies:

Q)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related
to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(1) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the
parent of the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who

may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

dealings with the entity.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's
accounting policies

128

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, the Directors
have made the following judgements that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

0

(ii)

Provision for impairment of trade receivables within the scope of ECL
under HKFRS 9

The provisioning policy for trade receivables of the Group is based
on the evaluation of the risk of default and the expected loss rate.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, which include the current
creditworthiness, the past collection history, the realisation of any
repayment pattern promised as well as forward looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period. Details of which are as set out in Note
6(b). As at 31st December 2020, the aggregate carrying amounts of
trade receivables amounted to HK$240,472,000 (net of ECL allowance
of HK$7,646,000) (2019: HK$344,219,000 (net of ECL allowance of
HK$2,158,000)).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions in which the Group
operates. Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
year in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and certain
tax losses are recognised as management considers it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax and tax in the periods in which such estimate
is changed.

Annual Report 2020 & #f

4. EREEHEET R

() B AEEE T RRBENERSF
F

REMA B ST BERBIER - ERECE
H TP &R

() BB ERE 9IRS B

FREGE 8 [N E 5 70 2 B (B 1

AEEERE 5 FE 2 BEBUR TR E
¥¢i£@J§L % K 78 B 518 K 2 (& 5h i &l
o P X S EIGRIA 2 SR iR B3R B
RAELAREHE  BEBAIZESR -
BEERGEE - TREEBEFERXZ
HBUU RN E RS R Z AT & -
ERAFBIEHRKF6D) c R=ZZT=F
F+ZA=1+—80 " EBRESHEZR
BRI (E 4 240,472,000 %8 7T (F0FBHAE
EE1BR#7,646,00087T) (ZZE—Hh
4 1 344,219,000 87T (FIRFBHEEE
1BH4% 2,158,000 7T)) °

F*

(i) PrfE#

REBANAEBE L EREN 2 BIAE
EBATEHR - EETEMSHERRS
ZEAEERE 2 HE - REEXERB
BHBRZREREREBBEZIRZSH R
tE - AEEREBEE LA D BRSNS
SMEIR 2 it T R R AT IS B AT 1R B
ZAfE - MZFRRZREBEERE
MNFRE 2B IR - MBEBEZREY
BENETE 2 FEZMSHMRLERIR
B -

M ERERABRRIRA R T RIER
FRADEE I 5 1 = Bk TS B8
Bl e SR ER T By 1 22 BB K AT 1S A S 1R AE
HERIEFTSTEE - ETEHARE 27
HET T AR - ZEEHTEZMTE
B BIREFTS A E RS HERL
R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. E K55 R A B

JU DG EM ENTS (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

(i) Revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 3(v), the Group
uses the cost-to-cost method to estimate progress towards completion
for revenue recognised over time. The progress is measured by reference
to the actual costs incurred up to the reporting date as a percentage of
total estimated costs of completion. When the outcome of a contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it will be probably recoverable.

(i) Valuation of investment properties, land and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
similar leases and other contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair
values estimated. In making its estimates, the Group considers the
information from the valuations of investment properties and land and
buildings performed by external professional valuers by using the market
comparison approach. The market comparison approach is referenced
to recent sale price of comparable properties on a price per square
foot basis, adjusted for a discount specific to the quality of the Group’s
buildings compared to the recent sales.

Had the Group used different valuation techniques, the fair value of the
investment properties and land and buildings would be different and
thus may have an impact to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

At 31st December 2020, the carrying amount of the Group’s land
and buildings and investment properties carried at revalued amount/
fair value were HK$281,700,000 (2019: HK$290,100,000) and
HK$54,300,000 (2019: HK$55,800,000) respectively.

(b) fEEH AR RFKIR
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

130

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Estimated impairment of interests in associates

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

The value in use was determined based on the estimated present value
of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by i-Sprint
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“i-Sprint Group”), including cash
flows from the operations of i-Sprint Group and estimated terminal
value. Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of i-Sprint
Group is higher than its carrying amount. Hence, no impairment loss
(2019: Nil) on the interests in i-Sprint Group was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31st
December 2020.

Recognition of share-based compensation expenses

The Company has approved and adopted the share option scheme of
Grid Dynamics International Inc. (“Grid Dynamics”), a subsidiary of the
Group prior to its disposal on 5th March 2020, on 21st December 2018
and share options were granted to the subsidiary’s management and
employees during the years ended 31st December 2019 and 2020. The
directors, with the assistance of an independent professional valuer,
have used the Binomial Option Pricing Model to determine the total
fair value of the options granted, which is to be expensed over the
vesting period as appropriate. Significant estimate on assumptions, such
as share price volatility and dividend yield, is required to be made by
the directors in applying the Binomial Option Pricing Model. Details of
share-based compensation expenses are set out in Note 39(iii).

Valuation of identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate acquired

On acquisition of the interest in an associate, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
The Group determined the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at their fair values on the date of acquisition. Significant
judgement is used to estimate the fair values of the assets and liabilities
acquired, including estimating future cash flows from the associate,
determining appropriate discount rates and other assumptions. Details
of the acquisition of an associate are set out in Notes 23 and 46.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically. As part of
this review, the directors of the Company prepare the annual budget taking into
account of the provision of funding. Based on the proposed annual budget, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the management of the
Group, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues, bank borrowings and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

As at 31st December 2020, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 6.7% (2019:
31.3%), which was calculated as follows:

5. EAEBER

AEBEEHEEAT AR AEE 2 EREES
Qe WRBB(CERLERTE 8%
ARBIRZ EER

REB 2 BEREBBEREREAREERRRZ
Rz WAHBHTRA - FEERRERIIEK
ZERARG AR EBHRARKE -

RABEEEH R R EARGRE - FRias]HH
—R ARREFEBRLESEBTREFER
B REMRRZFERE  ARFEEZEEE
KA T ERESEEAER 2 Bk - RIBEAEE
BEEZER  ARBEHBEBXRE - BITH
Bty RITEERBLOBRO REERRESITH
EREEREES  AFERRBERERE -

RIZE-ZHFEF-_A=+1—8 AEBEZHREE
MBS ER6T%(ZE—NF :313%)
TR E

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Borrowings [=3s 145,938 439,770
Equity attributable to equity holders RATRATEE AEIG RS

of the Company 2,193,793 1,405,272

Debt-to-equity ratio BTG ERAERERS L T 6.7% 31.3%

There are no changes on the Group’s approach to capital risk management
during the year.

AEEEREARRR 2 IHENF AL ENRE -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The

132

Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

(a) Market risk

0]

(ir)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and United
States dollars (“USD"). Foreign exchange exposure to USD of the Group
will continue to be minimal as long as the policy of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR Government”)
to peg the HKD to the USD remains in effect. There was no material
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates, and therefore no related
hedging financial instrument was applied during the years ended 31st
December 2020 and 2019.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation in relations to variable interest rate on bank balances and
bank borrowings. The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments including bank
balances and bank borrowings, at the reporting date and the stipulated
change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held
constant throughout the reporting period in the case of instruments that
have floating rates. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 31st
December 2020 would decrease/increase by approximately HK$4,000
(2019: HK$592,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings and bank balances.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. BIiEREE R A AEBEG
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) B

(b) Credit risk (b) EERBS

Credit risk arises from bank balances and cash, trade receivables, restricted
bank deposits, contract assets, other receivables and deposits and finance
lease receivables.

Credit risk was managed on a group basis. The Group’s policy is to deal
only with credit worthy counterparties. Credit terms are granted to new
customers after a credit worthiness assessment by the credit control
department. When considered appropriate, customers may be requested to
provide proof as to their financial position. Where available at reasonable
cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on customers are obtained and
used. Customers who are not considered creditworthy are required to
pay in advance or on delivery of goods. Payment record of customers is
closely monitored. It is not the Group’s policy to request collateral from its
customers.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. Especially
the following indicators are incorporated:

e internal credit rating
e external credit rating

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to
the debtors’ ability to meet its obligations;

e actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the
debtors;

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the
same debtors; and

e significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of
the debtors, including changes in the payment status of debtors and
changes in the operating results of the debtors.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

134

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring ECL which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract
assets using a provisional matrix.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that receivables with credit
terms are made to counterparties with an appropriate credit history and
management performs ongoing credit evaluations of the counterparties.
The credit period granted to the customers and the credit quality of
these customers are assessed, which takes into account their financial
position, past experience and available forward-looking information. The
management would make periodic collective and individual assessment
on the recoverability of trade receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience, current external information and forward-looking
information. Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue receivables.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables and contract assets have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates
for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.

As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

ECL loss rates are based on past actual loss experience. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. BIiEREE R A AEBEG

VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) =)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) SERR (&)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) JEWE ZHEREKIAE (B)
There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to trade HRAEE2EFHERE  ERKE S
receivables as the Group has large number of customers. RAEWEERNEE
Management considers the ECL allowance inherent in the Group’s contract BEERR AEEGHNEEZEEEGE
assets are not significant. For trade receivables, ECL allowance as at 31st EEERETTEN - RZE-TFR-F
December 2020 and 2019 is as follows: —hWE+=ZA=+—H  EKESHIENTE
HEEEBRENT:
Weighted
-average Trade ECL
ECL rate receivables allowance
IR TEHE BHEE
FEBEXR EWE S FHIE BERE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FERT
At 31st December 2020 R-B-Z2F+=HA=+—H
Collective assessment BRI
— Current to 1 year past due - BEiEm A —F 1% 240,148 2,604
— 1-2 years past due - B —EmF 21% 506 105
— Over 2 years past due - BB 100% 1,524 1,524
Individual assessment (BRI 57% 5,940 3,413
248,118 7,646
Weighted
-average Trade ECL
ECL rate receivables allowance
hniETaTE AR EHEE
EEEEE FEWE S8 IR
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
At 31st December 2019 R-B-AF+=-A=t—H
Collective assessment BRI
— Current to 1 year past due - BB =@ — 4 0% 344,286 156
- 1-2 years past due - B —EmF 84% 550 461
— Over 2 years past due - BRI 100% 1,541 1,541
346,377 2,158
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

136

(9]

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include finance lease receivables,
other receivables and deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank balances
and cash.

The Group applies the simplified approach to recognise lifetime ECL for
finance lease receivables that results from transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 16. Based on individual assessment, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

For other receivables and deposits, the management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical settlement records, past experience
and available forward-looking information. Management believes that the
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding other receivable balance is not
significant. Besides, management is of opinion that there is no significant
increase in credit risk on these other receivables and deposits since initial
recognition as the risk of default is low after considering the factors above.

While restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the Group only places deposits
in reputable banks and financial institutions, the identified impairment loss
was immaterial.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board,
which has built a liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves and banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and financial liabilities. The Group relies on its operating cash flows as a
significant source of liquidity.
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. BIiEREE R A AEBEG

= e
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) =@
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mBMHER(®
The table below shows the Group’s financial liabilities analysing into relevant TERAOMAEENRBARBZESHR A 28
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to THEEERAIBAERNZE Dz eBEE - &
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the PR SEDERIAE G ORMIAR
contractual undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities. SME °

On demand Over 1 year
or within  but within

1 year 5 years Carrying
BRERY BR—F Total amount
R—FR EBREFRA st SREE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET FHET FHET
At 31st December 2020 R-ZE-ZEF+=-A=+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities NTETESHBE
Trade payables FERTE SR8 282,557 - 282,557 282,557
Other payables and accruals H b N FIE R ERE R 171,511 - 171,51 171,51
Borrowings B
— Bank borrowings (Note) - RITEE (FsE) 145,938 - 145,938 145,938
Lease liabilities HEAE 5,498 1,308 6,806 6,436
605,504 1,308 606,812 606,442
At 31st December 2019 RZE—-—NF+ZA=+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities TETESRIBE
Trade payables FERTE 55038 360,282 - 360,282 360,282
Other payables and accruals HAhFETFIE R EFHE A 184,612 - 184,612 184,612
Borrowings BE
— Bank borrowings (Note) - SRITIEE (FisE) 191,113 - 191,113 191,113
— Convertible bonds - AR ES 251,327 = 251,327 248,657
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,952 3,434 6,386 5,945
990,286 3,434 993,720 990,609
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RAR EEBERBERYIIRN
TRIEE 75,017 - 75,017 75,017
1,065,303 3,434 1,068,737 1,065,626
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Note:

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on demand
or within 1 year” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31st December 2020,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of such bank borrowings amounted to
HK$145,938,000 (2019: HK$191,113,000). Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors of
the Company believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the banking facilities.

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank borrowings with
repayment on demand clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
banking facilities. The amounts include interest payment computed using contractual
rates.

MEREREER A AEER

B (&)

(c)

AEMERRE (®)
Bt 3 -

B F 4R ESRE B G R IRTIE RE LI BB A &
et A [BRERS N —F R MEFMEERN - K
—E-TF+-A=+—H ZERTEROR
BhIR AN £ 485 5 145,938,00078 7T (ZE— L4 -
191,113,000 %7t ) ° & & 2| A & B /9 B i Ak 5 -
AR R EEAERIT A BEATERIEE Z AR
B AARIEERGE - XSRITEFERIER
TIREZ EERERHSTEE BHER

TR L S IR B SR E R R SRIT B RUR R R

TTRVE P T 5 E R SR R BB IB R D4 ©
ZETHEERAE ORI RAENFISNK

On demand Over 1year Over 2 years
or within but within but within
1 year 2 years 5 years
BRERR BB—F BBRE Total
R—FR BRMER BREER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THET FHET FHET FHET
At 31st December 2020 R-Z2-EF+=-A=+-—H
Bank borrowings RITEE 48,383 47,171 57,257 152,811
At 31st December 2019 RZZE-—NAF+=A=+—H
Bank borrowings RITEE 53,836 51,485 107,341 212,662

(d) Fair value measurement

138

Financial instruments and non-financial assets measured at fair value
in the consolidated statement of financial position are categorised into
the three level fair value hierarchies as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair Value
Measurement”:

e Level 1: Fair value measured only using level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement dates.

e Level 2: Fair value measured using level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet with Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not
available.

e Level 3: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. BIiEREE R A AEBEG

VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) =@
(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d) 2REEFE®
(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities () THEERTHEEZALIEE

At 31st December 2020
R=ZB=EF+=-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 = £=B st

HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR TR FET FET

Recurring fair value measurement && M A R EEE

Financial asset at FVOCI RAARBEZBEMEZE
WHFIENSRMEE
Equity investment (Note 24) MRAER & (Pifat24) - 598 - 598

At 31st December 2019
RZZE-NF+-A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—E F_E F=E waEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THETT T T

Recurring fair value measurement &£& M A R EETE

Financial asset at FVOCI RAABEZEREMEZME
WHFIERNEREE
Equity investment (Note 24) AR & (MI7E24) - 598 - 598
Financial liability at FVTPL RAARBEEBERIIRN
cHas
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BARBEERERYIR
(Note 40) B r e & (£ 40) - - 75,017 75,017
As at 31st December 2020 and 2019, the fair value of equity RZEZZEFEFR-ZZF-NAF+=A
investment is determined by using the adjusted net assets value =+—H BEREZAREBERNE
method. The effects of unobservable inputs are not significant for EREFEEET o TAIERE AR
equity investment. HRERENBBERZE -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

140

VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

As at 31st December 2019, the valuation technique and significant
unobservable inputs of the fair value of financial liabilities at FVTPL are

as follows:

Valuation technique

RERR

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTABRGARE

6. ¥BEMEER QX AEER

=-4C-))
(d) 2 rEETE @)
() 2MEERBAEZ L EE (&)
R-Z-NF+=A=+—-8 B2
EEBBERIIRNSRE B EE

WEES R REE AR ASEN
™

Sensitivity relationship
of unobservable inputs to fair value

TABRBARBRENAEEZRRERR

As at 31st December 2019
R=ZB-NFE+=A=+—H
Option pricing model and
equity allocation model
HARE T B RRE M AR 5 B8 R

Annual Report 2020 & #f

Probability of the occurrence of
each trigger event

SEEEEFRENRE

Volatility of underlying assets

HEEEMKE T

The higher of the probability, the higher
of the fair value, and vice versa

BEME  AREBEYRS  RZTA

The higher of the volatility, the higher of
the fair value, and vice versa

MEMERS - AAEERS  RZITA
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. ,\ﬁaﬂllﬁf’qﬁ&ﬂ REER

VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) Ew
(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d) 2REEFE®
(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued) () =HEERzHEEZ 1 EBE(E)
The reconciliation of the carrying amount of the Group’s contingent RARBEERE=ZENSENAEE
consideration payable and financial liabilities at FVTPL classified within ERNSKAREREARBEERIBRT
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows: MR B EREEYRAT
Contingent Financial
consideration liabilities
payable at FVTPL Total
RANEBEEB
BRIIERN
EASARE SRBE et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FExT FHET
At 1st January 2019 R-ZZE—hF—A—H 69,565 - 69,565
Issuance of financial liabilities /T A A BEFEBER
at FVTPL JIRM R A E = 72,565 72,565
Payment of contingent SRR RE
consideration (70,624) - (70,624)
Fair value change recognised R85 HERI AR EEE
in profit or loss 921 1,861 2,782
Exchange difference EHRER 138 591 729
At 31st December 2019 R=-ZF—-AF+=-A=+—-HK
and 1st January 2020 —E-EH¥—-A—H - 75,017 75,017
Fair value change recognised 7 1Ez5fERHY
in profit or loss NREEZE - (1,805) (1,805)
Exchange difference ERER - (876) (876)
Disposal of subsidiaries SR E A R (MFE46)
(Note 46) - (61,471) (61,471)
Derecognition of financial ~ RIEFERIZ AL EBESHA
liabilities at FVTPL (Note) #E 5 BREV S RIS & (PRT) - (10,865) (10,865)
At 31st December 2020 R-ZE-FTHF+-A=+—H - - -
Note: The put options on the convertible preferred shares and common shares BT : AR M FE40 R A6 FT M - AN A)
issued by Grid Dynamics granted by the Company to the subscriber was MERHE 77 5 B Grid Dynamics FTE7T
derecognised upon the completion of the disposal as detailed in Notes 40 Z AR ARAE SRR I AR EAREE
and 46. P& FERR R AR IEFERR o
During the year ended 31st December 2020, there were no transfers REE_ZT TiJr A=+—BItF
between Level 1, 2 and 3 (2019: Nil). E-85—E BRE=[E 2 I

HE(CE— E ) -

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of other financial EERR/NEAVBIARA - A
assets and financial liabilities in the consolidated financial statements MEERSRBBE L REELIUALE
approximate their fair values. (ER
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i) Fair value of non-financial assets

The following table presents the Group’s properties measured at fair
value on a recurring basis categorised into the three level fair value
hierarchies:

6. ¥BEMEER QX AEER

B (&)

(d) RAREEE @

(i) FEHEELTIEE

TREJNAEBREFEELEARNA(E
BB z2W%  HENAAEBEN=(E
=N

At 31st December 2020
R-—®-®E+=A=+—-8

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1B BT £=E et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value measurement E&E M QA R EETE
Investment properties (Note 21) wEMZE (H5E21) - - 54,300 54,300
Land and buildings (Note 20) 3 R A2 5 (HIaE 20) - - 281,700 281,700
336,000 336,000
At 31st December 2019
RZZE-NF+-A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—E F[E EF=E wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET FABT
Recurring fair value measurement  &EHEM AR EBEE
Investment properties (Note 21) WA (K3E21) - - 55,800 55,800
Land and buildings (Note 20) + 3 R AEF (K5 20) - - 290,100 290,100
- - 345,900 345,900

The Group’s investment properties and land and buildings were stated at
valuations made at 31st December 2020 and 2019 by an independent
professional valuer at market value basis which is determined by
reference to market evidence of recent transactions for similar
properties.

The Group’s management reviews the valuation performed by the
independent valuer for the financial reporting purposes. Discussion of
valuation processes and results are held at least once every year, which
is in line with the Group’s annual reporting date.

142
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VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Fair value of non-financial assets (Continued)

The valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs of the fair

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. BIiEREE R A AEBEG

==N¢))
(d) 2AREEFE®
(i) FEFEELLEE(F)
REMER L FBFRABENGE

value of investment properties and land and buildings are as follows:—

FREEETAESERABIRNT

Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
fREF RN TAEREARE BiBIEE

Investment properties ~ Market comparison approach Discount on quality of the buildings 7% t0 12%

- Hong Kong (2019: 0% t016%)
REME M5B BFEEITE 7% ZE12%
-BE (ZZ—NF : 0% ZE16%)

Land and buildings Market comparison approach Discount on quality of the buildings 7% t0 12%

— Hong Kong (2019: 0% t016%)
T RIEF TS BV BFESTE 7% ZE12%
- & (ZZ—NF : 0% £ 16%)

UNEEZREMER T EEFZA
RBEDEATIBLEEZERFAS
RO BMEEST I R ZHEERN
EE WRASEMEEEEHRE -
YELEENRSITE  TERREND
REEFE-

The fair value of investment properties and land and buildings located
in Hong Kong is determined using market comparison approach by
reference to recent sales price of comparable properties on a price per
square foot basis, adjusted for a discount specific to the quality of the
Group's buildings compared to the recent sales of similar properties.
Higher discount on quality of the buildings will result in a lower fair

value measurement.

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the Group’s investment RARBEBRE=ZENDENIEE
properties and land and buildings classified within level 3 of the fair BREMER T REFERAAESEREN
value hierarchy is as follows: T 8
Investment Land and
properties buildings Total
REME T RiEF et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHER
At 1st January 2019 R-ZZT—hFE—A—H 54,000 280,700 334,700
Depreciation charge e = (9,849) (9,849)
Fair value gain N EERE 1,800 = 1,800
Revaluation surplus BhAH% - 19,249 19,249

At 31st December 2019 R=-ZE—hE+=-A=+—H

and 1st January 2020 R==2-2F—-HA—H 55,800 290,100 345,900
Depreciation charge e - (10,549) (10,549)
Fair value loss RAEEEE (1,500) - (1,500)
Revaluation surplus BE{HAR - 2,149 2,149
At 31st December 2020 R-ZE-_ZEF+-A=+—H 54,300 281,700 336,000
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6.

7.

144

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i) Fair value of non-financial assets (Continued)

Fair value (loss)/gain of investment properties is recognised under line
item “fair value (loss)/gain on investment properties” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Revaluation surplus of land and buildings are recognised under line
item “revaluation surplus of land and buildings” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and included under “property
revaluation reserve”.

During the year ended 31st December 2020, there were no transfers
between Level 1, 2 and 3 (2019: Nil).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

6.

7.

BEREENR A AEES
=(a)
(d) DAEESE @)

(i) FEBEEASEE(E)

BREWEN AR EE(ER), WA
SHEBEREN[REMEZAAEBEE
*E)/J‘W JIEE':PﬁE;U(’

T RBT 2 EMBRNES 2 HKE
REW [MEE LR BE PR

RBE_Z-_TF+_HA=+—HLF
B F-E F_ERF=-EzHLE
BE(CENF 8-

L ON -

The Group's revenue is analysed as follows: REBERBRASTT :

2020 2019
—_ 7 — iﬁ iﬁ_ﬁafﬁ
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(restated)
(#&E751)

Continuing operations
Sales of goods HEEM 1,035,415 1,026,082
Revenue from service contracts R E BRI E £ WA 953,434 877,114
1,988,849 1,903,196

The executive directors have been identified as the chief operating decision
maker. The executive directors have reviewed the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess the performance and allocate resources. The executive directors
have determined the operating segments based on the Group’s internal
reporting.

The Group is currently organised into two (2019: two) operating divisions —
Information Technology Products (“IT Products”) and Information Technology
Services (“IT Services”). These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports
its primary segment information to the chief operating decision maker. The
business nature of each segment is disclosed as follows:
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R ZHE R )

(Continued)

IT Products

Being the business of information technology in supplying of information

technology and associated products.

IT Services

Being the business of information technology in providing systems integration,
software and consulting services, engineering support for products and solutions
and managed services. The Group’s IT services segment includes the Group's

operations in the US through its subsidiaries prior to the disposal on 5th March

2020, Grid Dynamics and its subsidiaries (“Grid Dynamics Group”), which is a

significant geographical component of the IT service segment and classified as

discontinued operation during the year ended 31st December 2020 (Note 17).

Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

Year ended 31st December 2020

AN ER

BN REAMBHRE R R ER 2 AR R
7& o

AP R

BB R e A - B R B RTS « = & AF
ARARZIBIEREREERSE 2 A MBI
Ho AEEEMBIBERB S RIEHBE QT
Grid Dynamics & £ Fff J¥ YN ﬁ(fGrid Dynamics

Groupl) REB 2 7 - RZE_TF=AHA
HERT - SZ%?%F%Q.:MHS‘ZHW%A*W]Z {(EES
THEHE - WHREBEEZZ_TF+=_A=1+—

BIEFE - pBARIEEEER (M 17) -
FZEEBZHWEHEINNT
BE-Z-B2F+-A=+-HLEFE

Discontinued

operations

(Note)

Continuing operations RIEREE

BEREEY (H¥eE)

IT Products IT Services Total IT Services

EMRRER EMBERE B3t EMBBRE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FERT FERT

Revenue from external customers REINEPRR ZWA 1,035,415 953,434 1,988,849 166,610

Intersegment revenue S EBEUA 2,698 23,753 26,451 -

Segment revenue AEUA 1,038,113 977,187 2,015,300 166,610

Reportable segment profit AJ¥RE 5 2B A 76,413 99,476 175,889 25,216

Segment depreciation DEITE 2,492 9,041 11,533 1,622

Segment amortisation pan=if: % - - - 2,364
Additions to property, NEWE

plant and equipment * B 12 6,196 6,208 1,852

Additions to intangible assets NEBVEE - - - 3,587

* Additions to property, plant and equipment of HK$8,136,000 were related to

unallocated assets.

Note: For the period from 1st January 2020 to 5th March 2020.
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R D EER @

(Continued)
Year ended 31st December 2019 (restated) HE-T-NF+-A=1+—HBILtFE (KEZ))
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
e e BRI a7
IT Products IT Services Total IT Services
BB ER EARHRRS BEr AFREBHERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET F&T FHT
Revenue from external customers REINDE P 2 A 1,026,082 877,114 1,903,196 925,577
Intersegment revenue D BRI A 6,530 23,312 29,842 545
Segment revenue D EA 1,032,612 900,426 1,933,038 926,122
Reportable segment profit RIS BB A 70,194 56,828 127,022 281,917
Segment depreciation DEITE 2,463 7,945 10,408 9,949
Segment amortisation 7 Ep A 5H - = = 15,623
Additions to property, NEWE -
plant and equipment * B K axtt * 3 3,370 3,373 11,759
Additions to intangible assets REEMEE - - - 5,372
& Additions to property, plant and equipment of HK$7,644,000 were related to * BERROEBEZIAENE BERRER
unallocated assets. 7,644,000 87T °
The Group’s assets and liabilities by reportable segments as at reporting dates are REERBRBIEAIMEDBE D o EEHEAE
presented below: 25T :
As at 31st December 2020 R-ZB=EF+=-HA=+—H
IT Products IT Services Total
ERNBER BB RS et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Reportable segment assets AIRESHEE 368,092 368,137 736,229
Reportable segment liabilities ARESHEE 408,428 201,573 610,001
As at 31st December 2019 RZZE-—NF+=—A=+—H
IT Products IT Services Total
BB E® BB RS w@Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FABT
Reportable segment assets AIRESHEE 376,863 1,546,696 1,923,559
Reportable segment liabilities ARESHEE 386,229 328,911 715,140
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R ZHE R )

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Segment accounting policies

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3(e). Performance is measured
based on segment profit that is used by the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance. Income tax expense is not allocated to reportable segments.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group are allocated
based on the operations of the segments.

Reportable segment profit is profit before income tax, excluding unallocated
other income, unallocated other loss, net, share of results of associates,
unallocated depreciation for property, plant and equipment that are used
for all segments, fair value loss/gain on revaluation of investment properties,
finance costs and unallocated corporate expenses (mainly include staff costs
and other general administrative expenses) of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude interests in associates, deferred income
tax assets, tax recoverable, restricted bank deposits, bank balances and
cash and unallocated corporate assets (mainly include property, plant
and equipment and investment properties that are used by all segments,
prepayments, deposits, other receivables and equity investment).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude current income tax liabilities, deferred
income tax liabilities and unallocated corporate liabilities, which mainly
include lease liabilities, accrued charges of the head office, borrowings and
financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities are
reconciled to results and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as

(a) B BEFBE

AR 2GR ER A MO & AT IR T 2B FE 3(e)
PRt AR E ST BRAR - RBEIIREE
RZLEARARERN D BLEREFHED BRR
D EENFE - EHAEX T EDEER

WEDE -

REBENBA - Bz - BEMBETHZDE
HRTEEEDEC -

AR E ) BB RO E N SR AT TR ATE A -
FEARDEEMBA - KD ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ/ﬂéﬂa - JE
IEBE RNBRE  RATADEMERZ!ME
BN R ARADEITE BEEREMEZ
NAEBEEBE NG - WA KRB EER
ZADEARRAZ (EZREETIRARE
i —ARITHER) °

AIRED RN EE T BIEE 3%%*@7%% R
Lﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ S TH&@%RIE R BIRITIF

CIRITERERERARANEAREE (X
%’\ﬂ]%ﬁﬁ*ﬁ“%ﬁﬁﬁi%% Jﬂ%& & LA
RBEWE - BNRE - & - EMEER
BRBHERE) -

AREN AR %EDHHFE SHAE -
BIEFT1S %ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬂi AFBRE(ERE
%ﬁﬂ‘*%ﬁ . #ﬂ#$&%2%§+?§ﬁﬁ fa& -

N E@iﬁiﬁ%@ﬁﬁ@ﬁéﬁﬁ%mﬂ% f&) °

AHEZDEBBA - B - BER
VSR

ARG AN - B - AERAERE
SE 2 HERMEERBAEHENT ;

follows:

Continuing operations BEREER 2020 2019
Revenue WA —E-EE —=—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(restated)

(z«<$§|
Reportable segment revenue AIARE S HUA 2,015,300 1,933,038
Elimination of intersegment revenue HisE > FEUA (26,451) (29,842)

Revenue per consolidated statement of RERE B =mER IR

profit or loss U A 1,988,849 1,903,196
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

7. WA R D EBER =)

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue, (b) AIHEZ WA - B - BER
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) BENHER®
Discontinued operations HIbREER 2020 2019
Revenue 'ON —EIEH —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(restated)
(rz&%)
Reportable segment revenue ALARE D EUA 166,610 926,122
Elimination of intersegment revenue i $H o ZBFEIUA - (545)
Revenue per analysis of results from NS i“‘*%??‘Z%ii’Wﬁﬂﬁ
discontinued operations (Note 17(a)(i)) FU A (BfF3E 17 () (i) 166,610 925,577

Intersegment revenue is charged at cost plus a percentage of profit mark-

7 BB PR A TR AR A DO R R KB @

up.
Continuing operations BREREER 2020 2019
Profit or loss Bz —EIEE —NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
(restated)
(#&5E51)
Reportable segment profit ﬂﬁi%’ﬁ*ﬁmﬂ 175,889 127,022
Unallocated amounts: RO BEFIR
Unallocated other income R @Eﬁﬁﬁuﬂl)\ 4,852 5,600
Unallocated other loss, net RO BLE M F E1E (3.362) (2,802)
Fair value (loss)/gain on EHREMEZ
investment properties AREEEBE) W (1,500) 1,800
Unallocated depreciation ROMITE (10,135) (9,492)
Share of results of associates it NCIE S (63,480) (8,287)
Finance costs BARERAR (8,520) (23,683)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBARFZ (40,355) (56,054)
Profit before income tax per consolidated iR A BRR IR
statement of profit or loss FR TS B0 A 4 A1) 53,389 34,104
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R ZHE R )

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue, (b) AIHE 2D WA - B - BER
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) BENHER®
Discontinued operations bR 2020 2019
Profit or loss Bz —ECEH —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(restated)
(% E51)
Reportable segment profit AJ¥RE 5 #B s A 25,216 281,917
Unallocated amounts: ROBLFIA
Unallocated other income RAOER ,H\ﬁﬂi)\ 317 1,335
Unallocated other loss, net RAOMEMFEE (381) (3,969)
Unallocated depreciation ROBITE (91) (550)
Finance costs BTSN (8) (51)
Unallocated corporate expenses RAMARIFAX (44,821) (173,405)
(Loss)/Profit before income tax per analysis ~ FARR IFAS 5% 2 2 E D ITHH
of results from discontinued operations B FTS BRI (B51R) 57
(Note 17(a)(i) (FHEE17 (a) () (19,768) 105,277
Assets BE 2020 2019
—E-EF —NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Reportable segment assets ARESHBEE 736,229 1,923,559
Unallocated assets: ROBEE
Interests in associates /NS 1,769,196 19,625
Deferred income tax assets FEFTEREE 513 16,341
Tax recoverable AT el F I8 7,939 1,660
Restricted bank deposits ZRAIRITIFR - 556
Bank balances and cash RITEREB S 370,521 456,058
Unallocated corporate assets RAOBLARIBE 363,599 380,793
Total assets per consolidated statement iR & AR R IIFRE
of financial position BEMRRE 3,247,997 2,798,592
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,

7. WA R D EBER =)

(b) AIHEZDEBBRA - B - EER

profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) BENHER®

Liabilities afE 2020 2019

—ECEF —ZT—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHT

Reportable segment liabilities AHREDHBEE 610,001 715,140

Unallocated liabilities: ROBAE :

Current income tax liabilities BNERFTS BB & 4,247 25,352

Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFTSHBE 203,886 78,299

Unallocated corporate liabilities KoBLARIEE 236,070 527,019
Total liabilities per consolidated statement  F4RE BRI R 73R A

of financial position BfEHERE 1,054,204 1,345,810

The following table sets out information about the geographical segment
location of the Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-current
assets (other than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets).
The geographical location of customers is based on the location at which
the services were provided or the goods were delivered. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the physical location
of the asset in the case of property, plant and equipment and investment
properties, the location of the operations to which they are allocated in the
case of the intangible assets and goodwill, and the location of operations in
case of interests in associates.

TR EEREERBINEES WA
FRBEE(EMITANEEMSREER
SN 2B ENE - BP 2R ETIE
RAERERBHE LT 2 AE - E
BIRBEEZHRUENS * W% BE
LBRBRIREMETIREZEEZEMZ
it - BIVEEREEAEERORER 2
PREEH - W& QB ERAE EEB A
i o

Place of domicile FRiE i Revenue from external customers
REMBEFEZWA
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
2020 2019 2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF ZEIEF —Z-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FTHET FHET FERT FHET
(restated) (restated)
(F&&7)) (#z=31))
Hong Kong BB 1,846,011 1,785,350 - -
us e - - 166,610 918,431
Mainland China B K RE 3,437 3,603 - =
Macau P 50,195 37,534 - -
Thailand R 73,947 58,779 - -
Taiwan =) | 15,259 17,930 - -
Switzerland It - = - 7,146
1,988,849 1,903,196 166,610 925,577
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(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

(b) AIHEZDEBBA - B - BER

profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) BENHER®

Place of domicile F1E i Specified non-current assets

EEFERBEE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E—NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Hong Kong aBE 349,294 355,956
us = 1,749,392 871,823
Russia RzEA - 8,789
Ukraine SR - 5,925
Poland R - 3,716
Singapore Frhnsg 19,055 18,881
Mainland China AR B K e 805 330
Macau SERFY 1,797 2,488
Thailand ZH 308 585
Taiwan = 556 3
Serbia ERMED - 2,583
2,121,207 1,271,079

Information about major customers from continuing operations

The Group has one customer with whom transaction exceeded 10% of the
Group's revenue from continuing operations amounted to approximately
HK$277,738,000 during the year ended 31st December 2020 (2019
(restated): HK$208,155,000).

Gl ot S ORIV

BHE_ZT-_ZF+-_A=1+—HLFE "
AEEBE—NEFNXSBEBBAER
CHERLEBBRANIREELN A
HK$277,738,000( —E — AL E (&K &) :

HK$208,155,000) °
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. KA R 7 E R )

(Continued)
(c) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with () REEFEHNZBRALE
customers
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time AEER—BREHSE - RRAMEBEDS
and at a point in time, details of the Group’s timing revenue recognition RISADTHERA  REBEHE_T_TFR
during the years ended 31st December 2020 and 2019 were as follows: —E-NF+ZA=T—HIEFEZRARE
RFFEAT
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BESEER RIFEE R
2020 2019 2020 2019
e —T-NEF —BoRE —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET FHET FHT
(restated) (restated)
(r2&E7)) (sgE5)
Timing of revenue recognition  Yg ATETRRS 5
At a point in time K2 1,212,679 1,156,014 - =
Over time — B 776,170 747,182 166,610 925,577
Revenue from external customers 2R £ 7ME & P 2 A 1,988,849 1,903,196 166,610 925,577
Revenue relates to performance obligation from continuing operations that RZZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H  B@F
are unsatisfied as at 31st December 2020 amounted to HK$1,042,957,000 BREXEBATHNBHOETZRAR
(2019 (restated): HK$1,125,857,000) are expected to be recognised within 1,042,957,000 BT (=2 — NG (LE7) :
one to five years. 1,125,857,000) BT FBER —ERF A
8. OTHER INCOME 8. HAl A
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FET
(restated)
(ggE5)
Continuing operations BEREER
Interest on bank deposits RITIF TS 522 567
Rental income from investment properties REREMFE BB
(Note 21) (HzE21) 3,886 3,911
Others Efih 933 2,554
5,341 7,032
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—T—_TF+_A=+—HItFE

9. HfthFEE

2020 2019
—EC-EF ZTNF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
(restated)
(#e=51)
Continuing operations BEREER
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment H&¥% - E K& 218 - 6
Fair value loss on contingent consideration payable FEfI S ARIE 2 A A EEEE - 921
Exchange loss, net HE 5 B8 2 A 1,621 1,875
Loss on deemed disposal of partial interests WAL EBE QR w2 B8
in associates (Note 23) (M7 23) 708 -
Waiver of intercompany balances from BeHESE 2 SEAARIMER
the Disposal Group 1,033 -
3,362 2,802

10.FINANCE INCOME

Finance income represents accretion of discount recognised upon initial

recognition of finance lease receivables to their fair values.

11.FINANCE COSTS

10. B B UL A

RIRIR HEREVBRIR LN -

1. B 3 B2

MW AENFRE DA BERAEERETRS

2020 2019
—EEF —TNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
(restated)
(fz&E%)))
Continuing operations BEREER

Finance charges on lease liabilities HERE MBEER 339 296
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFE 5,997 12,142

Interest on liability component of AR &S 2 LS
convertible bonds (Note 36(ii)) (Bt 36(00)) 2,043 11,093
Other interest expenses b FI BT 141 152
8,520 23,683
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 BEZE —T-_TF+_A=+—HItFE

12.PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

13.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

154

12. BRFT 1S B Al i

2020 2019
—ECEF —NEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
(restated)
(fz&E%)))
Continuing operations BEREER
Profit before income tax is arrived BRETS R AT A Th a8 0 kR,
at after charging/(crediting): (Gt A) ToIEIE :
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEET NS
Audit services ZE RS
— Current year - AFE 2,553 1,715
— Over-provision in respect of prior year - BEFEREREE - (122)
Non-audit services IAZH R 1,274 2,283
Depreciation: e
— Property, plant and equipment — owned - BENEE-HEEE
assets (Note 20) (Mt5E20) 15,870 15,089
— Property, plant and equipment — right-of-use - ¥1% « BE R & - EREEE
assets (Note 20) (F¥3F20) 5,799 4,811
Professional fee related to equity transactions &R ZHENRSHFZ - 14,377
Lease charges: HEMES :
— Short term leases and leases with lease term - REXREREEMBEHRELER
shorter than 12 months as at initial F16%HR(ZE—NE—A—ARH)
application of HKFRS 16, 1st January 2019 HEHER12EA[ 2 GHEE - 1,242
— Short term leases - RHEE 1,270 678
ECL allowance of trade receivables (Note 27) FEWE 55078 2 TRERE B B8 8 4E (M3 27) 6,141 296
Reversal of ECL allowance of trade receivables FEWE 55038 2 TEHA (E B S 18 B E Rl
(Note 27) (BizE27) (551) (3,268)
Reversal of obsolete inventories, net [REF S RERLDIFE (265) (67)
Write off of inventories TFEMSH 1,226 243

BEEERIRAXX(TEBEES
<)

2020 2019
—BRCEF —FNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
(restated)
(g=&E%))

Continuing operations BEREER
Salaries and other benefits (Note (a)) e REAMEN (T @) 346,628 390,942
Performance related incentive bonus KINE M2 BEEAL 47,414 50,342
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LARR D REEE S 2 B 702 1,343
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RUREAFT B R 11,151 11,316
405,895 453,943
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—T—_TF+_A=+—HItFE

BEEFINEX (FTEEES

13.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

Note:

(a)

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the Group received government grant
of HK$45,504,000 from the Employment Support Scheme (“ESS"), which aims to
retain employment and combat COVID-19, under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by
the Government of the HKSAR Government. The purpose of the funding is to provide
financial support to enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise be
made redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the Group is required not to make
redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend all the funding on paying wages
to the employees.

In addition, the Group received government grants amounting to HK$580,000 from
government authorities in Mainland China, Macau and Taiwan for supporting the
Group's foreign operations.

Total government grants received by the Group amounting to HK$46,084,000, of
which HK$36,983,000, HK$6,704,000 and HK$2,397,000 are offset with staff cost
recognised in “cost of services rendered”, “selling expenses” and “administrative
expenses” respectively.

14.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure

<)

i

(@

BHE-_Z-_TF+_A=+—BLEFEE" &
SEAEARMARIZRUESEFEST
45,504,000 B T2 B X FF - B Z BN AL
¥REMBE  URBAIEERHBZET -
BB Z IR - AEB W E R &
THE  THMAELARINEIIE -

A - AREB IS T BIARE R KA EET
EBP9 .2 BUH B 580,000 7T » AT R A& BV
SNETS 2 I8 -

7N 2 (8] By U B 2 IR R B 42 B8 /& 46,084,000 75
7T+ H 136,983,000/ T - 6,704,000 7T &
2,397,000 7T Bl 2R [RERF 2B A ~ [ 48
EEBA R THRER] BRz 8 TRAES -

UBVEEMS

RIE ETRA - FECRBGBINFE 383 (1) I
FARR (FBEERENRER) ROIDE 2 5PRFED

of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: EE7MemT :

2020 2019

—ECEH —ZT—NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Fees we 513 662
Other emoluments: HME -

Salaries and other benefits e REMEF] 3,474 3,099

Performance related incentive bonus IR REEAL 52,808 4,733

Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIRERETEIHR 18 -

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LARR A R B 2 7 2 2 447 1,345

57,260 9,839
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

14.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

BVEEHE o

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2019: seven) directors AARBNHEN N (ZTE—NEF - ) ES
were as follows: ZBET
Year ended 31st December 2020
BE-E-ZE+t-A=t-HLEE
Performance
related Equity-settled
incentive  Retirement  share-based
Salaries bonus benefit payment
and other (Note a) scheme expenses
benefits ~ ®EHFMZ contributions LR
Fees FeR REBEA BARER  RERXM Total
Name of director E=EE ne HitEH (Hizka) BE ZHX “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TET TET TET TET
Executive directors BTEE
Wang Weihang (Chairman) THMm(EE) 55 - - - - 55
Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer) TEE(1THAH) - 2,979 52,808 18 464 56,269
Non-executive directors FHITES
Li Wei (Note (c)) & (M (o) 14 495 - - (45) 464
Cui Yong EB 55 - - - 28 83
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTEE
Pan Xinrong BN 134 - - - - 134
Deng Jianxin B 141 - - - - 141
Or Siu Ching Rerina RNE 14 - - - - 14
513 3,474 52,808 18 447 57,260
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

14.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) BVEEMEw

Year ended 31st December 2019
HE_Z-NE+-_A=t-HIFE

Performance
related Equity-settled
incentive Retirement ~ share-based
Salaries bonus benefit payment
and other (Note a) scheme expenses
benefits ~ &IHABZ  contributions WABRD
Fees ) REEAL RER  REEXA Total
Name of director EELRE e HtER| (FizEa) IR pd:5 o

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

Executive directors YTES

Wang Weihang (Chairman) (Note (b)) T4t (£/%) (i (b)) 55 - - - - 55

Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer) T 2B (17HH) - 2,619 4,733 - 1,203 8,555

Non-executive directors FHITES

Li Wei (Note (c)) & (M (o) 64 480 - - 71 615

Cui Yong ER 55 = = = 7 126

Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES

Pan Xinrong BN 167 - - - - 167

Deng Jianxin B 180 - - - = 180

Or Siu Ching Rerina FNE 141 - - - = 141
662 3,099 4,733 - 1,345 9,839

Notes: Fff3E

(@)  The performance related incentive bonus are reference to the profit for the year of the @ REABEBICATNRAEEFEENETE
Group.

(b)  Mr. Wang Weihang was appointed as the chairman of the Board with effect from the b)) EFHMEBZEESTEERE R-T—-—HLFHA
conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 22nd May 2019. ZHZHBITHRRBERSEREGER -

() Mr. Li Wei ceased to be the chairman of the Board with effect from the conclusion of (0 ZFEXETHBETARNEZEEECEF R_Z
the annual general meeting held on 22nd May 2019 and resigned as a non-executive —NFREAZTZBETHRRBFREERE
director of the Group on 31st March 2020. AR WEERARERITES R_T_FF

=A=+T—B&® -

During the year ended 31st December 2020, no remuneration has been paid by HEZZ-_TFE+_A=+—HIFE  F&E

the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group WEAFEEMAREB NN 2Me  WEE

and no directors have waived any remuneration (2019: Nil). EENECAME (ZF—NF - 8) -
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15.FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

158

EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year included one (2019:
one) director, details of whose emoluments are set out in Note 14 above. The
emoluments of the remaining four (2019: four) highest paid individuals for the

BLEBBREFHZES

FALERSFLRERE R (ZE—NF:
—R)EF REZMSFBER LM 145
B o FREMBKINE (CZNF W) 2&R5H

year were as follows: EEZBeFIEMT
2020 2019
—E-EH —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHT
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 5,115 4,571
Performance related incentive bonus FIRE A2 EREEAL 14,233 20,803
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIETEIfER 198 177
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LARR 1D BB 2 2 B sZ 119 268
19,665 25,819

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

RE 2N FTHIEE

Number of individuals

BAB

2020 2019

—E-BF —ZT-NF

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T Z 4,500,00078 7T 2 -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T % 5,000,00078 7T 1 -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T Z 5,500,000 77T - 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 & 7T £ 6,000,000 77T 1 -
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 & T 6,500,000 77T - 2
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000 8,500,001 7T 2 9,000,000 7T - 1
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16. FT S BB <

16.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
(restated)
(& =71))
Continuing operations BEREER
Current taxation: BNEAFRIR :
Hong Kong profits tax (Note (i) BEFEH (HEEG)) 14,698 13,891
Overseas taxation TEHNRIE 465 569
Overseas withholding tax (Note (i) YESNEFIR (3T (i) 13,117 =
Overprovision in respect of prior years: M FEERERE
Hong Kong profits tax EBENEE (132) (195)
Overseas taxation BINRTE (288) =
27,860 14,265
Deferred taxation (Note 37): IEFEFI A (M3E37) ¢
Current year REE 193 533
Income tax expense FriSfim sz 28,053 14,798
Notes: PREE -

() Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
qualifying entities will be taxed at 8.25%, and the profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at 16.5%. For the years ended 31st December
2020 and 2019, Hong Kong profits tax of a subsidiary of the Company is calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.

(i) Pursuant to the US Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act, a tax law enacted in the US,
a 30% withholding tax is levied on interest income received by a non-US resident from
a US resident. The Group is liable to withholding tax on the interest income received
in cash by a non-US subsidiary from the US subsidiary during the year ended 31st
December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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(ii)

BEMBRHFERBEGE - GEBREEETEN
B2 EEBLENBIL8.25% HE - MBE2E5E
7 TTH0 % A BI B2 16.5% BB o T A AR HIF|
BEBREHENEEEBBEEILZ16.5% HEE
R - BE_T-_ZTEKR_FT—HE+ -4
=+—ALFE  ARARZ—ZRHBARZES
MEHERBEMRHFESRBE EHETE

BEEBEEIINEEHMARER - — KR EBH
EZBE - EEEERMEEE R KA F 21
ABHEU30% 2TENF - AEEHEER M
FERMBARNEBE S -_EF+_A=+—
BIEFERRERNEARWERF S ZEE KA
BRXENH(ZT—NEF : 8) -
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= _
16.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (coninued) 16. FT S8 B X )
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical AR BEIRR TS0 Al A 2 B TH BR R AR A 0 & O
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits ERGEMNZMEFAREFH  EREHEIER
of the consolidated entities as follows: IR
2020 2019
et g 223 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FHT
(restated)
(r2&E7))
Continuing operations BHEREER
Profit before income tax R PS5 Bl A 53,389 34,104
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% BRBMNEHEER16.5% 18 2FHE
(2019: 16.5%) ZT—NF :165%) 8,809 5,627
Tax effects of: M2
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose ERBAEAHRE 2 T 15,379 5,756
Income not taxable for tax purpose RS BT R Z WA (8,884) (1,277)
Effect of different tax rates of overseas operations 1Z&EINEBATEH 2 TR R 2 72 398 (18)
Tax losses not recognised RIER 2 B EE1E 285 78
Overprovision in prior years BT FEREEE (420) (195)
Effect of two-tiered profits tax rate regime MR TSR R GIE 2 2 (165) (165)
Overseas withholding tax on interest income FIBWA 2 BINEITE 13,117 =
Others Ef (466) 4,992
Income tax expense s 28,053 14,798
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 52.5% (2019 (restated): 43.4%). I EATERS25% (ZF—hF : (K&

511)43.4%)
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

17.DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 13th November 2019, the Company, Grid Dynamics, ChaSerg Technology
Acquisition Corp. (“ChaSerg”), CS Merger Sub 1 Inc. (“Merger Sub 1”) and
CS Merger Sub 2 LLC (“Merger Sub 2") entered into a conditional merger
agreement (the “Merger Agreement”). The transactions contemplated under
the Merger Agreement involve the acquisition of Grid Dynamics by ChaSerg, a
special purpose acquisition company the shares of which are listed on National
Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations (“NASDAQ") through
the two-step mergers between Grid Dynamics and the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of ChaSerg, Merger Sub 1 and Merger Sub 2 (the “Mergers”). The Mergers are
effectively an injection of Grid Dynamics in exchange for cash and equity interests
in ChaSerg and thereby effecting the separate listing of Grid Dynamics on
NASDAQ.

On 5th March 2020, all the conditions precedent set out in the Merger
Agreement have been fulfilled in accordance with the terms of the Merger
Agreement (the “Completion”). Upon Completion, Grid Dynamics and its
subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”) become wholly- owned subsidiaries of Grid
Dynamics Holdings, Inc. (“GDH", formerly ChaSerg) (ticker symbol: GDYN). In
connection with the Mergers, the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
GDD International Holding Company (“GDD") received cash consideration of
approximately USD93,820,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$727,507,000)
and 19,490,295 consideration shares of GDH, which represents approximately
38.34% of the issued share capital of GDH as at the date of Completion (the
“Completion Date"). Accordingly, Grid Dynamics ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Group (the “Disposal”) and the Group's interest in GDH is treated as interests in
an associate and accounted for using equity method.

Details of the Merger are set out in the circular of the Company dated 31st
December 2019 and the announcement of the Company dated 8th March 2020.

The Disposal Group represents a significant geographical component of the
Group's IT service segment, the results of the Disposal Group for the period
from 1st January 2020 to the Completion Date are presented as discontinued
operations in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31st
December 2020. The comparative figures in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss has been restated. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of and
calculation of gain on disposal are disclosed in Note 46.

7R IE IR TR

RZZE-—hhE+—-—A+=H ' K27 Grd
Dynamics + ChaSerg Technology Acquisition Corp.
([ChaSergl) ~ CS Merger Sub 1 Inc. ([ Merger
Sub 1) }CS Merger Sub 2 LLC ([ Merger Sub 2])
I A RS OHRE ([ & 0BE D - BIES S
BEEIT 2R 5% K ChaSerg (— 455K B B4k
BAE - ARGEMITERRER ST L ([
HriZ 5% 1)) 3% 38 Grid Dynamics £2 ChaSerg 2 2 &
M /A7) + Merger Sub 1} Merger Sub 2 B9F3X
& GrULBE Grid Dynamics ([(ZSAHEE]) &
& _+ &Gt A Grid Dynamics BAMREUIR € K ChaSerg
Z BEAE - TS Grid Dynamics 7 49 H7 i 72 8 98
ke

R-ZZE-_ZTF=FHA BB A LR
IR B EER RIBE At hE 2 e Ti ([ T
B 1) o 5E BX 1% + Grid Dynamics & £ [ff B 2 &
(THE %™ ) 2 A A Grid Dynamics Holdings,
Inc. (GDH/ + A #8 ChaSerg) (% 22 X 5% GDYN)
ZEEMBRAR - BAZEEMHEIE  KAQH
EBEBE—R2EK B AR - GDD International
Holding Company ([GDD J) Y2ER 47 93,820,000 3=
JL (FRE N4 727,507,000/ 7T) 2 BERER -
B #4619,490,295 8% 2 GDHRE (A (R B - HHE R
GDHR R BHA([ A BHA ) (9B BEITRAL
38.34% ° K 7ERK H #i%%  Grid Dynamics NEB &
AEBZHEAR([HE ] - AL ERGDH
2RSSR E AR - WIREREA

ZEAHBHEZABIENARRIASHA=ZT—N
F+-A=t+—HZBEEARRBHAE=-ZT =
TE=ANBZRAE -

HESBAREBERMERE 25882 —EE
ZRAK - MHEEER T -_TF—H—H
EHEKAMCEEEERE T -_TF+ A
=t BLFENFAERRREIEEERE
F - IFEBRRMAEZINEREFE TEHRZ
5 - BAHEEERABARHERSFTESTR
Z B RMITE 46 KREE
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

17.DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 17. 8 IE RE R )
(a) Analysis of results from discontinued operations (a) RIEREXEK 2 EBOWN
The results of the discontinued operations included in the consolidated REREBRRIRNR I EEREERE
statement of profit or loss and the cash flows are set out below. HEREHN T °
(i)  Profit for the year from discontinued operations: () RELLBEEBZEFNRN
Period from

1st January

2020 to Year ended
5th March  31st December
2020 2019
=5
—A—H HE
E-ERCEF —ENEF
=ZAAER +Z-A=+—H
1HHARS IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Revenue A 166,610 925,577
Cost of services rendered RAEARIE 2 B (121,503) (571,692)
Other income EHugA 615 1,456
Other loss, net HE A FEs1E (381) (3,969)
Selling expenses HEEM (20,185) (72,090)
Administrative expenses THEHA (44,916) (173,954)
Finance costs B FE AN (8) (51)
(Loss)/Profit before income tax P%Ffr SHLAT(E51R) SE T (19,768) 105,277
Income tax credit/(expense) FrfsFist A (Bx) 18,147 (24,275)
(Loss)/Profit for the period/year HESBEBRFR(EIE) EF
of the Disposal group (1,621) 81,002
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
(Loss)/Profit for the period/year EEEEHN,FR(EE) 5T
of the Disposal group (1,621) 81,002
Gain on disposal of the Disposal Group & &£ @ > H & Uz (fiFE46)
(Note 46) 1,109,585 -
Current income tax expense arising HE EBEE AR BNEAGER AL
from the Disposal (Note (a)) (FftzE(a)) (130,041) =
Deferred tax expense arising from HE BIEEAREERHIER
the Disposal (Note (b)) (MF7E (b)) (147,117) =
Profit for the year from RER I E TS 2 F A @A
discontinued operations 830,806 81,002
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

17.DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 17. 8 LREXEK =

(a) Analysis of results from discontinued operations (a) RIEREXEK 2 EBOW
(Continued)
(i)  Profit for the year from discontinued operations: (Continued) () PREKIEEEE 2 FREF : (8)
Notes: B 5E
(@) Current income tax expense arising from the Disposal of HK$130,041,000 (@ BE-ZT-_TFF+-_A=+—HIF
relates to US tax on assessable profit of GDD which mainly contributed by E- AHEFEMEEZANBMER
the cash consideration received from the Disposal of HK$727,507,000. Such B & A 130,041,000 7 Jt ) E2GDD f&
tax is calculated based on the US federal tax rate at 21% and the applicable AR EEBIEAAR  EhEE
US states tax rate. B35727,507,000 B T EEE 2 RS

HAB - BRBTIRTIR RS BB FP B K
21% REBEMHEFERREE -

(b) Deferred tax expense arising from the Disposal of approximately by AHEFEELAZEEFERA
HK$147,117,000 relates to the deferred capital gain on the consideration 147,117,00058 7T » JhELH & EBEF AL
shares received from the Disposal. Such tax is calculated based on US PREZELEE AR KA - BRATIE
federal tax rate at 21% and the applicable US states tax rate. THAB 45 5 B Bk FD A 2K 21% R 5= B &M

BIABARRAHE -
(ii)  Cash flows for the period/year from discontinued operations: (i) PRERIECEERE AR/ FRRSHT
=
Period from

1st January

2020 to Year ended
5th March  31st December
2020 2019
—ECEHF
—HB—H HZE
ETECEH —E-NF
=HAEH +ZA=t+—H
1-HAR IEFE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHxT
Net cash inflow from operating activities 2R B 44 G 8) 2 &R AF 5 2,562 74,449
Net cash outflow from investing activities 2 812 & & &) 2 & in it F 58 (5,122) (17,130)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from REMEFHZHE OFL) HWAFE
financing activities (99) 133,658
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be (Rd) RAFE (2,659) 190,977
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

17.DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 17.

(b) (Loss)/Profit before income tax from discontinued

164

operations

RIFREET )

(b) RERILEE XN 2 BRATEHA

(E18),&F
Period from
1st January

2020 to Year ended
5th March  31st December
2020 2019
—EIEF
—A—H HE
E-E-FF —TNEF
=AEA +=-A=t+—8
LHHARS IEFE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR FHT
(Loss)/Profit before income tax is arrived BrFT1SRLAT (B518) i F
at after charging/(crediting): ThaE kR, (GEA) TR E ¢
Auditors’ remuneration: IZERTEN & -
Audit services ZE R
— Current year - KFE - 1,911
— Over-provision in respect of prior year - BEFEBRERE (410) -
Depreciation and amortisation: Hree R
— Property, plant and equipment - W% - BB REE
— owned assets -HEEE 1,622 9,949
— Property, plant and equipment - % - BEREE
— right-of-use assets - EREEE 91 550
— Intangible assets (included in cost - B AE (RIEERE
of services rendered) (Note 22) BR#% 2 BN (M95E22) 2,364 15,623
Directors’ emoluments EEEn 362 957
Employee benefit expenses EERFRAXZ
(excluding Directors’ emoluments) (TBREEEME)
— Salaries and other benefits - #re RHEAMRT 117,255 546,270
— Performance related incentive bonus - RIBB 2 ZENEAL 10,644 53,888
— Equity-settled share-based payment - AR BERT A zHE
expenses 10,486 23,189
— Staff retention bonus -BITRA%S 26,073 19,505
Lease charges: HEMS :
— Leases with lease term shorter than - REREREBIM R E LR
12 months as at initial application 165 (ZE—NF—HA—H)
of HKFRS 16, 1st January 2019 HEHER12EAZEHEE - 14,929
— Short term leases - EHEE 7,434 16,805
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18.DIVIDENDS 18. 1R 2
2020 2019
i —E-NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Dividend approved and paid: B REARAR S
Final dividend in respect of the year ended HE-ZT-NF+_A=1T—HILFE
31st December 2019 of 3.0 HK cent per share ZAREAIR B AR 3.0 (L 24,819 =
Special dividend of 7.3 HK cents per share FERIMR SRR 7.3 (L 60,394 -
85,213 -
Dividends proposed: ?bvi)fEH“ 2.
Final dividend in respect of the year ended HE_Z-TF+_A=+—RHILFEZ
31st December 2020 of 3.0 HK cents REAAR SRR 3.0l (ZF— 15 -
(2019: 3.0 HK cents) per share (Note (i)) A% 3.0 780 (B (i) 24,909 24,819
Special dividend of 7.3 HK cents per share FrRIIR S8Rk 7.3 1l
(Note (ii)) (BI=E (i) - 60,394
24,909 85,213
The Directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend in EREDRABRRNBE T _TF+A=1—
respect of the year ended 31st December 2020 of 3.0 HK cents (2019: 3.0 HK HIEFEFR30BIW(ZZ—NF : §Kk3.04%
cents) per share. Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming i) Z REARR B, o AF il REE R BNIG 21T 2 IR R
annual general meeting, the proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or BFERGERRABBE  AAREHR T ——
before 21st June 2021 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of FRAZHT—RAHIZARAR=ZE=_—F A tA
members of the Company on 7th June 2021. BN AR A4 M2 PR ERR AN - it 458 s >R Bf
ARE o
Notes: Fff3E
(i)  The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2020, as referred to () FBZ-Z-_TE+_A=+—HIFEZH
above, is calculated on the basis of 830,307,964 (2019: 827,314,061) ordinary shares KRR ERER-_Z-_TF+_A=+—HE
in issue as at 31st December 2020 and at a final dividend of 3.0 HK cents (2019: 3.0 ?X?‘TZ 830,307,964 (=Z — S1L4F : 827,314,061)
HK cents) per share. A& AL R R 3.08 1L (=2 — N : Bi3.0/8
fill) 2 REARR S5t E -
(i)  The proposed special dividend, as referred to above, is calculated on the basis of iy ERBRFIRERER-Z—NAF+=A
827,314,061 ordinary shares in issue as at 31st December 2019 and at a special =+—H E?*ﬁ2827 314,061 i & i Ik &% & Ak
dividend of 7.3 HK cents per share. 7382 FRIRSETE -
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19. 82 RRAEFHEABEER
2

ARRBAFEA ANELSRERZEERN T
TR

19.EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to equity
holders of the Company is based on the following data:

166

2020 2019
—EEF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(restated)
(52&E7))
Profit attributable to equity holders RN ESREAREERT 2
of the Company from continuing REFELEERE 2 AR RRAE
operations for basic and diluted FrE ARG A
earnings per share 25,336 19,306
Profit attributable to equity holders RUAGTESRERBHZRB LK IE
of the Company from discontinued KBTS 2 NN EIRAFEE A
operations for basic earnings per share FEAG 5 A 830,962 73,970
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares RE &R S TS B RS E 2
from discontinued operation Bk 2
— Adjustment on the effect of dilution - AR ESEERE T RUE 2 FHE
in the result of the Disposal Group (B3E (iv))
(Note (iv)) - (4,737)
Profit attributable to equity holders RUGHESREERT 2 2RB LK IE
of the Company from discontinued KBTS 2 AN EIIRAR
operations for diluted earnings per share B AEERT 830,962 69,233
Number of shares
RFEE
2020 2019
i —TNF
‘000 ‘000
TR FAR
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R ESREREF 2 LBk
for basic earnings per share (Note (i) hniETEEE (D) 828,369 807,809
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BEsE 2 B SRR &
— Share options (Note (ii)) o ICEID)) 765 370
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RATESREERT 2
for diluted earnings per share AR niE T 829,134 808,179
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FHZA=+—HLFE

9. A2 REFEAEEER

For the year ended 31st December 2020 HZ=Z ==

19.EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY B F a)
(Continued)
2020 2019
T-BF —E-NEF
HK cents HK cents
4L il
(restated)
(g&=71))
Earnings per share from continuing R B FHEAS & R I 3T
and discontinued operations B & AR Z A
— Basic -EXK 103.37 11.55
— Diluted - #E 103.28 10.96
Earnings per share from continuing operations KRB FHELS & S B REF
— Basic - 7\ 3.06 2.39
- Diluted B3 1 3.06 2.39
Earnings per share from discontinued operations 3K (5 4% |48 & E ) S AL A F
— Basic - B 100.31 9.16
- Diluted - #E 100.22 8.57
Notes: B
(i)  The 828,369,000 ordinary shares are derived from the weighted average number of (i) EiBAL828,369, OOOHQXEEAESZi ToTF+Z
ordinary shares in issue during year ended 31st December 2020. A=+—HBItFEHEE ETE R MEFY
2 o
The 807,809,000 ordinary shares are derived from the weighted average number of LiMA% 807,809,000 R ERBE-_T—NF+=

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

ordinary shares in issue during year ended 31st December 2019.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share from continuing operations for the
year ended 31st December 2020 assumed the exercise of the share options of the
Company granted in 2012 and 2017.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share from continuing operations for the
year ended 31st December 2019 assumed the exercise of the share options of the
Company granted in 2012 and 2017, except for the share options granted in March

(ii)

A=1+—RILFEHARC BT EBRNINE TS
2 o

HEZ-_ZF+-_RA=1— EIJJ:EFKE%%
KREXBZBRBERNDIBRARAR_-F
——ERZECFEREZBREEETE

BEZ-NF+-_RA=t—HLFERAFE
REXBZEREFRANDBERARTAR=-F
—RIE—LFRHEZBREEETE - MR

2017, which are considered as anti-dilutive as the average market price of the ordinary R FEARECERETRAEEAN - Z
shares of the Company is less than the exercise price of these share options. EEREFEESARBELE  HARARAE

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share from continuing operations for the
years ended 31st December 2019 and 2020 have not taken into account the effect
of the conversion of convertible bonds issued by the Company as they are considered
anti-dilutive. The convertible bonds have been redeemed by the Company on 23rd
March 2020 (Note 36(ii)).

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations for
the year ended 31st December 2020 have not taken into account the effect of share
options (Note 39(iii)) and the convertible preferred shares (Note 40) granted by the
Disposal Group as they are considered anti-dilutive.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations for
the year ended 31st December 2019 have taken into account the dilutive effect in
the results of the discontinued operations for the year ended 31st December 2019 in
relations to the share options (Note 39(iii)) and the convertible preferred shares (Note
40) granted by the Disposal Group.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB R G EBBRR AR

(iii)

(iv)

B2 PO EERZ SRR 2 1TEE

HE-_Z-_TER-_T-NAF+-A=+—AHI1
FE- ?5E%fi‘“M%WW#HX%EE*'JE’JJ%
WARBFEARNRRBITHAIRRESF SR FE
RAACMRREAARBEER - TRRESFKZ
TTF= A=+ =BWARARER (HEE36())

HE-Z-_TF+-_A=+—RHIFERALL

KEXBNETREFRINTELARABDELES
) o B AR (BT & 39(iii) ) N AT 85348 5o % (BT 5E 40)
IE - BREMERAREREESIER -

BE_ZT-NF+-_HA=T—BLFERELL
#&%%%E’JHﬁ&&é@*‘]ﬁ’]ﬁr%ﬁ%fﬁ%%@
0 B A% 4 (PR = 39(iin) ) A0 AT 8% 4 48 4 AR (Bt 5% 40)
HEE-T-NAF+T-A=+—HLEFERLRL
EEBNEENBETE o
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

20.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2.3 - BMEKRRE

Furniture Computer
Land and and and office
buildings fixtures Motor equipment Right-of-use
tith BRE vehicles EK assets Total
kEF £8 ARE BAERE FRAREE “@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THL T THAT AT AT
At 1st January 2019 R-B-NE-A—-H
Cost or valuation KA EE 280,700 29,745 1,763 159,742 - 471,950
Accumulated depreciation BEIE = (25,658) (1,512)  (140,285) = (167,455)
Adjustment from the adoption RNE BRI REER
of HKFRS 16 F165H AR
Cost A - - - - 8,833 8,833
Accumulated depreciation 25E - - - - (3,367) (3,367)
Net book amount EE@‘EME 280,700 4,087 251 19,457 5,466 309,961
Year ended 31st December 2019 BEZ-NF+-A=1T-HLEE
Opening net book amount HVRREFE 280,700 4,087 251 19,457 5,466 309,961
Additions NE - 2,020 - 15,015 5,741 22,776
Disposals HeE - = = (7) = @)
Depreciation neE (9,849) (1,919) (214) (13,056) (5,361) (30,399
Exchange realignment EHRE = 22) = 37 = 15
Revaluation surplus EHEH 19,249 = = = = 19,249
Closing net book amount BREOFE 290,100 4,166 37 21,446 5,846 321,595
At 31st December 2019 RZB-NE+=A=t—H
Cost or valuation AT E 290,100 31,733 1,779 169,049 14,574 507,235
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE - (27,567) (1,742)  (147,603) (8,728)  (185,640)
Net book amount E*E@?%@ 290,100 4,166 37 21,446 5,846 321,595
Comprising: '
At cost A - 31,733 1,779 169,049 14,574 217,135
At valuation e 290,100 - - - - 290,100
290,100 31,733 1,779 169,049 14,574 507,235
At 1st January 2020 R-B-25-HF—-H
Cost or valuation KA EE 290,100 31,733 1,779 169,049 14,574 507,235
Accumulated depreciation ZEIE - (27,567) (1,742)  (147,603) (8,728)  (185,640)
Net book amount EEE‘EME 290,100 4,166 37 21,446 5,846 321,595
Year ended 31st December 2020 BE-Z_BF+-A=1+-HLEE
Opening net book amount HREE 290,100 4,166 37 21,446 5,846 321,595
Additions NE - 1,435 - 7,431 7,330 16,196
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 46) HERB AR (MizEd6) - (2,894) - (14,970) (956) (18,820)
Depreciation neE (10,549) (1,131) (37) (5,775) (5,889) (23,381)
Exchange realignment [E i % - (11) - (34) 17 (28)
Revaluation surplus EARpald 2,149 - - - - 2,149
Closing net book amount BRERTE 281,700 1,565 - 8,098 6,348 297,711
At 31st December 2020 R-B-E5+-A=+—-H
Cost or valuation PR BE 281,700 27,128 1,779 124,151 20,179 454,937
Accumulated depreciation 25thE - (25,563) (1,779)  (116,053) (13,831) (157,226
Net book amount HRESE 281,700 1,565 - 8,098 6,348 297,711
Comprising: 't
At cost A - 27,128 1,779 124,151 20,179 173,237
At valuation ftE 281,700 - - - - 281,700
281,700 27,128 1,779 124,151 20,179 454,937
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20.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group’s land and buildings were stated at valuations made at 31st December
2020 and 2019. The land and buildings were last revalued by an independent
professional valuer, at 31st December 2020 and 2019, at market value basis
which is determined by reference to market evidence of recent transactions
for similar properties. The revaluation gave rise to a revaluation surplus net
of applicable deferred income taxes of approximately HK$1,794,000 (2019:
HK$16,073,000) which has been credited to the property revaluation reserve.
Details of fair value measurements are set out in Note 6(d).

As at 31st December 2020, if the land and buildings had not been revalued, they
would have been included in these consolidated financial statements at historical
cost, less accumulated depreciation, of approximately HK$33,904,000 (2019:
HK$35,969,000).

Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment have been charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

20. 1% - BERKE®

AEEZLHEBFIER_T_TFER_
—NETZA=T—RZMHEDER- iﬂﬂ&%%
RE-RBBUEXRGHEMR T _ZFR_F
—NE+ A=+ BREmERESETER
N2EMS LRBMRARRZZENEE
EfMENRERELERSEHEEESHAHKH
#$1,794,0007% 7T ( —Z — JL4F : 16,073,000 %
) LB ARMEEGHEE - 2R BEFE
B R 6(d)

RZZT-_ZTF+-A=1+—8 Mt REF
KWER ESRELKAANBRRTINE -
H B8R {8 4 433,904,000 7T ( =T — N4 :
35,969,000 87T ) st A LR & I TSR ©

REBZYME  BERRBIINEERES RS
RPHBRAE

2020 2019
- g 23 —TNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
(restated)
€<=zl
Continuing operations BEREER
Cost of goods sold and services rendered SHER AR IRHEARTE 2 B 9,871 8,788
Selling expenses HEEH 2,609 2,634
Administrative expenses TE & A 9,189 8,478
21,669 19,900
As at 31st December 2020, the Group had pledged land and buildings with AN 48P RZZTE_FF+_A=+—

carrying amount of HK$166,700,000 (2019: HK$171,200,000) to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in Note 48.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 5B Z 5B BR A A

B ZK;'%IEE@@%E;%166,700,000,%7z(_;
— L4 : 171,200,000/ 70 ) 2 L i RiEFE K
o NESETAEEZRITHE -
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20.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

As at 31st December 2020 and 2019, the net carrying amount of right-of-use
assets included in property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Carrying amount

20. 9% - Jﬂﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ(@)

RZZE_ZEFR_Z-NF+_A=+—8 &
AW - B K& ﬁZEFH’fEéFZﬁEE%%EZZD
T

Depreciation

RESHE e

For the year

As at 31st As at 1st ended 31st

December 2020 January 2020 December 2020

BE-2-%F

R-IB-EHF R-IEZEH +=A=+-—H

+=H=+—H —A—H LFE

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET FER

Office premises EEYNEL Y ES 5,220 4,344 5,516

Office equipment EENEN ] 1,128 1,502 373

Total “azE 6,348 5,846 5,889

Carrying amount Depreciation

RE®E e

For the year

As at 31st As at 1st ended 31st

December 2019 January 2019 December 2019

HE-T—NF

NZZE—hF RIZE—hI4%F +=ZA=+—H

+=—A=+—H” —HA—H IEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT FHT

Office premises MAEYE 4,344 5,404 5,011

Office equipment I NE 1,502 62 350

Total R 5,846 5,466 5,361
During the year ended 31st December 2020, total additions to right-of-use HEZ-_ZFE+_A=+—HILFE  5AY
assets included in property, plant and equipment amounting to HK$7,330,000, ¥ WELRREBEEAEEENRNE /7,330,000

of which all are related to office premises (2019: HK$5,741,000, of which

BT EHERAEWMEER - (ZT-NF:

amounting to HK$3,951,000 and HK$1,790,000 are related to office premises
and office equipment, respectively).
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—T—_TF+_A=+—HItFE

21.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES M. IEME
2020 2019
i —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At valuation fHE
At 1st January n—A—H 55,800 54,000
Fair value (loss)/gain DAEE(BER) s (1,500) 1,800
At 31st December R+=ZA=+—H 54,300 55,800

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss:

AT EBEER R RS RER -

2020 2019

—E_ZF —T-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Rental income (Note 8) e ONCEER) 3,886 3,911
Direct operating expense arising from investment E4AMSUWA Z IR EYERMELE Y

properties that generate rental income BEREEERE 378 380

The investment properties of the Group were last revalued by an independent
professional valuer at 31st December 2020 and 2019 at market value basis,
which is determined by reference to market evidence of recent transactions for
similar properties. Details of fair value measurement are set out in Note 6(d).

The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases are set out in Note 43.

As at 31st December 2020, the Group had pledged investment properties with
carrying amount of HK$54,300,000 (2019: HK$55,800,000) to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in Note 48.

REBEZIREMERE —RBBT ERAERRN
—ERCRFERE-NFT A=+ REmE
EEFETER  D2EME LREYELNR
HZEMETE - A BEFEFBEHIIEE) -

REBER IR E SRR RRF RSB
BHNHIFES3 ©

HnMisr a8 FrE c N E-TE+-_A=+—
B ANEERE$SE54,300,0008T(=F—Ah
£ : 55,800,000870) 2R EWED THEA - A
BERTAEEZBITRE -
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/ ~,
22.GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS RN.EHERETEE
Goodwill Intangible assets
Development Technical Customer
cost know-how relationships Total
BRAEA e L piIE EFB% “t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL THT TR TR
At 1st January 2019 R-B-h&-A—-H
Cost B 771,173 14,583 2,209 123,962 140,754
Accumulated amortisation ZBERAE
and impairment - (6,993) (1,384) (14,324) (22,701)
Net book amount REFE 771,173 7,590 825 109,638 118,053

Year ended 31st December 2019 BE-Z-NFt-A=1t-HLEFE

Opening net book amount BOREFE 77,173 7,590 825 109,638 118,053
Additions NE - 5,372 - - 5,372
Amortisation =iy - (6,557) (799) (8,267) (15,623)
Exchange realignment 5 AR (4,357) (12) = (547) (559)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 766,816 6,393 26 100,824 107,243
At 31st December 2019 and R-E-h1&+=A=+-HR

1st January 2020 “E-Z2F-H-H
Cost A 766,816 19,887 2,197 123,289 145,373
Accumulated amortisation ZTEERRE

and impairment - (13,494) (2,171) (22,465) (38,130)
Net book amount REFE 766,816 6,393 26 100,824 107,243

Year ended 31st December 2020 BE-Z-Z5+-A=t-HLEE

Opening net book amount BREFE 766,816 6,393 26 100,824 107,243
Additions RE - 3,587 - - 3,587
Amortisation Z3 - (886) - (1,478) (2,364)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 46) HEM B AR (i 46) (763,394) (9,035) (26) (98,902) (107,963)
Exchange realignment RIS (3,422) (59) - (444) (503)
Closing net book amount HRREE - - - - -
At 31st December 2020 RZB-BE+=A=+-H
Cost A - 5,006 - - 5,006
Accumulated amortisation ZEHEA R E

and impairment - (5,006) - - (5,006)
Net book amount REFE - - - - -
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

22.GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2020, amortisation of approximately
HK$2,364,000 (2019: HK$15,623,000) has been charged to “cost of services
rendered” in the statement of profit or loss of the discontinued operations in
Note 17(a)(i).

Goodwill is attributable to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs") of the
Grid Dynamics Group and is allocated to the IT Services segment.

As at 31st December 2019, the recoverable amount of the CGU was determined
from value in use calculations based on cash flow projections from formally
approved financial budgets and forecasts covering a five-year period. The cash
flows for the subsequent years are extrapolated from the fifth year cash flow
using 2.0% growth rate, and discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 19.1%.

The discount rate reflects current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rate used was based on historical
growth and past experience and did not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the business in which the CGU operates.

As at 31st December 2019, the recoverable amount has been determined to be
higher than the carrying amount of the CGU, and thus no impairment is required.

22,

BMENRELEE®

RBE-_Z-_ZF+_A=1—HILFE - #H
#12,364,0007%8 7T ( =% — JL4F : 15,623,000
T0) ERERHEEE 17(a)() 2 R L= E TR
w2 rk,\ﬂm“%zmzm IR

2 57 B A AN 42 [E Grid Dynamics £ B H3E & &
EE((ReEEBM])  WHREEARR
EHEB °

pal g

REZE-NF+-A=+—R0 ReELEUZ
AR R IRE B ER BN B TREEL
RLmERRERERFHNIER - AMEREE
AEEF - HEFENRERNERBFAFNEH
ERERMA2.0%MEREXHEE - WHEMAHAIR
HFEN9.1% EITRETR -

BRI R RIR T & AT 5 B R E E AT A
rReELEMFENER - ERAERRTIR
BESLEERBELRAE  NEBRTES
BUREEB I RPTREE -

—hWF+ZA=+—H ARESEDE
ERERASELEMZREE - MBAELR
=0

23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 3. BE N TR
2020 2019
—EC-EF —NE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHT F#T
Listed (Note) 7 (B EE) 1,749,392 =
Unlisted JE kT 19,804 19,625
1,769,196 19,625

Note: FIEE -

The Group's interest in listed securities represents the Group’s interest in GDH, of which
its shares are listed on NASDAQ. As at 31st December 2020, the fair value of the Group’s
interest in GDH was USD245,578,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,903,903,000)
(2019: Nil), which is based on the quoted stock price of GDH on NASDAQ of USD12.6 as at
31st December 2020 and is within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 5B Z 5B BR A A

REER EMEHZ R BENEEN GDH 2 #5 + H
BORPETER L - R2Z=TF+—-A=1+—A -
RE BN GDH 2 #E % < A 7t {BfE 743 245,578,0005 7T (16
ER#1,903,903,00077T) (ZT—NF : &) - HIKE
MZZE-ZTF+=-F=+—H GDHBRERHETER 2 5K
1267 - ARBEDNERTSRELBAAEBERE
IRE—E °

173



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

an

BT RAR M

For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

174

23. B N R iERR o)

2020 2019
—EEF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1st January R—HA—H 19,625 27,662
Acquisition of an associate (Note (i) oig — M = N El i R (BEEG)) 1,813,591 =
Deemed disposal of partial interests RIEH B2 A RE R (FEGI)
in associates (Note (ii)) (708) -
Share of results of associates FERER A RIER (63,480) (8,287)
Share of other comprehensive EiEBE AR Ea2mE (BE) s
(loss)/income of associates (57) 193
Dividends received BUHARE - (154)
Exchange realignment bE 3 3R B 225 211
At 31st December R+=ZA=+—H 1,769,196 19,625
Notes: PREE -
(i)  The Group received 19,490,295 consideration shares in GDH upon the completion of () M-—ZT-—ZTF=HFH%MKHE Grid Dynamics

(ii)

the disposal of Grid Dynamics on 5th March 2020. Details are set out in Note 46.

During the period from the date when the GDH Group became associates of the Group (ii)
to 31st December 2020, certain restricted stock units granted by GDH to its employees
were vested and certain employees had exercised the vested stock options of GDH.
As a result, the Group’s interest in GDH was diluted from 38.34% to 38.31% and a
loss on deemed disposal of interests in associates of HK$708,000 was recognised in
“other loss, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31st

December 2020.

Annual Report 2020 & #f

% » ZREEEULER 19,490,295 A% 2 GDH XD KB
EAE AR

HGDHEER AL EEBHE N NRIZARE-F
%¢+—H*+7Elﬁﬂfeﬁ GDHEFEEZET
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. Bi N TR )

Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st December 2020 and 2019 are as RIZBZZFR_Z-NF+_A=+—H &K
follows: SBECHEQARFBNT ¢

Country/place Percentage of nominal value
of incorporation  of issued ordinary share capital
and operations  held indirectly by the Company

Name of associate EMR Y REE 2 AAREESE Principal activities
BEATER EEYS: 1) ERTEBERETZEML FEEK
2020 2019

—2-8F —TNF

Unlisted associates

FEMEENT
iN Systems (Macao) Limited Macau 24% 24% Provision of engineering and
BEZFE CRP) AR AT JBLP software services
TRt T2 R RS
ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited Thailand 49% 49% Provision of engineering and
ZRE software services
PRt TA2 R4 RS
i-Sprint Holdings Limited (“i-Sprint”) Cayman Islands 35.42% 35.42% Investment holding
FERHS REZER
i-Sprint Innovations (HK) Limited Hong Kong 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing, and
i (BE) BIRERAA] B implementing technology
risk management products
teft o 85 R B p ki
[\ B PR E R RS
Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd. The PRC 35.42% 35.42% Provision of software
IEREARREEREERT H development, distributing,
implementing and
supporting technology
risk management products
REFMFE - D Bk
XERMERERERES
i-Sprint Innovations (Beijing) Ltd. The PRC 35.42% 35.42% Provision of software
ZHE (LR B AR EERA H development, distributing,

implementing and

supporting technology

risk management products
REEMRE - D Bk
SR B R B R A S

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &) Z 5 EE AR A7) 175



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. B N TR e

Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st December 2020 and 2019 are as N_E_ZFR_ZT-NF+_A=+—H K
follows: (Continued) SEZBERRIFBNT - (48

Country/place Percentage of nominal value
of incorporation  of issued ordinary share capital
and operations  held indirectly by the Company

Name of associate MR R 2 AAREESE Principal activities
BE AT ER Bx i 2 ERTEERETZEHL FTEEK
2020 2019

—2-8F —TNF

Unlisted associates (Continued)
FLEmEBERT ()
i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd Singapore 35.42% 35.42% Investment holding, provision of
BTN developing, distributing,
implementing and
supporting technology
risk management products
REER - feftFE -
DiH - Bt Rk X EEMTER
EREMFEY

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing,
R PEE implementing and

supporting technology

risk management products

RHEDH - Bt KRR

Jee\ i B 7 e S T

i-Sprint Innovations Inc. The US 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing and
E3EY implementing technology

risk management products

TR0 85 R Bl

[ B B TR TS

i-Sprint Investment Limited Hong Kong 35.42% 35.42% Investment holding, provision of
BB developing, distributing,

implementing and

supporting technology

risk management products

REER - et -

D~ Btk X ERMTER

EREMFEL

i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co. Ltd Thailand 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing,
ZRE implementing and

supporting technology

risk management products

RHDH - Bt KRR

[E\Be B R S
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. Bi N TR )

Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st December 2020 and 2019 are as RIZBZZFR_Z-NF+_A=+—H &K
follows: (Continued) SEBERRFBOT - (58)

Country/place Percentage of nominal value
of incorporation  of issued ordinary share capital
and operations  held indirectly by the Company

Name of associate EMR Y REE 2 AAREESE Principal activities
BEATER EEYS: 1) ERTEBERETZEML FEEK
2020 2019

—2-8F —TNF

Listed associates

EHEE AT
Grid Dynamics Holdings Inc. us 38.31% - Provision of enterprise-level
e digital transformation in the
areas of search, analytics,
and release automation
REENES - 91 - B
BENb (b3 BB ER 75
Grid Dynamics International, LLC us 38.31% — Provision of service in Information
EH technology (“IT”) engineering
BB (BB ) TRER®
Grid Dynamics DOO Beograd Serbia 38.31% - Provision of service in computer
— Novi Beograd ERgED programming
B TR
Limited Liability Company Russia 38.31% - Provision of service in software
“Grid Dynamics Russia” R zE A development, consulting and
relating professional service
PR - BEEREEEERS
Limited Liability Company Poland 38.31% - Provision of service in software
“Grid Dynamics Poland” R development, consulting and

relating professional service

IR - R RAAEEERE
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 3. B N

Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st December 2020 and 2019 are as RZZZTFR_T-NFE+=ZA=+—H ' &
follows: (Continued) B HERBFENT - (&)

Country/place Percentage of nominal value
of incorporation  of issued ordinary share capital
and operations  held indirectly by the Company

Name of associate AR R AR 2 AN EEESE Principal activities
BE AT BB Bx i 2 ERTEBERAZBEHL FTEEK
2020 2019

—E-BF —T-NF

Listed associates (Continued)

L QT (&)
Limited liability Company Ukraine 38.31% - Provision of service in software
“Grid Dynamics Ukraine” B development, consulting and
relating professional service
PR - BERREEEERS
Limited Liability Company Ukraine 38.31% — Provision of service in software
“Cometera Ukraine” S5 development, consulting and
relating professional service
BRI - B MR B RS
Limited Liability Company Ukraine 38.31% = Provision of service and support
“GD Ukraine” | on behalf of Grid Dynamics and
its customers
R Grid Dynamics & £ &P
IRALAR TS AN 1%
Daxx Web Industries B.V Netherlands 38.31% - Provision of service in software
Gl development, consulting and
relating professional service
PR - R MAREEERS
All associates have a reporting date of 31st December and held indirectly by the FiAEENAINFEBBHORNT—_A=1+T—8 "
Company. WA ARIEERE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. B¢ N Rl R o)

TREMFEAEREARZEZHZ Q5 (GDH
SEXI-Sprint £ &) 2R E B ERBEE - Wi

23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised consolidated financial information
of GDH Group and i-Sprint Group, which are material associates accounted for

using the equity method, adjusted for fair value adjustments on acquisition (if BRKERAAEEAR(IE) REHERER
any) and any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying R N BRAR A BTG R N AR & ¥R 2 H18R ¢
amount in the consolidated financial statements:
Listed Unlisted
GDH Group i-Sprint Group
=) FEEH
GDH&E i-Sprint &£ &
2020 2020 2019
—E-TF —EC-EH —NF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FiExT FAT
Non-current assets EMBEE 462,819 39,784 38,288
Current assets MENEE 1,043,355 80,756 60,855
Current liabilities mENAE (103,222) (93,857) (75,954)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (80,057) (325) =
Net assets FEE 1,322,895 26,358 23,189
Revenue for the period/year HAM,FERIA 696,009 102,753 122,353
Profit/(Loss) for the period/year A, FE R (1) (165,736) 10 (23,427)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income B,/ FREMEE
for the period/year (E518) W - (161) 546
Total comprehensive loss for the period/year HiEFAEEEERE (165,736) (151) (22,881)
Group’s share of: REBEAG -
Profit/(Loss) for the period/year i FRRS, (BR) (63,490) 4 (8,298)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HE FAEMEE
for the period/year (E18) Wz - (57) 193
Total comprehensive loss for the period/year B,/ FAEAEEEAE (63,490) (53) (8,105)
Dividend received B B - - -
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oY — a2z
23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (coninued) 23. B & N EHER )
The financial information of iN Systems (Macao) Limited, which is not a material WIEAREBE RN 2 BE AR ZE RGRHE ORP)
associate of the Group, is as below: BRARZHBFERAT ¢
2020 2019
ZEZEF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Group’s aggregate share of net assets REE pEG— AR A A
of an associate LIFAERTE 749 743
Group's share of: LB
Profit for the year F R A 6 11
Other comprehensive income HEthemias - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZENKELE 6 11
A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying Pt B ER B ZENGDHEE « i-Sprint &£ &
amount of each of the investments in GDH Group, i-Sprint Group and iN Systems REBE RGN R AR QRS B ZRERE
(Macao) Limited are set out below: BEZHRNAT
iN Systems
(Macao) Limited
GDH Group i-Sprint Group BERFZERH
GDH&EHE i-Sprint £ (CRP9) BRAF
2020 2020 2019 2020 2019

—®-%F —B-%F —T-NF —T-BF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FELT  FERT  PET TER TER

Total net assets of associates B N R F A EARRE 1,322,895 26,358 23,189 3,121 3,096
Portion of ownership interests ~ AEEfIFE 2 HE

held by Group RS 38.31% 35.42% 35.42% 24% 24%
Group’s share of net assets REEELEENRNFEE

of associates 506,801 9,336 8,213 749 743
Others EAh, (69,764) (5,629) (4,460) - =
Goodwill B 1,312,355 31,648 31,429 - =

1,749,392 35,355 35,182 749 743

Less: Provision for impairment R ERHE - (16,300) (16,300) - =
Carrying amount of interests RERE Hﬁ*iﬁi’%ﬁﬁﬁ'\

in associates in the REEE AR REE

consolidated financial
statements 1,749,392 19,055 18,882 749 743
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23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of ASL Automated
Services (Thailand) Limited. The amounts of unrecognised share of results of this
associate, extracted from the relevant management accounts of the associate,
both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

3. B¢ N Rl R o)

RNEE B4R EHERE FE (L ASL Automated Services
(Thailand) Limited B518 © fE{5 3% & QA B2 F N
REBFZABREES T (FHEEHE AR 2
AEERE)WT ¢

2020 2019
e —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET

Unrecognised share of profit of an associate FARMEREN —EHE QA
for the year iyl 21 1
Other comprehensive income Hibh 2 EWE= - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKSEE 21 1

Accumulated unrecognised share of losses of RET ARG B E AT
an associate pd 1= 562 583

24.EQUITY INVESTMENT 4. BRERE
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Financial asset at FVOCI RAABEZEBHMEZEAKSEIIRZSRMEE

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value ELEmRERE  BAREE 598 598

The Group entered into the agreement with Teamsun, Pansky Technology
Corporation Ltd. and Beijing Honggiao Technology Co., Ltd. to establish a
company in the PRC, pursuant to which the Group committed to subscribe for
10% equity interest in the PRC company with capital contribution of Renminbi
("RMB")10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$11,915,000). As at 31st December
2020, the Group has injected RMB500,000 (equivalent to HK$598,000) (2019:
RMB500,000 (equivalent to HK$598,000)) to the equity investment.

The Group designated its investment in this unlisted investment as financial asset
at FVOCI, as this investment is held as long-term strategic investments that is not
expected to be sold in the short to medium term.

Details of the fair value of the unlisted equity investment has been measured as
described in Note 6(d).

AEEHEERFERK - RAEHEZER AR I REA
BREBRAR L H#E  RPBRKY—RAD
Al v R ANEEAE A E AR 10,000,000
JC (A& 711,915,000 7T ) R EZ+ & A Al
10%BE - RZFT=_FTF+=-_A=+—H0 ' &
£ 82 E A AR 500,000 7T (#E 7 598,000
Bir) (ZZE— 4G« AR 500,000t (F8E %
598,0007%7T)) Tz R E -

AEBBENZIELTIRE ZREEEREAR
EEEBEMEEWRTIE  RESZRETIR
ERMRIEIEIRE - R TERNTRHALE -

PRI LTREREZ AR BEZFS - SR
FE6(d).
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25.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line

25.

RERNS S 2EMTA

ERMTAZEHBRERAN THIFE :

items below:
2020 2019
—_ ? — q—: —j‘Lf‘E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets SWMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost RBHERARIEZEREE
Trade receivables FEUWE 558 240,472 344,219
Other receivables and deposits H A FEUGRIE iz & 9,719 25,978
Finance lease receivables FEU B E THE R IE 6,987 7,675
Restricted bank deposits SR ISR TER - 556
Bank balances and cash RITEREES 370,521 456,058
627,699 834,486
Financial asset at FVOCI RARBEEBHMEZEIKESIEREZ
(non-recycling) SREE (FAHE)
Equity investment &R E 598 598
628,297 835,084
Financial liabilities S@Aas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RBEARIEzSRmEE
Trade payables BB 5308 282,557 360,282
Other payables and accruals H th T RIE K ERT B 171,511 184,612
Borrowings BE 145,938 439,770
Lease liabilities HERE 6,436 5,945
606,442 990,609
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RAREEEBERIIENEHAE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RAREEABIERIIRNEHAE - 75,017
606,442 1,065,626
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26.INVENTORIES

26. 7 E

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Inventories FE
— Goods held for resale - FHEEEZEY 80,292 78,399
— Goods pending for customers’ acceptance - BRERPEMNCED 57,110 109,706
137,402 188,105
Other contract costs Hih & 4IRS 75,323 79,833
212,725 267,938

Goods held for resale and goods pending for customers’ acceptance mainly
represent computer equipment and software products.

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the cost of inventories recognised
as expenses and included in “cost of goods sold” and “cost of services rendered”
amounted to approximately HK$892,822,000 and HK$161,931,000 (2019:
HK$887,876,000 and HK$128,855,000), respectively.

Other contract costs relate to the incremental sales commissions paid to
salesperson whose selling activities resulted in customers entering into sales
contacts and fulfillment costs that generates or enhances resources of the Group
that will be used in satisfying performance obligations and expected to be
recovered.

Other contract costs are recognised as expenses and included in “cost of goods
sold” and “cost of services rendered” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the period in which revenue is recognised. The amount of capitalised
costs recognised in profit or loss during the year was HK$312,258,000 (2019:
HK$268,642,000). There was no impairment in relation to the opening balance
of capitalised costs or the costs capitalised during the year ended 31st December
2020 (2019: Nil).

FEEE BN MAREPEMZENIERE
feER R Em o

BE_T-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFEEER
BRI WEATHERAN ] R [1RERSZ K
K] ZHEEKAR D R4 /892,822,000% 7T &
161,931,000/ 7T (=2 — L4 : 887,876,000/
7T 5% 128,855,000/87T) °

H &R A ERAEHEED BRI LHE
BRZHEABXNZIEBHERS KA ES
I AN ETTREAEEILTER S A= 2 A
SEERZBEHORAER -

Htb B AR KRS ERR 2 PREANELREE
HRTPERAMY - Wit ATHEERAS] K2
HRBEZRA] - FARIBRFRHERZERNE
B 7N & %8 /312,258,000 T( =& — SL4F ¢
268,642,000/87T) ° BEAMEEK A 2 HAFIAEeRE
HE-_T-_ZF+-_F=1+—RHIFEERENL
AW EBERBE(ZT—NF &) -
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27.TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BN B 5 FIE

2020 2019

—E-EF —ZE—nF

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fax FHET

Trade receivables — gross FEWE 558 - 2% 248,118 346,377
Less: ECL allowance B TEEEEEIBRE (7,646) (2,158)
Trade receivables — net EURE 55008 - F5E 240,472 344,219

AEBZMERFPEALBZH30REEH -
AEBRREEEZSBABEERBREER
1K - RARERE LR 2 FORBENMEL T
& o AREREEBERFETERNHE6(b) ©

The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers for 30 days
and has credit control procedures to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy are set out in Note 6(b).

Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables, is BIEEER - BB SFEZRERAITAT ¢
as follows:
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
0 - 30 days 0E30K 117,368 160,655
31 - 60 days 31 260K 59,886 79,678
61— 90 days 61 £ 90K 27,643 69,664
Over 90 days B 90K 43,221 36,380
248,118 346,377
The movement in the Group’s ECL allowance of trade receivables is as follows: AEBEWE HHIBENTEREEBBRREEZES N
™
2020 2019
gt 223 —ZT—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
At 1st January m—H—H 2,158 9,417
Amount written off during the year FAMHSHE - (4,195)
ECL allowance EHEEEEEE 6,141 296
Reversal of ECL allowance TEHREEEERERRD (551) (3,268)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBE AT (156) =
Exchange realignment HE 5 2 54 (92)
At 31st December W+=ZA=+—8 7,646 2,158

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there BREERNR 2 2E— RN BRI KR EIZEING
is no expectation of recovering additional cash. The Group does not hold any SRMEE AREBUWESETMERRIERE
collateral as security. R o
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27. FEWNE 5 RIE )

The gross trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies: FEWE 5 FIEAAFEA T HIEHEHE -
2020 2019
—ECEH —ZT—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FBT
HKD BT 226,522 221,458
usD ET 6,345 115,440
RMB AR¥E 546 473
Thailand Baht (“THB") Tk ([ /K1) 6,351 5,204
Macau Pataca (“MOP") SERFTHS (RPIEE D) 2,692 1,684
New Taiwan dollars (“NTD") Fak((EHhakl) 5,180 2,001
Other currencies fth &’ 482 117
248,118 346,377

As at 31st December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of trade receivables

approximate their fair values.

28.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

RZB_EFR-_ZT—NF+_A=+—8 " &
WESHBEZ RASERE AR EEES -

28. FE B B A & FRIH

The total minimum lease receivables under finance leases and their present values AT RIREREHREREREARB 2 &IEEKHE
at the reporting date are as follows: BHFEREEE
2020 2019
i —hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FABT
Non-current receivables: IR EN RIS -
Gross finance lease receivables FEM B E T E R IH AR EE 4,451 5,335
Unearned finance income ARERE Z B E WA (243) (389)
4,208 4,946
Current receivables: TENPEWRIE -
Gross finance lease receivables FE B E M ERIH AR FE 3,043 3,023
Unearned finance income KRR Z B A WA (264) (294)
2,779 2,729
Gross receivables from finance leases: REMEHE 2 EWRFIEHAEE :
Not later than 1 year —FR 3,043 3,023
Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years —FREMFERN 2,235 2,029
Later than 2 year and not later than 3 years MFERR=FN 2,055 1,743
Later than 3 year and not later than 4 years —FEREFA 161 1,563
Gross finance lease receivables FEM & TR E SR IE AR EE 7,494 8,358
Unearned finance income AREREZ BE WA (507) (683)
Net finance lease receivables W EREREFE 6,987 7,675
The net finance lease receivables Y mEREFIETEERR
are analysed as follows: LU FEDAT ¢
— Not later than 1 year - —FR 2,779 2,729
— Later than 1 year and not later than 4 years - —FERNFA 4,208 4,946
6,987 7,675
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29.0THER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 29. HfttFEWFIE - IRE RFE(T

=hH
PREPAYMENTS MIE
2020 2019
—EC-EF —TNF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHExT FT
Other receivables H b FE RIS 2,538 9,234
Deposits Ze 5,948 5,715
Prepayments TERFRIE 8,313 44,157
Amount due from ultimate holding company BEEIERR A RIR R 832 832
Amount due from immediate holding company — EEHERE A &R K 1,084 1,836
Amount due from an associate — B & A RIR K 149 9,193
Other receivables, deposits and HiEWRIE « ke RN - 25
prepayments — gross 18,864 70,967
Less: ECL allowance B TREEE R (832) (832)
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — net EAhEUIE - 2e MFENFIE - F5E 18,032 70,135
As at 31st December 2020 and 2019, amounts due from ultimate holding RIZBZZFR-Z-NF+_A=+—0H &
company, immediate holding company and an associate are unsecured, interest- BIERABIRR - BEER A BIR R R — &
free and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts approximate their fair RRARAREER  2EREEXEE - ANE
values due to their short maturities. RHME  RECRREEEALEERS -
The balances (before ECL allowance) are denominated in the following currencies: HEor (G ATEHEEEIBRERT) T A T F &1 &t
& :
2020 2019
—EEF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FHET
HKD HBIT 12,030 13,988
THB =R 1,526 11,253
RMB AR 2,242 1,451
NTD e 978 605
usD ETT 541 43,114
MOP RPTHE 1,547 556
18,864 70,967
As at 31st December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of other receivables REZTEZTFR-F-NF+-A=+—H E
and deposits approximate their fair values. ENFERES ZEASHEE AL EEE
s
A4 %
30.CONTRACT ASSETS 0.5HNEE
As at 31st December 2020 and 2019, the balance represented contract costs RIBZZFR-ZF-NF+-_A=+—H  #
incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses and progress billings. BRIEFTEE 2 2 & RO ZNIN B 1 0 KR 2 1R AEs
BREEMK -
The decrease of contract assets during the year ended 31st December 2020 is HE—T-_TFT-_A=1—HIEFE A&
mainly due to decrease of ongoing contracts. EZRLEEHRNEEETELRD
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31.RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

As at 31st December 2020, bank balances carry interest at market rates with an
average interest rate of 0.06% (2019: 0.51%) per annum. As at 31st December
2019, restricted bank deposits carried interest at market rates with an average
interest rate of 1.53% per annum.

Bank balances and cash are denominated in the following currencies:

3. ZRFIMITERRBITER

kBEE

N-ZE-—FE+-A=+—0 " BITEKRET
BHRAE - FHEFEE006% (=T — N
£:051%) R-_ZT—hAE+-_A=+—8"
ZRFRITERIRTISFI RS - FHER XA
1.53% o

RITFRLIR S AT EHEHE

2020 2019

i —TNF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHxT FHT

HKD PETT 246,461 104,381
RMB AR 4,766 3,825
NTD e 7,941 7,230
usb e 95,007 324,014
THB Rk 10,902 4,636
MOP SRPH 5,354 3,408
Other currencies Hh g 90 8,564
370,521 456,058

As at 31st December 2019, included in restricted bank deposits of approximately
HK$556,000 are pledged to secure the performance bonds of the Group.

Restricted bank deposits are denominated in the following currencies:

RZB-NF+-A=+—8  ZRHRTER
556,000 7T E A{EA & B E L RZB IR @ o

ERBIRITEZA TN EEE

2020 2019

—EBCEE —T—hEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

MOP SRPT S - 556
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32.SHARE CAPITAL

188

32. [R A<

Number
of shares Amount
RHEE kx-]
‘000 HK$'000
FA% FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREEO0.10B T2 EER
Authorised: EERA :
At 1st January 2019, 31st December 2019, R=-ZF-h&—A—H8 "
1st January 2020 and 31st December 2020 —E-AFE+=A=+—H"
—BE-ZF-A—-BR
—EEF+-A=+—H 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRABR :
At 1st January 2019 R_Z—NF—H—H 805,224 80,522
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise RERERITERET 2 EER
of share options 111 11
Issue of ordinary shares upon conversion IR AR E SR BT 2 @R ()
of convertible bonds (Note) 21,978 2,198
At 31st December 2019 and 1st January 2020 R=—Z—hFE+=-A=+—HK
—E-ZTH5—-H—H 827,313 82,731
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise REERIERTE R ETT 2 EBAR
of share options 2,994 300
At 31st December 2020 R-B-ZF+=-A=+—H 830,307 83,031

Note:

On 20th November 2019, a bondholder of the convertible bonds has completed the
conversion of Convertible Bond with principal amount of HK$20,000,000 into 21,978,022
shares at the conversion price of HK$0.91 per share. Details are set out in Note 36(ii).

All the shares in issued during the year rank pari passu with the then existing
shares of the Company in all respects.

Annual Report 2020 & #f

GEX

R-B—-NE+—A=-+tHB Hb—REHEHEAT
{75 < %8 20,000,000 7 7T 2 AT 2R & % AT A 75 2 #R AR
7 AERR0.9 BT 2 MREEIR L BR - BERE R
21,978,022 R BIRE AL R BEITFZESFFEA 7
TEE I FE 36(i) ©
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33.TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the reporting date, based on
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B.ENEZFIE

PR E SRR R AR BN K2 A 2 ARk

payment due date, is as follows: W -

2020 2019
—E-BHF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Current BNHR 192,406 228,233
Within 30 days 30 KA 67,950 74,101
31-60 days 31260 6,938 21,428
61 - 90 days 612 90K 2,199 8,978
Over 90 days BB 90K 13,064 27,542
282,557 360,282

The balances are denominated in the following currencies: HEARTIA TS E’ERHE -
2020 2019
i —EF-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHxT
HKD BT 183,528 235,522
RMB AR 1,814 801
usD ET 73,723 90,442
THB B 20,498 31,790
NTD =k 2,908 1,359
Other currencies HEthE® 86 368
282,557 360,282

At the reporting date, the carrying values of trade payables approximate their fair

values.

REIRA  BNESFAZRRERERAREE

BE o
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34.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 0. Hb B FIE R BT E A
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAxT
Other payables E b BT RIE 7,595 15,765
Accruals (Note (7)) FEsT B R (FEE ) 162,258 167,232
Amount due to ultimate holding company R AR A BRI (B 5 (i)
(Note (ii)) 1,250 1,189
Amount due to associates (Note (i) IR N B ERIE (BB (i) 408 426
171,511 184,612
Notes: fifsE -
(i)  As at 31st December 2020, accruals mainly included unsettled transaction costs () RZZFE-ZTF+-_A=+—RH EzrB8RAXE
directly attributable to the Disposal amounted to HK$36,558,000 (2019: Nil) (Note BEAINZEALEMEEEEZRHKRAL
46) and provision of employee benefit expenses amounted to HK$86,810,000 (2019: 36,558,000 7T (ZZE—hE : £&) (Ffit46) RIE
HK$126,549,000). B a8 7B 781247 86,810,000 T (=T — N5 -
126,549,000 47T) °
(i)  The amounts due to ultimate holding company and associates are unsecured, interest (i) RELFRARREE DA 2 RIBE REER
free and are repayable on demand. RER EEAEXH% EE -
The balances are denominated in the following currencies: HEERTIA TS EHEETHE -
2020 2019
b S 23 —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
HKD BT 113,408 107,511
usD x& 47,548 68,884
RMB ARE 5,578 4,364
NTD A 1,314 1,121
THB e 2,475 1,571
MOP SRPIHE 1,188 1,161
171,511 184,612
At the reporting date, the carrying values of other payables and accruals REIRA - At ERRRIE R ETE A 2 REAE R
approximate their fair values. HARBEES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

ﬁﬁ%ﬁé

For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

Receipts in advance represent advance payments received prior to delivery TEY K AN B mAT WA 2 B (AR EmR
of goods which is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss ﬁﬁﬂ'izﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁ%zﬁ&m P RIRHARESATIER 2
upon the delivery of goods; and provision of service which is recognised in the PR (ERNEATP &R AH RS BEESS
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the service period stipulated in the B RER) - BH 2 BN KB R BHKEET E iR
respective customer contract. Contract liabilities arising from billings in advance SMEAX ZEHNBEHUERKES

of performance recognised and from receiving deposits of orders are reported as

receipts in advance.

The increase of receipts in advance as at 31st December 2020 is mainly due to
increase in billings in advance and deposit received as a result of more service

orders received from customers during the year.

As at 1st January 2020, receipt in advance amounted to HK$176,533,000 (2019:
HK$132,017,000), of which HK$156,090,000 (2019: HK$112,321,000) has been

recognised as revenue during the year ended 31st December 2020.

RoB-BET-AST—R - AkEEZ
E BN AR P ES 2 MR AT A A B
PRSI AR S0 -

R=ZZ=ZTF—A—HB 78Uk A 176,533,000
BT (ZZ—N4F 132,017,000/ 7T) » EFBE
156,090,000 7t ( =& — JL4F : 112,321,000
TERBE—ZE-_ZF+-_A=1T—BILFEm®
RBEWA -

[+
36.BORROWINGS 36. 6 &

2020 2019
—EC-EE —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Current TENEB 1D
Bank borrowings, secured (Note (i) EIRIRRITEE () 145,938 191,113
Convertible bonds (Note (i) AR ES (FREGi) - 248,657
145,938 439,770

Notes: PEE -

@)

Bank borrowings, secured

The Group's bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

() BEMRITEE
REEZ RITIEEERHAMT

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Within one year or on demand —FARSIREREE 145,938 191,113
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36 BORROWI NGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

192

@

(ii)

Bank borrowings, secured (Continued)

The bank borrowings are repayable by 60 equal monthly instalments commencing
from 29th March 2019 and bears interest at floating interest rate. As at 31st December
2020, the bank borrowings bears interest at floating interest rate and are denominated
in HKD with an effective interest rate of 4.11% (2019: 4.82%) per annum.

As at 31st December 2020, the bank borrowings are secured by:

Q)

the legal charges over the Group’s land and buildings with carrying amount of
approximately HK$166,700,000 (2019: HK$171,200,000) (Note 48);

the legal charges over the Group’s investment properties with carrying amount of
HK$54,300,000 (2019: HK$55,800,000) (Note 48);

the guarantees given by the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group
up to a limit of HK$330,000,000 (2019: HK$250,000,000);

assignment of rental and sales proceeds from the Group’s land and buildings and
investment properties; and

assignment of insurance of all insurance policies (other than third party liabilities
and public liabilities) over the Group’s land and buildings and investment
properties.

The banking facilities of term loan is subject to the fulfilment of certain financial
and non-financial covenants relating to certain subsidiaries of the Group, which are
commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
was to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable on
demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants, is up to the date
with the scheduled repayments of the loans and does not consider it probable that
the banks will exercise its discretion to demand repayment for so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements.

Subject to repayment on demand clauses which can be exercised at the banks’ sole
discretion, the above bank borrowings are classified as current liabilities as at 31st
December 2020 and 2019.

Convertible bonds

As at 1st January 2019, the Group’s convertible bonds with aggregate outstanding
principal of HK$250,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds"”) is convertible to 274,725,274
shares with conversion price of HK$0.91 per share.

On 20th November 2019, one of the bondholders, exercised the conversion right
attaching to the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$20,000,000 at
conversion price of HK$0.91 per share. A total of 21,978,022 ordinary shares were
allotted and issued to the bondholder and the aggregate outstanding principal amount
of the Convertible Bonds has been reduced to HK$230,000,000.

Annual Report 2020 & #f

36.f6 8

BT -

@)

(ii)

(&)
BEEMIRITHEER (8)

BITEER_Z—NFE=A -+ ABREZENTH
BASEIBMNREE  YRIBF RS -
WZZT=_ZT&+=-_R=+—8" f&mﬂ%%’é
THREN BRFMNERAE4N%(ZZT—LF:
4.82%) °

REZE-FTE+-A=+—H  RITEEATS
B IEVEEIR -

7N %2 B B 1 {5 166,700,000 T (—Z 2 — N
£ : 171,200,000 7T) 2 T RIEF ZIEFE
AR (HIE48)

(M

ANEE @R {E 54,350,0008 7T ( —F— N4 ¢
55,800,000 7T ) 2 & & ¥ ¥ 1E 2 7% T K 17
(GEZDE

BARARERERE THBARMEL 2 &S
FR %8 4 330,000,000/8 T Z FEIR (= — N
4F 1 250,000,000 7T) :

HBEALE T BT RIERENEZAE RH
Sl R

HEANEE T RETRIREMERERE
2R (E=FEERRIKEERIN) -

EHERZRITREAGERAREETHER
BZETHBRIFMBRABERRDAZE M
a%%?@“’%‘iﬁ"éﬁi%wﬁ%%ﬁiZ%?ﬂﬁ%F 1"
REBERZ @ FHERESRSRRERE

AEBTFTHERRLETRZEE R - BBEZB
HRABEEER  EASERRERAEHER
WRZEERNERT  RITPAATREITEER
HRE R -

ERTA 2B BETEAREREEGRORR
T RN=F=ER = fI = H =
B AERITEESBARBAR -

B A

RZZE—hEFE—A—B AEEZ2AEGEA
250,000,000 #7T 2 KRB & AR ES ([ AT AR &
% 1) AT ARAR 0.91 B T 2 AR (B 82 274,725,274
f&E AR o

—NE+—B=+B HEb—RELEEE
ATT{E 4 %8 20,000,000 74 7T 2 B] #4 4% & 5 B B
H 2 BRGHE - IAERR0.91 87T 2 IR B R 5
& - BETRA 221, 97sozzﬁxﬂtﬁﬁxa@a§§s&§éﬁ

FTREFBEA - IRRESFZAS BT TR
230,000,000 & 7T °



36 BORROWI NGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) Convertible bonds (Continued)

Upon the conversion, the Group derecognised the liability component of approximately
HK$19,861,000 and transferred this amount with equity component (convertible bond
reserve) of approximately HK$888,000 into share capital and share premium with
the amount of HK$2,198,000 and approximately HK$18,551,000 respectively, using
the method in consistency with that used initially to allocate the net proceeds on the

Convertible Bonds issuance date.

On 23rd March 2020, the Company has fully redeemed the outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds of HK$230,000,000 and total accrued interests of

HK$20,700,000.

The movement of liability component of the Convertible Bonds recognised in the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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36. 58

fiE : ()

(i) FHRRRES ()

TRZER G AEERIEERATRRES
BEE D #19,861,0007 ¢ ' EREZ DL
888,000 78 7T 7 Bl ¥ K A AR A< 49 2,198,000 4 7T &
AN 3E (B %9 18,551,00078 7T » BT R EZFIH6 5

BT AT BB S K

BFEEMAE— -

R-ZZE-ZTE=ZA-+=0 " AQFRIHAD
288 [ A 4£ %84 230,000,000 7T 2 AR EE A
& &% K FEETF B 42884 20,700,000 AT ©

WA BRI R AR 2 AR AR 2 A ERR

consolidated statement of financial position is as follows: HEREETEAT
2020 2019
—EoEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
At 1st January ®—A—8 248,657 257,425
Imputed interest expense HENSHRX 2,043 11,093
Conversion of Convertible Bonds AMHAARE 75 2 Bk - (19,861)
Payment for redemption EZD (250,700) -
At 31st December R+=A=+—H - 248,657

37.DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The components of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movement during the year

are as follows:

37.EIEFT 1S

FARERR B BN R PR ZELEPTSH
BE/(Af) ZHBAREEBFIRMT :

2020 2019

—E-EHF —T-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

At 1st January ®n—H—H (61,958) (71,036)
Tax charged to other comprehensive income B H 2 R NER TR IR (355) (3,176)
Tax (charged)/credited to profit or loss Bi825 GNER) FEARE (126,113) 12,158
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 46) HEM B A F (FisE46) (15,005) =
Exchange realignment b 5 A 58 96
At 31st December W+=RA=+—8 (203,373) (61,958)
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37.DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

194

The investments in the PRC, Thailand and the US incorporated operations give
rise to taxable temporary differences arising from the distribution of profits by
way of withholding tax.

As at 31st December 2020 and 2019, no deferred income tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Thailand and the US. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investment in a subsidiary in Thailand for which deferred
income tax liabilities have not been recognised of approximately HK$8,192,000
as at 31st December 2020 (2019: Thailand and the US totalled approximately
HK$303,910,000).

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31st December 2020, the Group had total tax losses
of approximately HK$17,418,000 (2019: HK$16,706,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred income tax asset has been recognised in
respect of tax loss of approximately HK$14,978,000 (2019: HK$16,706,000)
due to unpredictability of future profit streams, of which approximately
HK$13,161,000 (2019: HK$11,927,000) will expire within 1 to 5 years,
approximately HK$1,717,000 (2019: HK$4,679,000) will expire within 6 to 10
years and HK$100,000 (2019: HK$100,000) with unlimited expiry date.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for the consideration shares
received by a US subsidiary, GDD, from the Disposal as set out in Note 46. Such
consideration shares will be taxed until they are sold. As at 31st December 2020,
the Group had deferred tax liabilities in relations these consideration shares of
approximately HK$147,077,000 (2019: Nil), which is calculated based on the US
federal tax rate at 21% and the applicable US state tax rate.
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37.DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 37 EFEFREB )
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally B A A ISR EAR IR & ER HAN AR B A B A9 A]
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and BOENITIER) - BESEERBERR—HHKE
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority. The BETBUETE AR - EEFSIHEE BLRT
movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of FrISTAEE T - RER - BEFMSHEE
balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year are as follows: RBEREHER—FEEERE &R AT :
Accelerated tax Share-based
depreciation Revaluation Deferred Intangible payment
and others  of properties capital gain assets Tax loss expenses Total
niEHE NRAA
TERLM WEEE  EEERKE BpEE REER  EEINER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Thr Thr Thn Tin Thn Thn Thr
At 1st January 2019 RZE-NE-A-A (1.821) (46,652) - (23,191) - 628 (71,036)
Charged to other comprehensive income ~ BEMZEREFHR = (3,176) = = = = (3,176)
Credited to profit or loss STAER 312 - - 1,904 - 9,942 12,158
Exchange realignment TS (26) - - 115 - 7 %
At 31st December 2019 and 1t January 2020 R=F-AF+=A=1—H
R=F-FF-A-A (1,535) (49,828) - 21172 - 10577 (61,958)
Charged to other comprehensive income  BE 2 EMGERIR - (355) - - - - (355)
(Charged)/Credited to profit or loss (B /FEARER LS
from discontinued operations £RER 74 - (147,117) 310 25,609 (4,79) (125,920)
(Charged)/Credited to profit o loss (1B) /3t ARERERS
from continuing operations (Note 16) 2585 (i 6) (578) - - - 385 = (193)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 46) HEMBAR (M 6) (4.465) - - 20,769 (25,578) (5,731) (15,005)
Exchange realignment B AR 5 - ] 93 (30) (50) 58
At 315t December 2020 RZB-2E+ZA=1-A (6,499) (50,183) (147,077) - 386 - (203,373)
The analysis of deferred income tax is as follows: RIEPTER 2 DT
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTIS B EE 513 16,341
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFTSTHAE (203,886) (78,299)
(203,373) (61,958)
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38.LEASE LIABILITIES

196

lease liabilities:

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s

8.HEEE

TRENAEERER B2 A OTHERE

2020 2019
—_ ? — q—: —j‘Lf‘E
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FET
Total minimum lease payments: XA ERNRRE -
Due within one year —FRE|E 5,498 2,952
Due in the second to fifth years —ERFRNEE 1,308 3,434
6,806 6,386
Future finance charges on lease liabilities RREEBREZMBER (370) (441)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBERE 6,436 5,945
2020 2019
—EB-BH iﬁ_hfﬁ
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Present value of minimum lease payments: HEAERE -
Due within one year —FRE|H 5,261 2,709
Due in the second to fifth years —ERFATE 1,175 3,236
6,436 5,945
Less: Portion due within one year included B BRERDEEN—FA
under current liabilities B HAR B 19 (5,.261) (2,709)
Portion due after one year included under BREEFRBEER —F&
non-current liabilities FEREYER (D 1,175 3,236

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the Group entered into six

BE_Z-_ZF+-_A=1+—BLFE F5E

lease agreements (2019: six lease agreements) for use of office premises with
remaining lease term of one to two years (2019: one to three years). The Group
makes fixed payments during the contract periods. One of the lease agreements
contains an option for further extending the lease period for additional two years
by giving a six-month notice to landlord before the end of the lease. Some of
the lease agreements contain termination option by giving two to three months
advanced notice to the landlord. The Group considered the option would not be
exercised at the lease commencement date.

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the Group entered into two lease
agreements (2019: two lease agreements) for use of office equipment with
remaining lease term of four years (2019: five years). The Group makes fixed
payments during the contract periods. The leases do not contain any renewal
options.

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the total cash outflows for the
leases are HK$14,950,000 (2019: HK$39,362,000).
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39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company'’s share option scheme which was adopted on 8th August 2002 (the
“2002 Share Option Scheme”) was expired and a new share option scheme was
adopted by an ordinary resolution passed at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 13th March 2017 (the “2017 Share Option Scheme”).

Upon the expiry of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, no further option can be
offered thereunder but any options granted prior to such expiry but not yet
exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable.

(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme

Under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the Directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including Directors and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer,
upon payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. There is no general
requirement that an option must be held for any minimum period before
it can be exercised but the Directors of the Company are empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular option. The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Directors of the Company at its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors, and will not be less than
the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant of the options; (b) the average of the closing prices of
the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the options; and (c) the nominal value of a
share. The 2002 Share Option Scheme expired on 7th August 2012.
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39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 39. IR RERT 8l o)
() 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —SST-FERESE®)

TEEBAERER A ST FRRM
HEZBRERRBE S _EFR_F
—NE+ZA=+—AIHEERERE LS

The following table discloses details of the share options held by employees
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and movements in such holdings
during the years ended 31st December 2020 and 2019:

198

BHS

2020 e
Number of options
BREHR
Exercise At 1st Granted Lapsed Exercised At 31st
price January during during during December
per share 2020 the year the year the year 2020
R=B-%% R=B-2%
Grant date RHAH BRTEE -B-H EREL FREH FrTE T-A=t-8
19th March 2012 “E-ZE=AthA HK$0.704 557,100 - (92,847) (278,553) 185,700
0.704 7
2nd May 2012 “2--£3ACA HK$0.728 170,228 - - - 170,228
0.728 787
72138 - (92847 (278553) 355,028
Weighted average exercise MEFHBRITER HKS0.710 - HKS0.704 HK$0.704 HKS0.715
price per share 0.7110%7 0.704 57 0.704 %7 0.715%7
Number of options exercisable e 3:3
at 31t December 2020 t=A=t-A
TiTRNEREHE 355,928
Weighted average exercise price R=BZ%%
per share of options exercisable t-A=1-H
at 31t December 2020 TR REN HK$0.715
METHISRTEE 0.715%7
Weighted average remaining MEFENE 1.3 years
contractual life RHEH 135
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.
39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued 39. BB IR HERT &l o)
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —SST-FERETS®)
2019 —E-hEF
Number of options
ERiEHA
Exercise At st Granted Lapsed Exercised At 31st
price January during during during December
per share 2019 the year the year the year 2019
RIT-NE RIF-NE
Grant date st BRITEE —-A-A ERgi ERKiR ENffE TZR=1+-A
19th March 2012 —Z-—%#=8thA HK$0.704 557,100 - - - 557,100
0.704 /7T
2nd May 2012 “T-—Z#7A-RH HK$0.728 170,228 - - - 170,228
0.728%7C
727,328 - - - 727,328
Weighted average exercise MEFHERTER HK$0.710 = = = HK$0.710
price per share 0.71037T 0.710%7t
Number of options exercisable RZE-NE
at 31st December 2019 R = =
AfTEMERESE 721,328
Weighted average exercise price RIE-NE
per share of options exercisable +=A=1-H
at 31st December 2019 Bk ) HK$0.710
IETHBRITEE 071057
Weighted average remaining METSRIER 2.2 years
contractual lfe SHEH 28
The options granted on 19th March 2012 and 2nd May 2012 were vested RZZB——F=A+hBR=ZT—=FAA
equally on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date. “HEEMNEREEEARE RBRNE— -

FREDAFERHENHRE
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39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme

200

2017 Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 13th March
2017 and is valid and effective for a period of ten years from 13th March
2017.

The purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Company and/or its subsidiaries. The Board may,
at its discretion, grant options to any eligible employee, executive or officer
including Directors of the Company or its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares of the Company. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2017 Share Option
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue as at 13th March 2017, the date of approval of
the adoption of the 2017 Share Option Scheme. Unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The Board may at its absolute
discretion impose any minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which must be
achieved before the option can be exercised. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Directors of the Company
at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than
10 years after it has been granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and shall be at least the
higher of (a) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant of the options; (b)
the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options; and (c) the nominal value of a share of the Company.
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39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 39. AR &l o)
(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) —SE—tFERETE (B
The following table discloses details of the share options held by employees TEREBSEAREE(BREER)BE-Z
(including Directors) under the 2017 Share Option Scheme and movements —tFERETECERERNEE =S
in such holdings during the years ended 31st December 2020 and 2019: TRZT-NFTZA=T—RHIFEZSE
REZEEHFE
2020 .
Number of options
BREHA
Exercise At 1st Granted Lapsed Exercised At 31st
price January during during during December
per share 2020 the year the year the year 2020
i e S 2:3 S 2:3
Grant date RHAH BRITEE -B-H FREH EREH EnfifE  T=A=t-H
31st March 2017 —E-tE=fA=t-H HK$0.970 23,057,100 - (907,500) (2,549,600) 19,600,000
097087
28th April 2017 “E-tEMAZ+N\A HK$0.909 7,260,000 - - - 7,260,000
090987
13th December 2017 “E2-tE+ZAt=A HK$0.867 1,447,200 - - (165,750) 1,281,450
0.867787
31,764,300 - (907,500) (2,715,350 28,141,450
Weighted average exercise NETHERITEE HK$0.951 - HKS0.970 HK$0.964 HK$0.950
price per share 0.951 %7 0970 %7 0.964 7 0.950 7
Number of options exercisable ~ W=Z=F%
at 31st December 2020 TZB=1-H
UTENERERR 19,787,510
Weighted average exercise R=BZZ%
price per share of options +ZA=t-H
exercisable at WTENBEREN HK$0.960
315t December 2020 METABRTER 0.960387
Weighted average remaining ~ MEFIHE 6.30 years
contractual life RHEH 6.30F
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39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

202

(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

39. IR RERT 8l o)
(i) —FT—LFHERETE ()

2019 —E2-NEF
Number of options
g E
Exercise At 1st Granted Lapsed Exercised At 31st
price January during during during December
per share 2019 the year the year the year 2019
RIF-NE RIZ-NE
Grant date RS BRITEE -A-R ERgi Emki ERfIE  +ZA=t-A
31st March 2017 “E—t#=f=t-H HK$0.970 23,862,300 - (693,825) (111,375) 23,057,100
0.970% 7t
28th April 2017 “Z-tEMA=1+/\A HK$0.909 7,260,000 - - - 7,260,000
0.909 %7
13th December 2017 “E—+t5+-A+=H HK$0.867 1,665,600 - (218,400) - 1,447,200
0.867 %7
32,787,900 - (912,225) (111,375) 31,764,300
Weighted average exercise METHERTEE HK$0.951 - HK$0.945 HK$0.970 HK$0.951
price per share 0.951 %7 0.945557T 097057 095157
Number of options exercisable RIZ-NE
at 315t December 2019 +ZA=t-H
A TRERRERE 15,169,510
Weighted average exercise RIZ-NE
price per share of options TZA=+-H
exercisable at AfTiReER R HK$0.960
31st December 2019 MEFHERTEE 096077
Weighted average remaining TR 7.30 years
contractual life BNES 730E

During the year ended 31st December 2020, there was no share options
granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme (2019: Nil).

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the Group recognised total
expense of approximately HK$787,000 (2019: HK$1,731,000) in relation
to equity-settled share-based payment transactions under the 2017 Share
Option Scheme and included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
with a corresponding credited to the share-based payment reserve.
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39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(iii) GDI Share Option Scheme

The adoption of the share option scheme (“GDI Share Option Scheme”)
of a subsidiary of the Company prior to the Disposal, Grid Dynamics,
were approved by the shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting on 21st December 2018 (the “Adoption Date”). The GDI Share
Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years from 21st
December 2018 or until its termination by the board of directors of Grid
Dynamics (“GDI Board”), whichever is earlier.

The purpose of the GDI Share Option Scheme is to advance the interests
of Grid Dynamics and its shareholders by providing an incentive to attract,
retain and reward persons performing services for Grid Dynamics and any
entities that Grid Dynamics designates as within Grid Dynamics, its parent
companies or subsidiaries and by motivating such persons to contribute to
the growth and profitability of Grid Dynamics.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the GDI Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of Grid Dynamics which, unless otherwise permitted under
the Listing Rules, must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of Grid Dynamics's shares in issue as at 21st December 2018, the date of
approval of the adoption of the GDI Share Option Scheme. Grid Dynamics
may seek approval by its shareholders and the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting to refresh the 10% limit such that the total number of
the Grid Dynamics's shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the GDI Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of Grid Dynamics under the limit as “refreshed” shall not
exceed 10% of the total number of the Grid Dynamics's shares in issue as at
the date of approval to refresh such limit. Grid Dynamics may seek separate
approval by its shareholders and the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting for granting options beyond the 10% limit above, provided that the
options in excess of such limit are granted only to participants specifically
identified by Grid Dynamics and the Company before such approval is
sought.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the aggregate
number of Grid Dynamics’s shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any twelve-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
Grid Dynamics’s shares in issue (the “Single Participant Limit”).

Option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
participants and to have taken effect when the duplicate of the stock option
agreement comprising acceptance of the offer has been duly signed by the
participants within 28 days. No payment is required to accept an offer.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 5B Z 5B BR A A

39. IR RERT 8l o)
(iii) GDI BB R #E St &l

R-ZE—NE+-A=-+—8B(HFHE])
BITZ BRI ASEOERRA R RN L&
A 2 [} & A &) Grid Dynamics International,
Inc. ([ Grid Dynamics ) & %4 5+ &I ([ GDI
BRETED HESRERHBH-Z
—N\E+ZA=+— B +FEHKEZEGrid
Dynamics EE & ([GDIESR |) 4R 1ETE] -
REERE -

GDIfE iR 7 51 8 B 12 33 38 12 7 BB A IR
5|~ #%& ¥ K 48 E) A Grid Dynamics } Grid
Dynamics #5 7€ A2 HAQ Bl S B M EA B iR
BOALT([2EAREE ) WEBHEER
AL EGrid Dynamicstig & R BFIERRER -
WM {2 H#E Grid Dynamics N A B B9 F)z5

1R #% GDI & f% # 71 &l & Grid Dynamics {E fa]
H bR ST BIHS TR LM AT A AR T
(ERF AT THIR (DB S - A HTSHBBR =
T NF+ZA=+—B (ALERMAGDI
BRETEIZR) BEITROABEA10% -
Grid Dynamics ] 5K H iR 8 R AR A AR &R
RIRRARE EHEEFT10% ER - BIRR
[ 4858 37 | EPRARIR GDI B AR #E 51 &) & Grid
Dynamics £ {a] E fth B AR 7 51 £ 1§ T 4% H &Y
FTE R AR A TR RS AT SR THO AR D AR B - T
SHRBIAEENZ FRE BB ETRMHABE
#)10% ° Grid Dynamics A] BTSSR H R
RARBRRARRAG EHE - AR
B10% FIRAVEEARAE - BBHZ ERAE
P& 4 {2 0] 3% F Grid Dynamics &2 AN 2 A] &3k
ABRERTERIERM 2 HE -

BRIEAR B ESN - TR 12 8 A BRI A
BTBuAER2EENERE(BFEET
8 R I AR TR A BB AR A ) JEAT (50 1 35 17 It
F 217 #9 Grid Dynamics MIR% D 48 8 - 15
HBIBE EE1TH Grid Dynamics BN B2 1%
(MERI2EERTE])

B AHE ik 2 BI AN (R IR EL ) 826
EN2B8RAERES  AIBRERERS
EREIWESEERANARER - AR
BRI -

203



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
Cae)

LUp s E e

For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(iii) GDI Share Option Scheme (Continued)

204

The GDI Board shall have the full and final power and authority, in its
discretion, to determine any minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which must
be achieved before an option can be exercised.

The options will be exercisable until the expiration of ten years after the
effective date of grant of such option, or such other applicable date (i.e.
no incentive stock option granted to a person who, at the time an option
is granted to such person, owns stock possessing more than ten percent of
the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Participating
Company Group, shall be exercisable after the expiration of five years after
the effective date of grant of such option, and with the exception of (i) an
option granted to an officer, a director of the Participating Company Group
(the “GDI Scheme Director”) or a consultant, a person engaged to provide
consulting or advisory services (other than as an employee or a GDI Scheme
Director) to the Participating Company Group and (ii) an option that is
exercisable based on the accomplishment of specific performance-based
milestones, no option shall become exercisable at a rate less than twenty
percent per year over a period of five years from the effective date of grant
of such option, subject to the participant’s continued service).

The exercise price for each option will be determined by the GDI Board
and shall be not less than the fair market value of a Grid Dynamics’s
share, as determined by an independent third party valuation company
engaged by Grid Dynamics, on the effective date of grant of the option.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, an option may be granted with an exercise
price lower than the minimum exercise price set forth above if such option
is granted pursuant to an assumption or substitution for another option in
a manner qualifying under the provisions of Section 424(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986. However, the exercise price of options to be granted
after the Company has resolved to seek a separate listing of Grid Dynamics
on any stock exchange and up to the listing date of Grid Dynamics must be
not lower than the new issue price (if any).

Annual Report 2020 & #f

39. IR RERT 8l o)
(iii) GDI B B #E 51 8 ()

GDIEERRATER R RB LMD RR
R B RRAE T8 A /A A 2 BB R
0,/ SRAE (TG RS A1 4 R B0 £ 4
B

BERESH TITEEEARBRELNA S
BtFEw - XEREMERRH(RIRE
72 TBERER B R SR B B A R B A
BREAEM A RRAFRMETEITE - HER
TEREI : (VBEREDETSARKE - 2
HAFEEEE([GDIFBIEE]) HEH
(BREEHGDIF I ESINEZE M2 M
RAEERABERKARRBOHA L) K (i)
BRIER BT DERN TS ENEREER
BimE  A2EELERAREOBERT
BERBBRER AR R R R EHRAE
ABERENFABEREFAD < — THHLE
1I8) 1k °

BiERENITEEREBAGDIZESEMNIEE
E AT BRENSRITEETESER
Grid Dynamics 8 J& 1 PA #% 1 B8 AR i AE 30 H
B ATHE - BEHR LA TE - BMWE
RIBIRFE —NN\NFEBEARYBOEE
4@ ERENFT - BRIFS —TBERED
REEHERTE  BIZEAREE R DUER £
Fritt 2 SARATEERITEER D A - B
KA B)E SR = 5K Grid Dynamics 7 T 7] 3%
(X ZFEE L& KR E ZE Grid Dynamics
T B AR R B AR A TR B SRR
HETE(mAE) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

.
39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 39. BB IR HERT &l o)
(iii) GDI Share Option Scheme (Continued) (iii) GDI B IR REST 8l ()
The following table discloses details of the share options granted by Grid T 2 4% 22 Grid Dynamics #% i GDI f# f% & &t
Dynamics under the GDI Share Option Scheme and movements in such B ERERREE-Z_ZFR TN
holdings during the years ended 31st December 2020 and 2019: FTA=T—HIFEZERL 228
15
2020 —ECEH
Number of options
BREYR
Exercise At 1st Granted Forfeited  Derecognised At 31st
price January during during during December
per share 2020 the year the year the year 2020
23 R-BZB%
Grant date REAH BRERE -A-8 FREW FREN FRALE tZA=1-H
21st December 2018 “E-\ft-A=1+-H UsD7.54 2,040,000 - (10,000) (2,030,000) -
154%T
22nd May 2019 “E-hERZRA=-tZH UsD7.54 20,000 - (10,000) (10,000) -
154 %7
22nd May 2019 “E-NERLR=tZ=H UsD7.55 566,904 - (2,577) (564,327) -
15557
24th January 2020 “E-EF-ACtWA USD7.55 - 130,000 - (130,000) -
755 %70
2,626,904 130,000 (22,577) (2,734,327) -
Weighted average exercise ~ NELIBRITHEE USD7.54 USD7.55 UsD7.54 USD7.54 -
price per share 154%T 755%7 154 %7 154% T
Number of options i 223
exercisable at +=B=t-H
31st December 2020 AfTERNERESE -

Weighted average exercise ~R=-F-ZF
price per share of options T=EET=E

exercisable at ATENEREN
31st December 2020 MEFHBRTER -
Weighted average TSR

remaining contractual life ~ AHEH -
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39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(iii) GDI Share Option Scheme (Continued)

39. FE IR A&l

(iii) GDI BB IR g =t &l ()

2019 —E-hF
Number of options
BREHA
Exercise At 1st Granted Lapsed Exercised At 31st
price January during during during December
per share 2019 the year the year the year 2019
R-Z-nF R-F-NF
Grant date it SRARE  —A-B  FRER  TREM FRAE t-A=1-A
21st December 2018 “Z-\§tZA=1+-H USD7.54 2,250,000 = = (210,000) 2,040,000
7547
22nd May 2019 “E2-NERAZTZH USD7.54 - 20,000 - = 20,000
754370
22nd May 2019 “E-NERA=T=A USD7.55 = 582,339 = (15,435) 566,904
75557
2,250,000 602,339 = (225435 2,626,904
Weighted average exercise IETGRRIT1R(E UsD7.54 UsD7.55 - UsD7.54 UsD7.54
price per share 75470 7.55% 70 7547 754370
Number of options RZE-NE
exercisable at +=A=t+-H
315t December 2019 Al{7fRRE R A 951,246
Weighted average exercise RZZ-NE
price per share of options +ZA=+-H
exercisable at TR R Y UsD7.54
31st December 2019 IET BRI TIR(E 754%ETT
Weighted average IETFFIE 8.99 years
remaining contractual life BHER 8.99%F
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39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(iii) GDI Share Option Scheme (Continued)

In respect of the share options granted during the year ended 31st
December 2020, the estimated fair values of the options on the dates
of grant were calculated using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The
estimated fair values amounted to USD3.91 (2019: USD3.18 — USD3.38) per
option. The inputs into the model were as follows:

39. IR RERT 8l o)
(iii) GDI B B #E 5+ & (&)

RREE—T-_TF+_A=+—HILFE
HMEEAERENS - RRE BB
BREAABENEA-_BHECEER
FTE - BRI AR EBEABRINEL(ZE
— N 3183 T - 3.383k7T) ° B
FEBHAZENAT ¢

Granted on
24th January

2020

R=2=%F

—A-tHmAFH

Share price at grant date RE L BHARRE UsD10.09
10.09% 7T

Exercise price at grant date AR H BRI TEE UsD7.55
7.55% T

Expected volatility LN 38.70%
Option life RNk ER 10 years
10F

Risk-free rate 1 BB A1 2 2.38%
Expected dividend TEEAAR 2 4.0%

The expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the comparable companies of Grid Dynamics for the closing share price for
the period of 10 years before the date of grant.

Under the terms of the GDI Share Option Scheme, certain option grants
were accelerated in full or by an additional 12 months immediately prior
to the Disposal as set out in Note 46. The acceleration of vesting for share
options resulted in recognition of equity-settled share-based payment
expenses and corresponding increase to share-based payment reserve.

During the period from 1st January 2020 to the date of the Disposal,
the Group recognised total expense of approximately HK$10,848,000
(2019: HK$24,146,000) in relation to equity-settled share-based payment
transactions under the GDI Share Option Scheme and included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss with a corresponding credit to the
share-based payment reserve.

The Group derecognised the accumulated share-based compensation
reserve in relations to GDI Share Option Scheme of HK$50,961,000 upon
the Disposal as detailed in Note 46.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 5B Z 5B BR A A
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ABERIN AR B AGEEBER
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40.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FVTPL
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40. B R REBEEBED RN
TREE

2020 2019
—EC-EF —TNF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHExT FT

Convertible preferred shares and AMHRARB AR K
related put option (Note (a)) TR A BRRE (95T () - 61,303
Put option liability (Note (b)) SR EARE (BdE (b)) - 13,714
- 75,017

Notes:

(a)

Convertible preferred shares and related put option

On 6th May 2019, Grid Dynamics, a subsidiary of the Company prior to the Disposal
incorporated in the US, entered into a subscription agreement with BGV Opportunity
Fund LP (“BGV"), a connected person of the Company at subsidiary level, whereby Grid
Dynamics agreed to allot and issued 622,027 common stock (the “Common Shares”)
and 622,027 Series A preferred stock (the “Convertible Preferred Shares”) (collectively,
the “Securities”) at a total consideration of USD15,000,000 (the “Subscription”). The
Subscription was completed on 15th May 2019 (the “Date of Initial Completion”).

The significant terms of the Convertible Preferred Shares are as follows:
Voting rights

Holders of Convertible Preferred Shares shall have the right to vote at any general
meeting of Grid Dynamics on an as-converted basis, and not as a separate class, except
as required by law.

Dividend

Holders of Convertible Preferred Shares shall be entitled to payment of dividends on an
as-converted basis as and when dividends are paid on Common Shares. Such right to
dividends shall not be cumulative and no right to dividend shall accrue by reason that
no dividend was declared during a particular period, nor shall any undeclared or unpaid
dividend bear or accrue interest.

Liquidation preference

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Grid Dynamics, each
Convertible Preferred Shares shall be entitled to USD 24.1147 plus declared and unpaid
dividends (or, if greater, the amount that the Convertible Preferred Shares would receive
on an as-converted basis). The balance of any proceeds shall be distributed pro rata to
holders of Common Shares.
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40. B A REBEEBED RN

40. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FVTPL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

Convertible preferred shares and related put option (Continued)
Conversion option

Holders of Convertible Preferred Shares shall have the option to convert Convertible
Preferred Shares to Grid Dynamics ordinary shares at an initial conversion price of USD
14.8647 per share, subject to adjustments for stock issuances, splits, combinations,
dividends, distributions, merger and reorganisation and similar events. Also subject
certain events, each of Convertible Preferred Shares shall be automatically converted
into Grid Dynamics ordinary shares at applicable conversion ratio and conversion price.

Put option on Convertible Preferred Shares granted by the Company (“Put Option on

CPS”)

In connection with the Subscription, the Company, being the largest shareholder of
Grid Dynamics, granted a Put Option on CPS to BGV on the Date of Initial Completion.
In the event the Board resolves not to proceed with an initial public offering of shares in
Grid Dynamics on a stock exchange in the US (“IPO") within three years from the Date
of Initial Completion (except for non-fulfilment of applicable requirements for listing on
the part of Grid Dynamics or reasons beyond the control of the Company), BGV shall
have the right to require, within 60 days of such board resolution, the Company to
purchase all or part of the Convertible Preferred Shares then held by BGV at an amount
equal to the original subscription price plus an annual return of 20% (simple interest).
The consideration payable upon exercise of the Put Option on CPS was determined
after arm’s length negotiation between the parties having considered the historical
growth rate of Grid Dynamics. The Put Option on CPS shall terminate at the earlier of
the closing of the IPO of Grid Dynamics and the third anniversary of the date of grant
of the Put Option on CPS.

Put option on Common Shares granted by the Company (“Put Option on CS")

In connection with the Subscription, the Company granted a Put Option on CS to
BGV on the Date of Initial Completion. In the event the Board resolves not to proceed
with an initial public offering of shares in Grid Dynamics on a stock exchange in the
US within three years from the Date of Initial Completion (except for non-fulfilment
of applicable requirements for listing on the part of Grid Dynamics or reasons beyond
the control of the Company), BGV shall have the right to require, within 60 days of
such board resolution, the Company to purchase all or part of the Common Shares
then held by BGV at an amount equal to the original subscription price plus an annual
return of 20% (simple interest). The consideration payable upon exercise of the Put
Option on CS was determined after arm’s length negotiation between the parties
having considered the historical growth rate of Grid Dynamics. The Put Option on CS
shall terminate at the earlier of the closing of the IPO of Grid Dynamics and the third
anniversary of the date of grant of the Put Option on CS.
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40. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FVTPL (continued

210

The Convertible Preferred Shares is designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL and
the put option is measured at FVTPL on initial recognition and are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The Convertible Preferred Shares, the Put Option on CPS and the Put Option on
CS were valued at fair value by the Company with reference to an independent
valuation provided by an independent firm of professional valuers. On initial
recognition, the total fair value of convertible preferred shares and related
put option and Put Option on CS amounted to approximately USD9,246,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$72,565,000) and are estimated using the
option-pricing model and equity allocation model.

The movement of the financial liabilities at FVTPL for the years ended 31st
December 2019 and 2020 are set out in Note 6(d)(i).

During the year ended 31st December 2019, there was no conversion of the
Convertible Preferred Shares and no redemption of the Securities. As detailed in
Note 46, the Group derecognised the Convertible Preferred Shares granted by
Grid Dynamics upon the Disposal on 5th March 2020. After the Disposal, the
put options granted by the Company on the convertible preferred shares and
common shares issued by Grid Dynamics to the subscriber was terminated.
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41.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 41.7 A BB # AR &

2020 2019
—EC-EF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KR 67 140
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIEE 428,893 428,893
Deferred income tax assets BEMEHEE 513 114
429,473 429,147
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments EfbEIFIR « e RIENFIR 71 581
Amount due from immediate holding company — B &R K 1,084 1,836
Amounts due from subsidiaries ) EVNCIUNEN 439,744 472,726
Amount due from an associate aE) NI 63 64
Tax recoverable AIUR B T TB 133 340
Bank balances and cash RITERKES 5,296 1,453
446,391 477,000
Total assets BmEE 875,864 906,147
Equity =
Share capital A&7 83,031 82,731
Share premium & = ERR 399,272 395,830
Reserves (Note) e (B &E) 109,138 97,526
Total equity BrER 591,441 576,087
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables and accruals Hib RN FIEREFER 9,180 11,605
Borrowings EBE - 248,657
Amount due to ultimate holding company U Si ) NCIE /O 92 86
Amounts due to subsidiaries R A RIFIA 275,151 69,712
284,423 330,060
Total liabilities BaE 284,423 330,060
Total equity and liabilities BERRAE 875,864 906,147
Net current assets REEETE 161,968 146,940
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARE 591,441 576,087
Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 31st March 2021. BEFERN T —F=A=1+—B#ELRET
%o
WANG Weihang WANG Yueou
3 TER
Director Director
EF 2
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41.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: The movement of the Company'’s reserves are as follows:

M. ARD BB EAR TR @)

i ARAREZEHNT

Share- Retained
Convertible based earnings/
bonds payment  (Accumulated
Special reserve reserve losses)
reserve AR SR RER REBA,/ Total
HRlfRE BEHE Xkl (R3HBX) st
(Note (i)
(BFEG))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT THT FHT
At st January 2019 W=Z—h&E—F—A8 95,513 11,097 7,426 1,074 115,110
Loss for the year FREE - - - (18,391) (18,391)
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise IEBRER T TRR
of share options - - (36) - (36)
Recognition of equity-settled RARG AR A2 X
share-based payments - - 1,731 - 1,731
Lapse of share options transferred BEZRE RN KR E
to retained earnings - (97) 97
Conversion of convertible bonds AARESZER - (888) = = (888)
At 315t December 2019 and R=ZF-NF+=A=1+—H
1st January 2020 k=—Z-TF—H—H 95,513 10,209 9,024 (17,220) 97,526
Profit for the year FREF - - - 96,966 96,966
Issue of ordinary shares upon TEBRER T2 ERR
exercise of share options - - (928) - (928)
Recognition of equity-settled BERURDAERLZ T 2%
share-based payments - - 787 - 787
Lapse of share options BREERE RN R RE
transferred to retained earnings - - (239) 239 -
Redemption of convertible bonds FE I AT E S (P 36(0))
(Note 36(ii)) - (10,209) - 10,209 -
Final dividend for the year ended BE-Z-NFt-A=1—H
31st December 2019 and FFEZRERERERIRE
special dividends - - - (85,213) (85,213)
At 31st December 2020 R-E-ZBF+-A=1+-A 95,513 - 8,644 4,981 109,138

(i)  The special reserve of the Company represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for the issued share
capital of the subsidiaries and the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired
in prior years. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus shall not be distributable if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(2)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

(i) As at 31st December 2020, in the opinion of the directors, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$100,494,000 (2019: HK$78,293,000).
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42.CASH FLOW INFORMATION RETHREER
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) BEXB2HESWA
2020 2019
—E_EF —ZT—nF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BRATERATEF] (E518)
— From continuing operations - REFECLETRS 53,389 34,104
— From discontinued operations (Note 17)  — SR B AR IHAS 275 (BiEE17) (19,768) 105,277
33,621 139,381
Adjustments for: KRR
— Share of results of associates (Note 23) - FEAGEE A R AR (MIRE 23) 63,480 8,287
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 22) — & E# S (Fi7E22) 2,364 15,623
— Depreciation of property, plant and - - BEREEITE (i 20)
equipment (Note 20) 23,381 30,399
— Loss on deemed disposal of interests in - RIEHEBE AR E D e 2 B8 (31 9)
associates (Note 9) 708 -
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and - WEWE - HE K& EE ()
equipment (Note 9) - 6
— Fair value loss/(gain) on investment - REWMEZ DA BEEBR (W)
properties (Note 21) (Mt3E21) 1,500 (1,800)
— Reversal of obsolete inventories, -MREFERERRD - FE
net (Note 12) (MF7E12) (265) (67)
— Interest income - M BMA (839) (1,901)
— Interest expenses -FEXH 8,528 23,734
— Equity-settled share-based payment - AR BEMI A2 FAX
expenses 11,635 25,877
— ECL allowance for trade receivables - BB SR BHEEEIERE
(Note 27) (Bt 27) 6,141 296
— Reversal of ECL allowance for trade - BWE S 5IE BHEEEERE
receivables (Note 27) e (f7E27) (551) (3,268)
— Professional fee related to equity - R BEZSHERLT N2 FAX
transactions - 14,377
— Write off of inventories (Note 12) - FEME (FFsE12) 1,226 243
— Changes in fair value on contingent - ERNSAREZ AR EBEEED
consideration payable (Note 6(d)) (P E6(d)) - 921
— Changes in fair value on financial -BRARBEERABRIENERAE
liabilities at FVTPL (Note 6(d)) Z AR EEEE (M 6(d)) (1,805) 1,861
Changes in working capital: LiELAeE
— Inventories -FE 54,252 (89,519)
— Trade receivables - BB 558 (58,861) (26,162)
— Finance lease receivables - B R EHEFIE 688 (3,201)
— Other receivables, deposits and - HAfEWRIR - 1=e RIBFKIE
prepayments 7,997 (26,198)
— Contract assets -EHEE 86,536 (101,827)
— Restricted bank deposits - ZRHIRITIFR 556 206
— Trade payables - BB S5IE (77,913) 103,043
— Other payables and accruals - Hi e FRIA R BT B A 43,829 41,859
— Receipts in advance — A 63,060 45,676
Cash generated from operations TS 2 RS 269,268 197,846
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42.CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

RIREREER @
(b) ETEEENEBNEE

The table below set out the reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing TRIIEE-Z_TFR T -NF+=
activities for the years ended 31st December 2020 and 2019: A=+—8 ii&mﬂﬁxﬁ@)@iﬂ’ﬂ%%ﬁ@ﬁ
BE -
Financial
Bank  Convertible Lease liabilities
borrowings bonds liabilities at FVTPL Total
BANEEE
BERTIR
RITEE ARRES HESE HemeE st
(Note)
i3]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THET THT THT
At Tst January 2019 —F-NF—A-H 224,319 257,425 5,565 - 487,309
Cash flows Reng
~ Repayment of bank borrowings - BRFITEE (33,750) - - - (33,750)
~ Interest paid - BRFIE (11,571) - - - (11,571)
— Proceeds from issuance of - BIIRARBEERER
financial liabilities at FVTPL SRR S RE B FTERE - - - 72,565 72,565
— Principal portion of lease payments - & HA SR - - (5,361) - (5,361)
— Interest portion of lease payments  — FAEFFIE 21D = = (347) = (347)
Non-cash changes FREE
~ Finance costs - EWﬁm 12,142 11,093 347 - 23,582
— Entering into new leases (Note 20) - AIAFTAE (BfzE20) - - 5,741 - 5,741
— Conversion of convertible bonds - B AT R - (19,861) = = (19,861)
— Fair value changes recognised -REERRZ AR EES
in profit or loss = = = 1,861 1,861
— Exchange difference -ERER - - - 591 591
At 31st December 2019 and RZE-NE+ZA=+—HK
1st January 2020 “Z-Z5-F—H 191,140 248,657 5,945 75,017 520,759
Cash flows Rene
— Repayment of bank borrowings - BERITEE (45,000) - - - (45,000)
— Interest paid - BERHME (6,166) - - - (6,166)
— Payment for redemption of - BEIAT#RRES 2 5
convertible bonds - (250,700) - - (250,700)
— Principal portion of lease payments  — &M ZHAE 57 - - (5,899) - (5,899)
— Interest portion of lease payments  — & HF S 27 - - (347) - (347)
Non-cash changes FREEH
— Finance costs - IR AR 5,997 2,043 347 - 8,387
— Entering into new leases (Note 20) - JIAF# f@ﬁ’ 20) - - 7,330 - 7,330
— Fair value changes recognised - REBRBERZ AR EEE
in profit or loss - - - (1,805) (1,805)
- Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 46) ~ — H&EKIBL ) (FiE46) - - (967) (61,471) (62,438)
— Derecognition of financial - RIEERR A BEE BB
liabilities at FVTPL (Note 6(d)(i)) SIRE 2 R A & (P L 6(d)(i)) - - - (10,865) (10,865)
— Exchange difference -EREER - - 27 (876) (849)
At 31st December 2020 R=B-ZF+=-A=+—-A 145,971 - 6,436 - 152,407
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= > W2
42.CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) RE\ETHREER
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) RIEETBELNEBNEHER®
activities (Continued)
Note: Fff5E
The following table shows the breakdown of the bank borrowings and interest payable TREIR-_ZF_TFR_FT-—NAF+=A
as at 31st December 2020 and 2019: =T —HHRITEERENFIE ZHA -
2020 2019
— 7 —_ iﬁ iﬁ_nfﬁ
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Bank borrowings (Note 36(i)) SRITIEE (FI5E36()) 145,938 191,113
Interest payable (included in other FERFLE (BB E MR FRIE
payables and accruals) RIESTERA) 33 27
145,971 191,140
=
43.LEASE COMMITMENTS 43. HEHE
As lessee ERAEA
At the reporting date, the lease commitments for short-term leases are as REERARE - REABE 2 HEAENT -
follows:
2020 2019
—EEF —TNF
Office Office Office Office
premises equipment premises equipment
MAEYE WAERE ENEL S MANERME
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET
Within one year —FR 265 - 10,882 38
As at 31st December 2020, the Group had committed to a lease for premises in RIZ-ZHF+-A=+—H AKECHEE
which the lease had not yet commenced. The total future cash outflows for this HAFRBZHAEYMERETN - ZHEZ R
leases amounting to HK$4,113,000 (2019: HK$7,069,000) in aggregate. RAIR SR A4,113,0008 (T — L&
7,069,000 7T)
As at 31st December 2020, leases for office premises and computer equipment RZZZTFF+—A=1+—H PRENEKE
are negotiated for an average term of one year (2019: one year) and the rentals PSR 2 A THE—FEE X (2T —1F -
are fixed over the terms of the leases. —F) HeRBHRNREE -
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43.LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

As lessor

At 31st December 2020, the Group had contracted with tenants and an associate
in respect of office premises under operating leases as follows:

3. FHERE @
EHBBAA

RZE-_FTF+_A=+—H ' XEBERHA
EYEEERNHBRBE R —MBEQARETH0M

™
2020 2019
—EB-EF —NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Not later than one year —FRA 1,996 3,818
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FREAFA 1,950 =
3,946 3,818
Leases for office premises are negotiated for an average term of two years (2019: WAEYME AN THENFER —R(ZT
two years) and the rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases. —NEF : MF) - HeRBHARKEE -
44.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44, BT
2020 2019
—_ —4 — q—: —j‘Lf‘E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Contracted but not provided for: [EHESIEE R
Capital expenditure in respect of property, Y% -« B REH 2 ERRAT
plant and equipment 1,015 240
Capital expenditure in respect of investment ERTAZIRE ZEARRAR
in equity instrument 11,319 10,596
12,334 10,836

45.DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTERESTS IN A 45, tHEEA Gl =N

SUBSIDIARY

(a) Disposal of partial equity interest in Grid Dynamics

During the year ended 31st December 2019, GDD, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, disposed 342,500 and 82,936 common stock
of equity interest in Grid Dynamics to a director of Grid Dynamics and
a company controlled by a director of Grid Dynamics at a consideration
of USD2,055,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$16,117,000) and
USD 1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,844,000), respectively.
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(a) H%& Grid Dynamics 352 IR EREZS

HE-_Z-—AF+-_A=+—HLFE"

& B 2 —E 2 & & 2 7] GDD [A1—4 Grid
Dynamics 2 & & — & 8 Grid Dynamics & %
% il 2 2 &9 Bl & 342,500 % 12 82,936

B% Grid Dynamics 3% 38 B #E 25

REABIB

2,055,000 3 7T (A8 E 72 49 16,117,000 75 7T.)
1,000,000 7t ( 18 & 7 477,844,000 %
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45.DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTERESTS IN A 45. HENR —RIMEB A S0 #E

SU BS' DlARY (Continued)

(b) Issuance of Common Shares of Grid Dynamics

As disclosed in Note 40, during the year ended 31st December 2019, Grid
Dynamics issued 622,027 Common Shares to BGV, which represents 4.93%
of the enlarged issued share capital of Grid Dynamics.

(c) Exercise of share options of Grid Dynamics

During the year ended 31st December 2019, an employee and a director
of Grid Dynamics exercised 64,410 and 161,025 share options of Grid
Dynamics, respectively and resulted in the issuance of 225,435 common
stock of Grid Dynamics, which represents 1.75% of the enlarged issued
share capital of Grid Dynamics.

Upon completion of the above transactions, the Group’s shareholdings in Grid
Dynamics was diluted to 90.09% without losing control over Grid Dynamics,
accordingly the above transactions were accounted for as transactions with
owner with an increase in non-controlling interests.

S2

T (&)
(b) 21T Grid Dynamics Z @R

WERMF4W BE-_FT—NF+=-A
=+—HIEFE ' Grid Dynamics ] BGV 2
17622,027 % & # A& + {5 Grid Dynamics £
BAREHITRAN4.93% °

(c) 771 Grid Dynamics & i

HE-_ZT-hAE+-_A=+—RHIFE"
Grid Dynamics 2 —%EER —REEFHF
77 1£64,41019 % 161,02515 Grid Dynamics
BENGHE - BHE7T 225,435 B Grid Dynamics
LRAY 0 15 Grid Dynamics A& & A 18 B %17
BEAE 1.75% ©

SERK E il R 5 1% ¢ 7N & B 7 Grid Dynamics Z
¥R = #58 £90.09% + I & K K ¥ Grid
Dynamics Z Y2l o Bt - _EaiZ 575518k A
INFEIERA A 2 IR X 5 o
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46.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Following the Completion as set out in Note 17, Grid Dynamics and its

218

subsidiaries ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group. The following summarises
the net assets of the Disposal Group at Completion Date and gain on disposal of

46. HEME A 7
BERT 17 ATl 2 5E Rk H & 7% - Grid Dynamics &
ETBAAERZHBAR - TXHlHEER
REK BBz EEFERLENBAR 2K ¢

subsidiaries:

HK$'000

FiExT

Property, plant and equipment Y 18,820
Intangible assets mEAE 107,963
Goodwill Bk 763,394
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTI B E 36,959
Trade receivables B E 5778 157,916
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments EfhEWFIE « e RIBNFIE 44,351
Contract assets BHEE 6,974
Tax recoverable AT eI IE 2,561
Bank balances and cash RITFERRB S 324,658
Lease liabilities HEBE (967)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAREBEESRERIIENEREE (61,471)
Other payables and accruals HAb R RIE R IEET B R (93,120)
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTSEi B & (6,554)
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFTISHBE (21,954)
Net assets disposed of HESEEEFE 1,279,530
HK$'000

FaxT

Consideration: RAE :

Cash consideration ReNRE 727,507
Share consideration (Note) A RAB (I E) 1,813,591
2,541,098
Net assets of the Disposal Group HEEEEEFE (1,279,530)
Non-controlling interests PR 47,354
Release of translation reserve of the Disposal Group S SR B R AR PR EE W (3,413)
Derecognition of financial liabilities at FVTPL BILRERIEAABEEBERIENCMEE 10,865
Transaction costs directly attributable to the Disposal 8N E EIHE AR 2 XS (206,789)
Gain on disposal of the Disposal Group HEEE 2 HER= 1,109,585
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46.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 46. tHE BT 2 B s
Note: Bt 3T
The share consideration represents 19,490,295 shares in GDH. The amount was determined R B E M GDH 2 19,490,295 B i {7 - BRES XA
with reference to the share price quote of USD12 as at 5th March 2020. TRBER—ZE_TF=ARAZRE 12ETE -
The gain on disposal of the Disposal Group is included in the profit for the year from HEEE HERSTAMFI7TAHEZEEBERZ
discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as set out in Note 17. RIS E R 2 F T o
HK$'000
FiBT
Analysis of the cash flows in respect of ERHEEENREREAMAT :
the Disposal is as follows:
Cash consideration RERE 727,507
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZHRERRESEEY (324,658)
Transaction costs directly attributable to the Disposal (Note) HBHESEEEAR XS () (170,231)
Net cash and cash equivalents inflow in respect of the Disposal HESHEELMNFESRA 232,618
Note: Bfi3E
As at 31st December 2020, transaction costs directly attributable to the Disposal amounted RZZT-TF+_A=+—RH BHEEHEEERBZ
to HK$36,558,000 remains unsettled and included in accruals under other payables and R 5 AN 536,558,000 8 TR AT - WEIEREMIE
accruals. NFIER R ERA -
47.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 4. HAREE
As at 31st December 2019, the Group’s restricted bank deposit of HK$556,000 RZZBE-NF+ZA=+—H0 AEEZXR
was held as security for performance bonds. As at 31st December 2020, %Hiﬁﬁf;” Z’U 556,000 7% 7T B F 1E /B 40 1R 3%
performance bonds of approximately HK$84,848,000 (2019: HK$85,878,000) R RN TF+-_A=+—H0 RIRK
have been issued by the bank on behalf of the Group to customers as security of RAGEEGTEPEREGANERZBHRELN
contracts. 784,848,000 7L (== — L4 : 85,878,000
JT) °
48.PLEDGE OF ASSETS 48. B EEH
As at 31st December 2020, land and buildings with carrying amount of RZZZTF+_A=+—H AEEZ L
HK$166,700,000 (2019: HK$171,200,000) (Note 20) and investment properties MEF ZERME & 5 5166,700,0005 T( =T
with carrying amount of HK$54,300,000 (2019: HK$55,800,000) (Note 21) were — L% 1 171,200,000 7T ) (M3£20) RIRE Y
pledged to secure the Group’s bank borrowings. % 27 BRME 4 %8 /554,300,000 7T (Z T — N4 -
55,800,000/ 7T) (MizE21) B AIEARSE 2 $R1T
BEZER -
As at 31st December 2019, the Group’s restricted bank deposits of HK$556,000 RZZBE-NF+ZA=+—0H  AEBZZRH
were pledged to secure the performance bonds of the Group (Note 31). $RIT1F B A 556,000 B LB AEAEE 2 BAR
B AR (FIEE31) »

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 5B Z 5B BR A A 219



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

II'/T

BT RAR M

For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

49.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

220

As at 31st December 2020, Hong Kong Teamsun owns 54.83% (2019: 55.03%)
of the Company’s issued shares. The remaining 45.17% (2019: 44.97%) of the
Company’s issued shares are widely held. The ultimate holding company of the
Company is Teamsun.

NEEAELRS

Rn=

ToFET-A=t-R EBEBX

KA RNRQBIRHD 25483%( — T — N F:
55.03%) ' $2 N 45.17% (ZZ—h4F : 44.97%)
BPDBEEMA LS - RARRKER AR B

ERBERAK ©
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EHEBEA LT ZXR S
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Nature of transaction REMHE
Fellow subsidiaries: ERMELR :
Service fee charged to the Group* AEBEXNORFER 40 78
The associates: BE AT
Sales by the Group ZK%I@%JEL 26,701 2,034
Purchases by the Group rEEEE 5,496 9,159
Staff costs charged by the Group AEERFGWR 2 ETIHRY 70 92
Rental income charged by the Group REEFULZ AU 377 377
Expenses charged to the Group AEERSTHZHAZ 405 =

Sale and purchase of goods and services are transacted at normal
commercial terms that are consistently applied to all customers and vendors.

Rental income was transacted with reference to the rental rates prevailing in
the market.

(b) The Group’s balances with related parties are set out in Notes 29 and 34.

(c) Key management personnel remuneration are disclosed in Notes 14 and 15.

Note:

* The related party transactions in respect of service fee charged to the Group by a
fellow subsidiary above constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the directors’ report.
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(b)

(c)

EmkRGEERMETP REX —RER
ZIEERARGERETRS °

HEWRATIZETSERNBESKFEE

REEEREA LT 2 MO AR 29
34 -

FEEEABMESANE 14 R 15 NEFE -

B -

*

MAEEXNERMERRRGE 2 LlEIEA
IRGERAER HIFEMERS (FERR L™
HRAF14AE) - EHRBIE14AERE B E
REFGREHEL -
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50. £ EE A R 2715

R-B_ZTER_F-NAF+_A=+—H &
RAIZEEMBRARFELT -

50.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2020 and
2019 are as follows:

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

Percentage of
issued share

and operation registered capital capital held
ML, B L ERITR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg2 HMERAK NG Principal activities
) YNGR HEYE: 1] HfER ERTREBEIH TEXK
2020 2019
L

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
BERL(B8) BRAH B 55,350,000 non- products and solutions and provision
voting deferred shares” of hardware services (including
HK$55,350,002 installation and maintenance services)
2 e i and software services (including
55,350,000 f% software development, consulting
ERERERIER" and professional services)
55,350,002 77T REER  HEEMERIRATR
BRI RS (D ELERRE
RS R AR (B ISR 2
BERREERE)
ELM Computer Technologies Limited Hong Kong 12,000,000 100% 100% Sale of computer products and
RME R G R A A B ordinary shares solutions and provision of hardware
HK$12,000,000 services (including installation and
12,000,000 fx maintenance services) and software
Tk services (including software
12,000,000 /87T development, consulting and
professional services)
THE BIER XA R
AR (AL R RRERS) &
IR (BAER R - B R
BER)
ASL Softwing Investment Holdings Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Investment holding
Limited BB HK$10 KREER

IR EER AR A E 10 AR B A%

10747T
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50.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2020 and
2019 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
establishment  paid share capital/

50. T EM B AT 2B @

R-E-FER-F-NE+-AS+—B &
ARZEBHBATFENT : (8)

Percentage of
issued share

and operation registered capital capital held
AL, B L EBITR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg2 HERE/ AT s Principal activities
) PNCTEE EX/ 2 EMER BRTREBEDH TEXK
2020 2019
BB —T-hE
CSA Automated (Macau) Limited Macau Registered capital 100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
BE R ORM) ARAH SRPY MOP$10,000 products and solutions and provision
AR of hardware services (including
BP9 10,000 7T installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting
and professional services)
REZR  SHEBRERRBATR
RIS (BERERRE
AR BB RS (BAER BB
E S )
ASL Automated (Thailand) Thailand 1,110,000 ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
Limited RE shares products and solutions and provision
THB50,000,000 of hardware services (including
1,110,000 % i@ % installation and maintenance services)
Z=#% 50,000,000 7T and software services (including
software development, consulting
and professional services)
REZR  SHEBRERRBATR
RIBHRRE RS (BERERRE
AR BB RS (BAER BB
E S )
Guangzhou Automated Systems PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Sale of computer products and
Limited (Note 1) s HK$40,000,000 solutions and provision of hardware
ENREREE SR EER AR & A services (including installation and
(BFEE1) 40,000,000 77T maintenance services) and software
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50.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES 50. X EMEB AR Z5F1E w

(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2020 and

2019 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/

Issued and fully

RZZE_ZTFR-_T—NEF+=_A=+—H ' &
DRIZEBHBRAFELT « (&)

Percentage of

establishment  paid share capital/ issued share
and operation registered capital capital held
SR, B EBITR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg2 HEBRE VNG iE S Principal activities
o) PN HEYE: L EMER BRITRAEDL TEXK
2020 2019
—g-%F T AF
ASL Security Solutions Limited Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%* Investment holding
HEES HK$0.1 REER
1RE R
0.8
ASL Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands® 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%*  Investment holding, sale of computer
KBRS usD1 products and solutions and provision
1 RE AR of hardware services (including
E installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting
and professional services)
REZR - HEERERRBART R
RRMHEH RS (BELERRE
RS R PR 7S (B R 2
ELINE S )
ELM Technologies Holdings British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%* Investment holding
Limited HEERES usD1 REZER
1 IRE AL
(E
Express Success Limited British Virgin Islands 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
EBRAES usp2 ESSTE]
2R
2ET
Express Returns Limited British Virgin Islands* 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
KRELES usD2 ESSEC]
2RE B
2ET
Express Profits British Virgin Islands® 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
Development Limited KBRS usD2 MERE
2R
2ETT
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50.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES 50. X EMEB AR 25F1E w

(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2020 and REZZZTFR-ZF-NF+_A=+—H &
RIZEEZMBRRFELT - (8B)

FA
N
N\
AN

2019 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of

incorporation/ Issued and fully Percentage of
establishment  paid share capital/ issued share
and operation registered capital capital held
AL, B L EBITR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg2 HERE/ AT s Principal activities
) PNCTEE R/t EMER ERITREEDL TEXK
2020 2019

—g-®F —T AF

Automated Systems Fortune British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%* Investment holding, international
Investment Holdings Limited RBRIES! UsD1 trading, fund investment and
1 REER treasury management
17T REZR BERES  EeRER
GDB International Investment British Virgin Islands 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Investment holding
Limited RBRLRS USD54,650,001 REER
2R
54,650,001 37T
GDD International Holding US 100 common stocks 100% 100% Investment holding
Company £[ USD54,650,100 REER
100 AR E i A%

54,650,100 37T

Grid Dynamics US 12,847,462 common - 90.09% Provision of service in IT
(Note 2) ({5 2) ESE stocks engineering
USD8,117,128 BB TIRARTS

12,847,462 f & @Ak

8,117,128 % 7T
Grid Dynamics DOO Beograd Serbia Registered capital - 90.09% Provision of service in computer
— Novi Beograd ERED RSD30,000 programming
(Note 2) (Fit7E2) AR B TRRE

30,000 E@R#ED

FWEm
Limited Liability Company Russia Registered capital - 90.09% Provision of service in software
“Grid Dynamics Russia” R RUB10,000 development, consulting and
(Note 2) (Ff7E2) EMER relating professional service
10,000 f #E A AFE - B RAEEERS

B
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50.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES 50. X EMEB AR Z5F1E w

(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2020 and REZEZTFR-F-NF+_A=+—H &
2019 are as follows: (Continued) REIZ EEZMBARFELT : (&)

Country/place of

incorporation/ Issued and fully Percentage of

establishment  paid share capital/ issued share

and operation registered capital capital held
SR, B EBITR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg2 HEBRE VNG iE S Principal activities
o) PN HEYE: L EMER BRITRAEDL TEXK
2020 2019
—B-FE —TNF
Grid Dynamics Poland Spétka z Poland 100 ordinary shares - 90.09% Provision of service in software
ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig it PLN5,000 development, consulting and
(Note 2) (Hf3£2) 100 % Er i A% relating professional service
5,000 K H 2L &2 RMFE - BRREEERRY
Limited liability Company Ukraine Registered capital - 90.09% Provision of service in software
“Grid Dynamics Ukraine” 5 UAH2,500 development, consulting and
(Note 2) (Fffz£2) AR relating professional service
2,500 HIFE - B B E E RS
ERBRERM
Limited Liability Company Ukraine Registered capital - 90.09% Provision of service in software
“Cometera Ukraine” 5 UAH1,000 development, consulting and
(Note 2) (Ffiz2) AR relating professional service
1,000 R - BRI REREERY
ERBREXM
Limited Liability Company Ukraine Registered capital - 90.09% Provision of service and support
“GD Ukraine” 5nH UAH1,000 on behalf of Grid Dynamics
(Note 2) (FftzE2) FAMEAR and its customers
1,000 5528 K X Grid Dynamics R HE 5
RERA REPRB RS IR

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 5B Z 5B BR A A

225



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2020 BE—ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—HBItFE

50.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Notes:

1. Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited was registered in the PRC as a wholly foreign-
owned enterprise.

2. The Group disposed its entire interests in Grid Dynamics and its subsidiaries on 5th
March 2020. Details of disposal of subsidiaries are set out in Note 46.

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Company, carry practically
no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at any general
meeting of the Company nor to participate in any distribution on winding up.

# These companies operate in Hong Kong.
* Subsidiaries held directly by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the reporting period.

51.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

226

Deemed disposal of interests in associates

The Group's associates, GDH, issued a number of potentially dilutive securities
including stock options, restricted stock units and performance stock units to
consultants, employees and directors of GDH. The vesting of the performance
stock units was certified by the board of directors of GDH on 12th February
2021.

On 17th February, 2021, a holder of GDH's outstanding publicly traded warrants
(the “Public Warrants”) exercised the Public Warrants and GDH issued common
stock of 2,221,378 shares to the holder.

The vesting of performance stock units and the exercise of the Public Warrants
resulted in deemed disposal of the Group’s partial interests in GDH and the
Group's interests in GDH is diluted from 38.31% to 36.23%.

Annual Report 2020 & #f

50.

51.

FERBARZFHE @

B -

1. BMNREEZESREARA RN EEM AN
BBERE -

2. AEER-ZE-_ZTF=-ARBEEEMBRGrid
Dynamics & I8 A R) 2 1z o FHIBHAMIRE46 °
EREERERILFFRAADNRFE - EBENT
ZHERE - WEAR R ABREREHBE RS
BEBAASTNE LIRE - 2GR ELEM
DIRE) B BRRER] o

o REDRNEALE -

* KNARIEEREZHEAR -

EERE  ERASIARRINNBRAREEZEAFEE

FESARAEEEEFENERSD - EFER AT
HpERARNFESRIBBRITR

RAFEGHR - BENBARNRTEAREES -
/

BEMREE

REELEHE QT ER

REF#ANAR] » GDH » BITHTBEELBER
BrES  BIEERE  SRRESEMRERE
HORZSENFGODHZER - BETRES - R
—E-—F_A+"H GDHEFSIZTEKRR
HoORZEBNZHE -

RZZFE-_—F_A+tH ' —HGHZKRITE
REBR S ABBRIEE ([ AR RIAEE D FHBATTE
HARRIER - GDHE172,221,378 IR E AR
FEFBA °

HRIBBIYRZEN 2 BB RN RBREE 21T
R AR B EL SR GDH 2 B o #a - A
£ EA GDH 2 #25H138.31 % M #EH £36.23% °



Particulars of Investment Properties
REVEHE

For the year ended 31st December 2020 HE—T—_TF+_-_A=+—HItFE

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties at 31st December 2020 are as follows:

Location

i

Gross floor area (sq.ft)

BERRCFAR)

REZB-TE+-A=+—H rEEZREVEF

BT

Use

ke

Units 1 to 7 and 15 to 21 on 12th Floor
Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin

New Territories

Hong Kong

B

R

W

ZIET 11 5

£ EES
1R2B1ZETHRRISE215RER

Car parking space No. P4 on Ground Floor
Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street
Shatin

New Territories
Hong Kong

BB

R

A

AT 11 5R
E|8ES

R P4 BAL

11,744 sq.ft
11,744 E 7R

125 sq.ft
125 FEHR

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

[EES

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 5B Z 5B BR A A
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited — Information of
Major Subsidiaries, Associates and Relevant Centers

BBRGEERRAT - TZ2ME -

HONG KONG

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Limited
16/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2541 9900

Fax: (852) 2541 1338

i-Sprint Innovations (HK) Limited
Room 6-7, 10/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2608 6226

Fax: (852) 2645 8069

Automated Center of Excellence (ACoE)

15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Security Operation Center Plus (SOC+)

15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Service Center

15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Unified Operation Center (UOC)
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936
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BrE DR RAEEHOE

&E
BEIRG (BB BRAR
HEMADH

ZIE 1158

#|EES 1518

3% 1 (852) 2601 6998
{EH : (852) 2601 6936

WM EMEHRARA
FEHRLA

2O 115

EEES 1612

B ¢ (852) 2541 9900
f8H : (852) 2541 1338

ZilFE (B8) RHR AR AR
EEIANDE

ZOE 115
EEES10186-7 %

B ¢ (852) 2608 6226
{8H : (852) 2645 8069

BE) R = A 0 (ACOE)
HEMADH

ZOHE 1157
#|EES 1518
3% 1 (852) 2601 6998
fEH : (852) 2601 6936

ZEREER L+ (SOC+)
FEHRLA
2115

EEES 151

B ¢ (852) 2601 6998
fEH : (852) 2601 6936

ARG

ERHALH
LOE 11 5%

E|EES 1512

E:E 1 (852) 2601 6998

f£E& : (852) 2601 6936

fRABEFL (UOC)
FHALHA
ZLE 115
E|ERES 1512

: (852) 2601 6998
{EH : (852) 2601 6936
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MAINLAND CHINA

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited
14/F, No.185 Yuexiu South Road

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, China
(Postal Code: 510100)

Tel: (86) 202 203 8111

Fax: (86) 202 203 8000

Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC)
14/F, No.185 Yuexiu South Road

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, China

(Postal Code: 510100)

Tel: (86) 202 203 8111

Fax: (86) 202 203 8000

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited

P E A it

BINREZEE SRR AR AT
B E M TSR

MFEFERE 1855% 1418

(Eb4% : 510100)

3% 1 (86) 202 203 8111

{BE : (86) 202 203 8000

YBHNE AT (ODEC)
PR RN T TS @
ML 1855% 1418
(EB#4 : 510100)

3% 1 (86) 202 203 8111
fEE : (86) 202 203 8000

BIRES R ESREERAR

Room 1509, F2 Building FEEDTERER
Lugu Enterprise Plaza, No.27 Wenxuan Road SCETEE 27 5%

Yuelu District, Changsha, China
(Postal Code: 410000)

Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd

Room A 0909 Shougang International Tower
No. 60 Xizhimen North Street

Haidian District, Beijing, China

(Postal Code: 100082)

Tel: (86) 108 273 6009

i-Sprint Innovations (Beijing) Ltd

Room A 0909 Shougang International Tower
No. 60 Xizhimen North Street

Haidian District, Beijing, China

(Postal Code: 100082)

Tel: (86) 108 273 6009

i-Sprint Innovations China (Zhuhai, CoE)
4/F, Block B-2

Southern Software Park

No.1 Software Road

Zhuhai, Guangdong, China

(Postal Code: 519080)

Tel: (86) 756 632 2668

Fax: (86) 756 632 2660

BADEESBR2R1509%
(EB4% © 410000)

I RLAEREEREFAR

b RTEEREEPIEAE 605
IR EHEBREAEIE 095 E
(EB4% : 100082)

3% 1 (86) 108 273 6009

il QLR B AR EE AR
bR TEE R A E P K 60 5%
IR EHMBEREAKEIE09HRE
(Ep4% : 100082)

3% ¢ (86) 108 273 6009

Tl RHR R AL
EMERRGEE 157
5 77 0 E] B2 AR U2
(HB4% : 519080)

3% ¢ (86) 756 632 2668
fEH : (86) 756 632 2660
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MACAU

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’'Assumpcao, No. 180

Edificio Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo
14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

iN Systems (Macao) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao, No. 180

Edificio Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo
14 Andar R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

Security Operation Center SOC?
Rua de Lagos, Telecentro, 4/F
Taipa, Macau

Tel: (853) 8891 5000

Fax: (853) 8891 3031

THAILAND

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building
Unit 0901, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited

283/42 Home Place Office Building
Unit 0902, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co., Ltd
Level 32, Interchange 21

399 Sukumvit Road, North-Klongtoey
Wattana, Bangkok, 10110, Thailand
Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207
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BE) R4 CBPY) BRAR
SRPIR £ A E5 180 9%
REREERD

141 0-RE

B35 1 (853) 2878 6392
fEH : (853) 2878 6390

BERFRHE CRP) AR AR
JRPIR E A B 180 %%
REEEERDL

141ERE

3% 1 (853) 2878 6392

fBH : (853) 2878 6390

W ENL 2l EP L SOC
SR RrET T
BilirAKE 412

3% ¢ (853) 8891 5000
{8H :(853) 8891 3031
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ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building
Unit 0901, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

EiE : (662) 185 3206

5E : (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited

283/42 Home Place Office Building
Unit 0902, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

EiE : (662) 185 3206

& : (662) 185 3207

i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co., Ltd
Level 32, Interchange 21

399 Sukumvit Road, North-Klongtoey
Wattana, Bangkok, 10110, Thailand
F5E © (662) 185 3206
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SINGAPORE

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

Blk 750D Lobby 1 Chai Chee Road
#08-01 ESR BizPark @ Chai Chee
Singapore 469 004

Tel: (65) 6244 3900

Fax: (65) 6244 8900

MALAYSIA

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara
46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

Tel: (60) 379 325 688

Fax: (60) 379 315 688

NETHERLANDS

Daxx Web Industries BV

Zaandijkerweg 8, 1521 AX Wormerveer
Amsterdam, Netherlands

Tel: (31) 075 302 0011

POLAND

Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Poland”
Aleja 3 Maja 9, 3rd Floor

Krakéw, 30-062, Poland

Tel: (48) 733 732 767

SERBIA

Grid Dynamics DOO Beograd - Novi Beograd
115 Bulevar Mihajla Pupina
Belgrade, Serbia

RUSSIA

Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Russia”

Representative Office

Business Center Senator
Chapaeva Street 15, Liter A
Russian Federation

Tel: (7) 812 640 3876

Representative Office

38/114 Vavilova Street, Floor 7
Saratov, Russian Federation
Tel: (7) 845 267 4878

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 5 Z 5B BR A7
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i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

Blk 750D Lobby 1 Chai Chee Road
#08-01 ESR BizPark @ Chai Chee
Singapore 469 004

BEE ¢ (65) 6244 3900

fHH : (65) 6244 8900

FSRA

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara
46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

BEE : (60) 379 325 688
{#H : (60) 379 315 688

{57 B
Daxx Web Industries BV
Zaandijkerweg 8, 1521 AX Wormerveer

Amsterdam, Netherlands
&5 1 (31) 075302 0011

R
Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Poland”
Aleja 3 Maja 9, 3rd Floor

Krakéw, 30-062, Poland
Eah 1 (48) 733 732 767

Ef#ED

Grid Dynamics DOO Beograd - Novi Beograd
115 Bulevar Mihajla Pupina
Belgrade, Serbia

A

Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Russia”

REPEE

Business Center Senator
Chapaeva Street 15, Liter A
Russian Federation

EiE 0 (7) 812 640 3876

REWEE

38/114 Vavilova Street, Floor 7
Saratov, Russian Federation
ERE ¢ (7) 845 267 4878
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UKRAINE
Limited Liability Company “GD Ukraine”

Representative Office

Business Center Olimpiyskiy
72 Velyka Vasylkivska St, 26th Floor, Ukraine

Representative Office

5 Vesnina St., Kharkiv, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 057 728 5233

Daxx Web Industries BV

Representative Office

Forum Kinetik, Kurenivs'kyi Ln
12 Kyiv 04073, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 044 227 7650

Representative Office

Teatralny Lane, 11/13
Kharkiv 61057, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 057 714 0430

Representative Office

Sviatoslava Khorobroho St 12, 2nd floor
Office 204, Dnipro 49000, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 056 785 6829

UNITED STATES

Grid Dynamics Holdings Inc.

5000 Executive Parkway, Suite 520
San Ramon, CA 94583, United States
Tel: (1) 650 523 5000

Grid Dynamics International, LLC
5345 Towne Square Drive,
Suite# 275, Plano, United States

i-Sprint Innovations Inc.
197 Route 18 South
Suite 3000

East Brunswick, NJ 08816
Tel: (1) 201 604 3545
Fax: (1) 732 422 0178
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REPEE
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A Member of the Teamsun Group

Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BEAKEEBERLAT

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998 Fax: (852) 2601 6936
Home Page: http://www.asl.com.hk
FRDEROE 11 REIEES 1548

B35 (852) 2601 6998 K 1 (852) 2601 6936
#Ak : http://www.asl.com.hk
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